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Forward-Looking Statements  

Forward-looking statements made with respect to our financial condition and results of operations and business in this Annual Report on Form 
10-K (this “Report”) and those made from time to time by us through our senior management are made pursuant to the “safe harbor” provisions 
of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These forward-looking statements are based on our current expectations and projections 
about future events but are subject to known and unknown risks, uncertainties and assumptions about us and our partner companies that may 
cause our actual results, levels of activity, performance or achievements to be materially different from any future results, levels of activity, 
performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements.  

Factors that could cause our actual results, levels of activity, performance or achievements to differ materially from those anticipated in forward-
looking statements include, but are not limited to, factors discussed elsewhere in this Report and include, among other things:  

In some cases, you can identify forward-looking statements by terminology such as “may,” “will,” “should,” “could,” “would,” “expect,” “plan,” 
“anticipate,” “believe,” “estimate,” “continue” or the negative of such terms or other similar expressions. All forward-looking statements 
attributable to us or persons acting on our behalf are expressly qualified in their entirety by the cautionary statements included in this Report. We 
undertake no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or 
otherwise. In light of these risks, uncertainties and assumptions, the forward-looking events discussed in this Report might not occur.  
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  •   capital spending by enterprises and customers; 
  

  •   our partner companies’  collective ability to compete successfully against their respective competitors; 
  

  •   rapid technological developments in the respective markets in which our partner companies operate and our partner companies’  
collective ability to respond to such changes in a timely and effective manner; 

  

  •   our ability to deploy capital effectively and on acceptable terms; 
  

  •   our ability to maximize value in connection with divestitures; 
  

  •   our ability to retain key personnel; and 
  

  •   our ability to effectively manage existing capital resources. 
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PART I  

Although we refer in this Report to companies in which we have acquired a convertible debt or an equity ownership interest as our “partner 
companies” and indicate that we have a “partnership” with these companies, we do not act as an agent or legal representative for any of our 
partner companies, we do not have the power or authority to legally bind any of our partner companies, and we do not have the types of 
liabilities in relation to our partner companies that a general partner of a partnership would have.  

In the information technology industry, certain terms are often used to describe the nature of a company’s business, including the following 
terms: internet company, business to business e-commerce, business to consumer e-commerce, software company, on-demand internet software, 
on-demand software, software as a service (“SaaS”), application service provider, outsourcing, procurement services and supply chain. One or 
more of these terms applies, in varying degrees, to most of our partner companies. Our partner companies also typically provide customers with 
systems integration consulting services or stand alone services. For convenience throughout this Report, we generally refer to our partner 
companies’ businesses as software and services.  

ITEM 1. Business  

Business Overview  

Internet Capital Group, Inc. (“ICG” or the “Company”) acquires and builds internet software and services companies that drive business 
productivity and reduce transaction costs between firms. ICG was formed on March 4, 1996 and is headquartered in Wayne, Pennsylvania. We 
view the Company as primarily having two components: Corporate and our partner companies. Corporate primarily holds our cash, short-term 
investments, marketable securities and ownership interests in partner companies. Our partner companies are grouped into two operating 
segments, consisting of the Core segment and the Other Holdings segment. The Core operating segment includes those partner companies in 
which the Company’s management takes a very active role in providing strategic direction and management assistance. ICG devotes its expertise 
and capital to maximizing the success of these Core companies. The Other Holdings operating segment includes holdings in companies where, in 
general, we do not have a controlling ownership stake, we provide less operational support and the partner company is managed to provide the 
greatest near-term stockholder value. As of December 31, 2006, we have ownership interests in 18 companies.  

The current market environment creates a substantial opportunity for providers of software and services that improve sales results, reduce costs 
and increase efficiencies by streamlining business processes both within an enterprise and across the value chain. An increasing number of 
enterprises are focusing on their core competencies to drive differentiation and competitive advantage for their firms. This means that these 
enterprises are looking for ways to outsource non-core or non-strategic processes that cost time and money and distract them from their top 
priorities. Our partner companies deliver software and services to help businesses focus on their core competencies.  

With a sharp focus on those Core companies that we believe have the greatest potential to generate value for ICG stockholders, our operating 
strategy is to build and develop our partner companies by providing them with both human and financial resources. This support leverages the 
collective knowledge and best practices both within ICG and across our network of partner companies. We use these collective resources to 
actively support the business strategies, operations and management teams of our partner companies. Our resources include the experience, 
industry relationships and specific expertise of our management team, our partner companies’ management teams and our Board of Directors.  

In 2005, following a period of years marked by the need to reduce costs and debt, the Company began focusing on acquiring stakes in new 
partner companies. Our goal is to acquire software companies that deliver on-demand applications through the internet and which automate a 
complex workflow process and deliver a comprehensive solution comprising software, content data and transaction capabilities. Some of these 
companies will have the potential to develop into an ecosystem whereby the growth in the number of  
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customers improves the value to all customers. From a financial standpoint, we generally are targeting companies that have recurring customer 
revenue models under multi-year contracts with a relatively high proportion of costs being fixed.  

Industry Overview  

The internet’s growth creates substantial market opportunities for companies that provide software and services to help traditional businesses 
attract customers and increase efficiency and cost savings by leveraging the internet and other technologies. Historically, e-commerce has 
occurred through electronic data interchange over proprietary networks, which are costly and available only to a limited number of participants. 
The internet provides an open platform with common communication protocols to build efficient, cost-effective networks that facilitate e-
commerce.  

During 2005 and 2006, the e-commerce market continued a period of development and growth as enterprises of all sizes and across all industries 
looked for vehicles to help them:  

Expand access to new and existing customers and suppliers  

Traditional businesses have relied on their sales forces and purchasing departments to develop and maintain customer and supplier relationships. 
This model is constrained by the time and cost required to exchange current information regarding requirements, prices and product availability, 
and the difficulty of cost-effectively locating new customers and suppliers and managing existing relationships. Traditional businesses can 
leverage the internet to obtain and communicate real-time, accurate information regarding requirements, prices and products to a global 
audience, including suppliers, customers and business partners. This should make it easier for businesses to attract new customers and suppliers, 
improve service and increase revenue.  

Increase efficiency and reduce costs  

Traditional businesses are utilizing the internet to automate their internal operations, including manufacturing, finance, sales and purchasing 
functions. The internet is also used to increase information flow and access throughout the value chain. This increases operational efficiency by 
reducing the time, costs and resources required to transact business, lowering inventory levels and procurement costs and improving 
responsiveness to customers and suppliers. Additionally, the internet has created high levels of price and cost transparency for customers. As a 
result, companies are being forced to become more efficient and to reduce their cost structures. Challenging market conditions have only served 
to increase the need for companies to reduce bottom line costs and increase operational efficiencies to support growth.  

Focus on core competencies and outsource non-core, non-strategic processes  

There are an increasing number of enterprises focusing on their core competencies to drive differentiation and competitive advantage for their 
firms. This means that they are looking for ways to outsource non-core, or non-strategic, processes that cost time and money, and more 
importantly distract them from their top priorities. In some cases, this outsourcing will be to labor-based firms who provide deep expertise, and 
in some cases, the outsourcing will be to technology intensive firms that provide a platform to automate a function.  

We believe because e-commerce can be used to build top line revenues in times of growth and new levels of efficiency in times of contraction, 
that the benefits of e-commerce are broad and will be realized by businesses in times of economic growth or contraction.  
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  •   expand access to new and existing customers and suppliers; 
  

  •   increase efficiency and reduce costs; and 
  

  •   focus on core competencies and outsource non-core, non-strategic processes. 
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Our Solution and Strategy  

Our goal is to become a leader in information technology by owning significant stakes in leading companies that deliver the savings and 
efficiency of the internet to businesses of all sizes across all industries.  

With a sharp focus on those companies that we believe offer the greatest potential to generate value for ICG stockholders, our operating strategy 
is to build and develop our partner companies by providing them with both human and financial resources. This support leverages the collective 
knowledge and best practices both within ICG and across our network of partner companies. We use these collective resources to actively 
support the business strategies, operations and management teams of our partner companies. Our resources include the experience, industry 
relationships and specific expertise of our management team, our partner companies’ management teams and our Board of Directors.  

Although ICG’s mission of building leading companies has remained constant since its inception, the Company’s focus and operational tenets 
have evolved with the growth of the e-commerce market and in response to changes within the overall business environment. This evolution has 
included:  

Identifying key markets and owning stakes in potential leaders  

Our expertise in the e-commerce market has allowed us to identify companies that we believe are positioned to succeed. We were very active in 
acquiring new companies during 1999 and 2000, bringing the partner company network composition to an all-time high of 80 companies by late 
2000. In evaluating whether to enter a market or acquire a stake in a specific company, we weighed each opportunity in terms of several industry 
and company factors. With regards to industry criteria, we evaluated the inefficiencies within each market, its competitive landscape and the 
potential each market had in terms of the number and dollar value of transactions it would be able to support. In measuring the potential of each 
target company, we looked at market position and share, our ability to own a significant stake and the company’s potential to contribute to the 
network’s value in terms of operational resources and the quality of its management team.  

After we identified an attractive potential partner company, we negotiated the acquisition of a significant interest in the company. As a condition 
to an acquisition, we generally required representation on the company’s board of directors to ensure our ability to provide active guidance to the 
partner company. We structured acquisitions to permit the partner company’s management and key personnel to retain an equity stake in the 
company. During our negotiations with potential partner companies, we emphasized the value of our network and resources, which we believe 
gave us a competitive advantage over other acquirers in successfully consummating transactions.  

In late 2000, we reallocated our capital resources as described below to focus on those partner companies that we believed presented the greatest 
potential for ICG stockholders. Due to this increased focus on certain existing partner companies, during 2001 through 2004 we did not focus on 
new acquisitions. During 2005 and 2006, in light of our improved financial position, we began seeking new acquisition targets and have acquired 
interests in three new partner companies.  

After acquiring interests in partner companies, we selectively continue to participate in their follow-on financings and otherwise increase our 
ownership positions.  
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  •   identifying key markets and owning stakes in potential leaders in e-commerce; 
  

  •   aggregating companies into a network to share knowledge and promote growth; and 
  

  •   prioritizing resources to accelerate development of those partner companies that we believe are the most likely to create value for our 
stockholders. 
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Aggregating companies into a network to promote growth  

ICG has acquired interests in numerous partner companies. Upon acquiring an interest in a partner company, we assume an active role in such 
company by providing both strategic guidance and operational support.  

Strategic Guidance . We provide strategic guidance to our partner companies regarding market positioning, business model development and 
market trends. Our focus on the e-commerce market and the knowledge base of our partner companies, management and our Board of Directors 
gives us valuable experience that we share with our partner companies.  

Operational Support . We provide operational support to our partner companies in the areas of finance, sales and marketing, business 
development and human resources. We assign an operations and finance team to the majority of our partner companies. This ICG team advises 
our partner companies’ management on day-to-day business and operational issues.  

Exchange of Best Practices and Economies of Scale. One of the principal goals of our network is to promote best practices and economies of 
scale among our partner companies. We promote and facilitate the information flow among our partner companies and, as they follow similar 
business cycles and challenges, key learnings are leveraged to increase operational efficiencies, improve decision-making and promote growth.  

Prioritize resources to accelerate development of most promising companies  

Based on our active involvement in the e-commerce market since 1996, we believe that our expertise allows us to identify companies that are 
positioned to succeed. This enables the prioritization of our resources to accelerate the development of partner companies we believe offer the 
greatest value for our stockholders over the long term. We intend to continue to focus on our private partner companies that we believe have the 
greatest long-term value potential, which we refer to as our Core partner companies. These Core partner companies primarily deliver a wide 
array of software and services to help customers streamline and automate business processes, with the goal of reducing costs and increasing 
efficiencies both within the four walls of the enterprise and across their individual value chains. However, this categorization does not 
necessarily imply that every one of our Core partner companies is successful at this time or will become successful. Rather, it captures those 
companies that are receiving the majority of ICG management’s time and resources as we consider them our most promising.  

At December 31, 2006, our consolidated Core partner companies consisted of:  

ICG Commerce Holdings, Inc. (“ICG Commerce”)  

ICG Commerce is a procurement services provider delivering total procurement cost savings through a combination of deep expertise and hosted 
technology. ICG Commerce provides a comprehensive range of solutions to help companies identify savings through sourcing, realize savings 
through implementation of purchase-to-pay automation and drive continuous improvements through ongoing category management.  
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Investor Force Holdings, Inc. (“Investor Force”)  

Investor Force is a financial software company specializing in the development of online applications for the financial services industry. 
InvestorForce provides pension consultants and other financial intermediaries with a web-based enterprise platform that integrates data 
management with robust analytic and reporting capabilities in support of its institutional and other clients. This private-labeled application 
provides investment consultants with the ability to conduct real-time analysis and research into client, manager and market movement as well as 
to produce timely, automated client reporting.  

At December 31, 2006, our Core partner companies accounted for under the equity method consisted of:  

Channel Intelligence, Inc. (“Channel Intelligence”)  

Channel Intelligence is a provider of data solutions that make it easy for online shoppers to find and buy products, whether they start at retailer 
sites, manufacturer sites or destination shopping sites, through the use of Channel Intelligence’s patented optimization technology and data 
solutions.  

Freeborders, Inc. (“Freeborders”)  

Freeborders is a provider of technology solutions and outsourcing from China. Freeborders also provides product lifecycle management software 
and services to leading retailers and their suppliers, enabling brands to more effectively manage the increasing complexity of their supply chains. 
Freeborders solutions help drive profitable revenue growth, speed products to market, improve inventory management, and maintain control, 
consistency and quality.  

Marketron International, Inc. (“Marketron”)  

Marketron is a provider of broadcast management solutions for the radio, TV and cable industries. Marketron’s fully integrated suite of sales, 
traffic, finance and business intelligence solutions automates workflow from proposal to billing, enabling groups to optimize inventory and 
increase revenues.  

Metastorm Inc. (“Metastorm”)  

Metastorm is an enterprise software and service provider that enables its customers to turn business strategies into business processes by fully 
integrating the work that people do with software systems that optimize business performance. Metastorm delivers a complete set of scalable 
business process management solutions that leverage existing IT investments to unite people, processes and technology in a service-based 
architecture.  
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StarCite, Inc. (“StarCite”)  

StarCite provides a comprehensive suite of software applications and services to the meeting and events industry. StarCite helps drive 
efficiencies and cost savings to both corporate buyers and suppliers. More than 400 corporate, association and third-party meeting buyers rely on 
StarCite’s Enterprise Meeting Solutions for workflow, procurement, supply chain management, spend analysis and attendee management. 
Thousands of industry suppliers rely on the StarCite Online Marketplace, supplier marketing programs and enabling technologies to increase 
meeting revenues. StarCite’s international division represents destination management companies and other premier international travel suppliers 
using both technology and traditional means.  

Vcommerce Corporation (“Vcommerce”)  

Vcommerce provides on-demand commerce and fulfillment solutions for multi-channel retailers and direct-to-consumer companies of all types. 
Vcommerce offers turn-key solutions and customized features that allow customers to rely on Vcommerce for some or all of their e-commerce 
functions, from hosting an entire e-commerce site to supporting back-end functions such as managing drop-ship suppliers. As a complete 
solution, Vcommerce enables retailers, distributors and manufacturers to merchandise products, accept orders from customers, authorize and 
settle credit card transactions, ship products directly to the consumer, handle returns and manage customer service through the Vcommerce 
platform with minimal operating overhead and no IT infrastructure. Vcommerce generates revenue primarily through usage-based transactions.  

Qcorps Residential, Inc. (d/b/a WhiteFence) (“WhiteFence”)  

WhiteFence is a web services provider used by household consumers to compare and purchase essential home services, such as electricity, 
natural gas, telephone and cable/satellite television. WhiteFence reaches customers directly through company-owned websites and through its 
network of exclusive channel partners who integrate the web services applications into their own business processes and websites.  

Concentration of Customer Base and Credit Risk  

Approximately 10% and 14% of our revenue for the year ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively, related to a single customer of ICG 
Commerce. Accounts receivable from this customer were $1.1 million at December 31, 2006 and 2005.  

Competition  

Competition Facing our Partner Companies  

Competition for information technology and internet products and services is intense. As the market for e-commerce continues to grow, we 
expect that competition will continue to intensify. Barriers to entry are minimal and competitors can offer products and services at a relatively 
low cost. Our partner companies compete with established information systems and management consulting firms, as well as traditional 
distribution channels and other online providers, for a share of a customer’s purchasing budget for information technology and consulting 
services and related materials and supplies.  

Many companies offer competitive solutions that compete with one or more of our partner companies. We expect that additional companies will 
offer competing solutions on a stand-alone or combined basis in the future. Furthermore, our partner companies’ competitors may develop 
information technology and internet products or services that are superior to, or have greater market acceptance than, the solutions offered by  
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our partner companies. Many of our partner companies’ competitors have greater brand recognition and greater financial, marketing and other 
resources than our partner companies. This may place our partner companies at a disadvantage in responding to their competitors’ pricing 
strategies, technological advances, advertising campaigns, strategic partnerships and other initiatives.  

If our partner companies are unable to compete successfully against their competitors, our partner companies may fail.  

Competition From Within our Network  

We may compete with some of our partner companies for internet-related opportunities. We may compete with our partner companies to acquire 
interests in on-demand companies and our partner companies may compete with each other for on-demand opportunities. This competition may 
deter companies from partnering with us and may limit our business opportunities.  

Employees  

Our corporate headcount as of February 28, 2007 is 24. Headcount at our consolidated partner companies as of February 28, 2007 is 336. 
Although we believe our and our consolidated partner companies’ current staffing levels are adequate to conduct business, we cannot ensure that 
we and our consolidated partner companies will not need to increase headcount in the future.  

Financial Information About Segments and Geographic Areas  

Segment and geographic area information is set forth in Note 8 to our Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8 below and 
incorporated herein by reference.  

Availability of Reports and Other Information  

Our internet website address is www.internetcapital.com. Our Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports 
on Form 8-K and all amendments to those reports filed by us with the SEC pursuant to Sections 13(a) and 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act 
of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), are accessible free of charge through our website as soon as reasonably practicable after we 
electronically file those documents with, or otherwise furnish them to, the SEC.  

The public may read and copy any of the reports that are filed with the SEC at the SEC’s Public Reference Room at 450 Fifth Street, NW, 
Washington, DC 20549. The public may obtain information on the operation of the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-
0330. The SEC maintains an internet site (http://www.sec.gov) that contains reports, proxy and information statements, and other information 
regarding issuers that file electronically with the SEC.  
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ITEM 1A.  Risk Factors  

Our business involves a number of risks, some of which are beyond our control. You should carefully consider each of the risks and uncertainties 
we describe below and all of the other information in this Report before deciding to invest in our shares. The risks and uncertainties we describe 
below are not the only ones we face. Additional risks and uncertainties that we do not currently know or that we currently believe to be 
immaterial may also adversely affect our business.  

If general economic conditions are unfavorable, our partner companies may be unable to attract or retain customers and the condition of 
our business may be adversely affected.  

Numerous external forces, including fear of and actual acts of global terrorism, global military conflict, including hostilities in the Middle East 
involving United States armed forces, lack of consumer confidence and interest rate or currency rate fluctuations, could affect the global or U.S. 
economy. If the economy is unfavorable, our partner companies’ customers and potential customers may be unwilling to spend money on 
technology-related goods or services. If our partner companies are unable to attract new customers or retain existing customers, the condition of 
our business may be adversely affected.  

We may not be able to deploy capital effectively and on acceptable terms.  

Our strategy includes effectively deploying capital by acquiring interests in new partner companies. We may not be able to identify attractive 
acquisition candidates that fit our strategy and, even if we are able to identify such candidates, we may not be able to reach agreement with 
potential acquisition candidates to acquire an interest in such companies on acceptable terms.  

Our stock price has been volatile in the past and may continue to be volatile in the future.  

Our stock price has historically been volatile. Stock prices of technology companies have generally been volatile as well. This volatility may 
continue in the future.  

The following factors, among others, may add to our common stock price’s volatility:  
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  •   general economic conditions, such as a recession or interest rate or currency rate fluctuations, and the reluctance of enterprises to 
increase spending on new technologies; 

  

  •   actual or anticipated variations in our quarterly results and those of our partner companies; 
  

  •   changes in the market valuations of our partner companies and other technology and internet companies; 
  

  •   conditions or trends in the information technology and e-commerce industries; 
  

  •   changes in our financial estimates and those of our partner companies by securities analysts; 
  

  •   new products or services offered by us, our partner companies and their competitors; 
  

  •   announcements by our partner companies and their competitors of technological innovations; 
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Many of these factors are beyond our control. These factors may decrease the market price of our Common Stock, regardless of our operating 
performance.  

Fluctuations in our quarterly results may adversely affect our stock price.  

We expect that our quarterly results will fluctuate significantly due to many factors, including:  

If our operating results in one or more quarters do not meet securities analysts’ or investors’ expectations, the price of our Common Stock could 
decrease.  

Fluctuation in the price of the common stock of our publicly-traded partner companies may affect the price of our Common Stock.  

Currently, Blackboard, Inc. (“Blackboard”) and GoIndustry plc (“GoIndustry”) are our publicly-traded partner companies. Fluctuations in the 
price of Blackboard’s and GoIndustry’s and other future publicly-traded partner companies’ common stock are likely to affect the price of our 
Common Stock. The price of our publicly-traded partner companies’ common stock has been highly volatile. As of December 31, 2006, the 
market value of our interest in publicly-traded partner companies was $95.1 million. The results of operations and, accordingly, the price of the 
common stock, of Blackboard and GoIndustry may be adversely affected by the occurrence of the risk factors contained in this Annual Report. 
In addition, the results of operations and common stock price of Blackboard may be adversely affected by the risk factors in Blackboard’s SEC 
filings, which are publicly available at www.sec.gov, and the results of operations and common stock price of GoIndustry may be adversely 
affected by the factors set forth in GoIndustry’s submissions on the AIM market of the London Stock Exchange, which are publicly available at 
www.londonstockexchange.com.  
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  •   announcements by us or our partner companies or our competitors of significant acquisitions, strategic partnerships or joint ventures; 
  

  •   additional sales of our securities; and 
  

  •   additions to or departures of our key personnel or key personnel of our partner companies. 

  •   the acquisition of interests in partner companies; 
  

  •   the operating results of our partner companies; 
  

  •   sales of our ownership interests in our partner companies, which could cause us to recognize gains or losses under applicable accounting 
rules; 

  

  •   significant fluctuations in the financial results of information technology and e-commerce companies generally; 
  

  •   changes in equity losses or income; 
  

  •   changes in our methods of accounting for our partner company interests, which may result from changes in our ownership percentages 
of our partner companies; 

  

  •   the pace of development or a decline in growth of the information technology and e-commerce markets; 
  

  •   competition for the goods and services offered by our partner companies; and 
  

  •   our ability to effectively manage our growth and the growth of our partner companies. 
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Our business depends upon the performance of our partner companies, which is uncertain.  

If our partner companies do not succeed, the value of our assets and the price of our Common Stock may decline. Economic, governmental, 
industry and company factors outside our control affect each of our partner companies. The material risks relating to our partner companies 
include:  

Of our $354.4 million in total assets as of December 31, 2006, $137.9 million, or 38.9%, consisted of ownership interests in our partner 
companies accounted for under the equity and cost methods of accounting. The carrying value of our partner company ownership interests 
includes our original acquisition cost, the effect of accounting for certain of our partner companies under the equity method of accounting and 
the effect of impairment charges recorded for the decrease in value of certain partner companies. The carrying value of our partner companies 
will be impaired and decrease if one or more of our partner companies do not succeed. This decline would likely affect the price of our common 
stock. As of December 31, 2006, the value of our publicly-traded partner companies reflected as “Marketable Securities” in our Consolidated 
Financial Statements was $66.1 million. A decline in the market value of our publicly-traded partner companies will likely cause a decline in the 
price of our Common Stock.  

The companies that we have identified as Core partner companies may not succeed.  

We have identified certain partner companies that we believe offer the greatest long-term value as Core partner companies. We cannot ensure 
that the companies we have identified as Core partner companies are those that actually have the greatest long-term value proposition or are 
those to which we will continue to allocate capital. Although we have identified certain of our partner companies as Core partner companies, this 
categorization does not necessarily imply that every one of our Core partner companies is a success at this time or will become successful in the 
future. There is no guarantee that a Core partner company will remain categorized as Core or that it will be able to successfully continue 
operations.  
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  •   fluctuations in the market price of the common stock of Blackboard and GoIndustry, our publicly-traded partner companies, which are 
likely to affect the price of our Common Stock; 

  

  •   the fact that many of our partner companies have limited operating histories, have not yet attained significant revenues, are operating at 
or near break-even and may not achieve profitability in the near-term or at all; 

  

  •   decreased spending on information technology software and services and elongated sales cycles, which may prevent our partner 
companies from succeeding; and 

  

  •   intensifying competition for the products and services our partner companies offer, which could lead to the failure of some of our 
partner companies. 
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We have had a general history of losses and expect continued losses in the foreseeable future.  

We have had significant operating losses and, excluding the effect of any future non-operating gains, such as from the sale of partner companies, 
we expect to continue incurring operating losses in the future. As a result, we may not have sufficient resources to expand or maintain our 
operations in the future. We can give no assurances as to when or whether we will achieve profitability, and if we ever have profits, we may not 
be able to sustain them.  

Certain of our partner companies have a limited operating history and may never be profitable.  

Certain of our partner companies are early-stage companies with limited operating histories, have significant historical losses and may never be 
profitable. Many of these companies have incurred substantial costs to develop and market their products and expand operations, have incurred 
net losses and cannot fund their cash needs from operations. Operating expenses of these companies could increase in the foreseeable future as 
they continue to develop products, increase sales and marketing efforts and expand operations.  

Even if a number of our partner companies achieve profitability, we may not be able to extract cash from such companies, which could have 
a negative impact on our operations.  

One of our goals is to help our partner companies achieve profitability. Even if a number of our partner companies do meet that goal, we may not 
be able to access cash generated by such partner companies to fund our own operations, which could have a negative impact on our operations.  

Our partner companies may not be able to compete successfully.  

If our partner companies are unable to compete successfully against their competitors, our partner companies may fail. Competition for 
information technology and e-commerce products and services is intense. As the markets for information technology and e-commerce grow, we 
expect that competition will intensify. Barriers to entry are minimal and competitors can offer products and services at a relatively low cost. Our 
partner companies compete with established information systems and management consulting firms, as well as traditional distribution channels 
and other online providers, for a share of a customer’s purchasing budget for information technology and consulting services and related 
materials and supplies.  

In addition, some of our partner companies compete to attract and retain a critical mass of buyers and sellers. Many companies offer competitive 
solutions that compete with one or more of our partner companies. We expect that additional companies will offer competing solutions on a 
stand-alone or combined basis in the future. Furthermore, our partner companies’ competitors may develop products or services that are superior 
to, or have greater market acceptance than, the solutions offered by our partner companies.  

Many of our partner companies’ competitors have greater brand recognition and greater financial, marketing and other resources than our partner 
companies. This may place our partner companies at a disadvantage in responding to their competitors’ pricing strategies, technological 
advances, advertising campaigns, strategic partnerships and other initiatives.  

Our partner companies may fail to retain significant customers.  

During the years ended 2006 and 2005, approximately 10% and 14%, respectively, of our consolidated revenue relates to a single customer of 
ICG Commerce. If our partner companies are not able to retain significant customers, such partner companies and our results of operations and 
financial position could be adversely affected.  
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The inability of our partner companies’ customers to pay their obligations to them in a timely manner, if at all, could have an adverse effect 
on our partner companies.  

Some of the customers of our partner companies may have inadequate financial resources to meet all their obligations. If one or more significant 
customers are unable to pay amounts owed to a partner company, such partner company’s results of operations and financial condition could be 
adversely affected.  

When we divest partner company interests, we may be unable to obtain maximum value for such interests.  

When we divest all or part of an interest in a partner company, we may not receive maximum value for our position. We may divest our interests 
in partner companies to generate cash or for strategic reasons. For partner companies with publicly-traded stock, we may be unable to sell our 
interest at then-quoted market prices. Because we hold significant stakes of securities in thinly-traded public companies, we may have difficulty 
selling our interest in such companies. Furthermore, for those partner companies that do not have publicly-traded stock, the realizable value of 
our interests may ultimately prove to be lower than the carrying value currently reflected in our Consolidated Financial Statements. We 
continually evaluate the carrying value of our ownership interests in and advances to each of our partner companies for possible impairment 
based on achievement of business plan objectives and milestones, the value of each ownership interest in the partner company relative to 
carrying value, the financial condition and prospects of the partner company and other relevant factors. We cannot guarantee that we will receive 
maximum value in connection with the disposition of our stakes in partner companies. Additionally, we may be unable to find buyers for certain 
of our assets, which could adversely affect our business.  

We may not maintain or be able to increase our ownership stakes in high growth partner companies.  

One of our strategies is to maintain and increase our ownership in a small group of companies that we believe have major growth opportunities. 
We may not be able to achieve this goal because of limited resources and/or the unwillingness of other stockholders of such companies to enter 
into a transaction that would result in an increase in our ownership stake. Moreover, certain transactional growth opportunities, such as mergers 
and consolidations, may arise with respect to any of these select partner companies that would result in us owning a smaller percentage of the 
surviving or resulting company in the merger or consolidation (or an affiliate of any such company) than we held in our partner company prior to 
the consummation of any such transaction. In the event that any of these select partner companies enters into such a transaction, with or without 
our support, we may have a decreased ability to direct the policies and affairs of the partner company or the surviving entity following the 
consummation of the transaction.  

We may have to buy, sell or retain assets when we would otherwise choose not to in order to avoid registration under the Investment 
Company Act, which would impact our investment strategy.  

We believe that we are actively engaged in the businesses of information technology and e-commerce through our network of subsidiaries and 
companies that we are considered to “control.” Under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended (the “Investment Company Act”), a 
company is considered to control another company if it owns more than 25% of that company’s voting securities and is the largest stockholder of 
such company. A company may be required to register as an investment company if more than 45% of its total assets consist of, and more than 
45% of its income/loss and revenue attributable to it over the last four quarters is derived from, ownership interests in companies that it does not 
control. Because many of our partner companies are not majority-owned subsidiaries, and because we own 25% or less of the voting securities of 
a number of our partner companies, changes in the value of our interests in our partner companies and the income/loss and revenue attributable 
to our partner companies could subject us to regulation under the Investment Company Act unless we take precautionary steps. For example, in 
order to avoid having excessive income from “non-controlled” interests, we may not sell minority interests we would otherwise want to sell or 
we may have to generate non-investment income by selling interests in partner companies that we are considered to control. We may also need 
to ensure that we retain more than 25% ownership interests in our partner companies after any equity offerings. In addition, we may have to 
acquire additional income or loss generating majority-owned or controlled interests that we might not  
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otherwise have acquired or may not be able to acquire “non-controlling” interests in companies that we would otherwise want to acquire. It is not 
feasible for us to be regulated as an investment company because the Investment Company Act rules are inconsistent with our strategy of 
actively managing, operating and promoting collaboration among our network of partner companies. On August 23, 1999, the SEC granted our 
request for an exemption under Section 3(b)(2) of the Investment Company Act declaring us to be primarily engaged in a business other than that 
of investing, reinvesting, owning, holding or trading in securities. This exemptive order reduces, but it does not eliminate, the risk that we may 
have to take action to avoid registration as an investment company.  

Our accounting estimates with respect to the ultimate recoverability of our basis in our partner companies could change materially in the 
near term.  

Our accounting estimates with respect to the useful life and ultimate recoverability of our carrying basis, including goodwill, in our partner 
companies could change in the near-term, and the effect of such changes on the financial statements could be significant. In the first quarter of 
2000, we announced several significant acquisitions which were financed principally with shares of our stock and based on the price of our stock 
at that time, that were valued in excess of $1.0 billion. Based on our periodic review of our partner company holdings, we have recorded 
cumulative impairment charges of $1.7 billion to write off certain partner company holdings, primarily in 2000, 2001 and 2002. As of 
December 31, 2006, our recorded amount of carrying basis including goodwill is not impaired, but we cannot assure that our future results will 
confirm this assessment. We performed our latest annual impairment test during the fourth quarter of 2006 and will perform our next annual 
impairment test in the fourth quarter of 2007. In 2005, in conjunction with the CommerceQuest and Metastorm merger, we reevaluated our then 
current carrying value of CommerceQuest goodwill and recorded a goodwill impairment charge of $1.8 million and a $0.9 million intangible 
asset charge. It is possible that a significant write-down or write-off of partner company carrying basis, including goodwill, may be required in 
the future, or that a significant loss will be recorded in the future upon the sale of a partner company. A write-down or write-off of this type 
could cause a decline in the price of our common stock.  

The loss of any of our or our partner companies’ executive officers or other key personnel or our or our partner companies’ inability to 
attract additional key personnel could disrupt our business and operations.  

If one or more of our executive officers or key personnel, or our partner companies’ executive officers or key personnel were unable or unwilling 
to continue in their present positions, or if we or our partner companies were unable to hire qualified personnel, our business and operations 
could be disrupted and our operating results and financial condition could be seriously harmed. The success of some of our partner companies 
also depends on their having highly trained technical and marketing personnel. A shortage in the number of trained technical and marketing 
personnel could limit the ability of our partner companies to increase sales of their existing products and services and launch new product 
offerings.  

Our partner companies could make financial or other business decisions that are not in our best interests or that we do not agree with, which 
could impair the value of our partner company interests.  

Although we generally seek a significant equity interest and participation in the management of our partner companies, we may not be able to 
control significant financial or other business decisions of our partner companies. In addition, although we currently own a controlling interest in 
several of our partner companies, we may not maintain a controlling interest. Equity interests in partner companies in which we lack control or 
share control involve additional risks that could cause the performance of our interest and our operating results to suffer, including the 
management or a significant equity holder of a partner company having economic or business interests or objectives that are different from ours 
and partner companies or their significant equity holders disagreeing with our positions with respect to the financial or operating decisions made 
by the partner Companies.  

Our inability to prevent dilution of our ownership interests in our partner companies or our inability to otherwise have a controlling influence 
over the management and operations of our partner companies could  
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have an adverse impact on our status under the Investment Company Act. Our inability to adequately control our partner companies could also 
prevent us from assisting them, or could prevent us from liquidating our interest in them at a time or at a price that is favorable to us. 
Additionally, our partner companies may not collaborate with each other or act in ways that are consistent with our business strategy. These 
factors could hamper our ability to capture value on our interests and cause us to recognize losses on our interests in partner companies.  

Our stakes in some partner companies have been and are likely to be diluted, which could materially reduce the value of our stake in such 
partner companies.  

Since we allocate our financial resources to certain partner companies, our ownership interests in other partner companies have been and are 
likely to continue to be diluted due to our decision not to participate in financings. Additionally, in connection with new rounds of financing, our 
partner companies may create liquidation preferences that are senior to existing preferences. If we do not participate in these rounds, our rights to 
receive preferences upon a sale of the Company may be diminished at certain valuations. This dilution and the creation of senior liquidation 
preferences could result in a reduction in the value of our stakes in such partner companies.  

We may compete with some of our partner companies, and our partner companies may compete with each other, which could deter 
companies from partnering with us and may limit future business opportunities.  

We may compete with our partner companies to acquire interests in information technology and e-commerce companies, and our partner 
companies may compete with each other for information technology e-commerce opportunities. This competition may deter companies from 
partnering with us and may limit our business opportunities.  

We have implemented certain anti-takeover provisions that could make it more difficult for a third party to acquire us.  

Provisions of our amended certificate of incorporation and bylaws, as well as provisions of Delaware law, could make it more difficult for a third 
party to acquire us, even if doing so would be beneficial to our stockholders. Our amended certificate of incorporation provides that our board of 
directors may issue preferred stock without stockholder approval and also provides for a staggered board of directors. We are subject to the 
provisions of Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law, which restricts certain business combinations with interested stockholders. 
Additionally, we have a rights agreement which has the effect of discouraging any person or group from beneficially owning more than 15% of 
our outstanding Common Stock unless our board has amended the plan or redeemed the rights. The combination of these provisions may inhibit 
a non-negotiated merger or other business combination.  

Some of our partner companies may be unable to protect their proprietary rights and may infringe on the proprietary rights of others.  

The complexity of international trade secret, copyright, trademark and patent law, coupled with the limited resources of our partner companies 
and the demands of quick delivery of products and services to market, create the risk that our partner companies will be unable to protect their 
proprietary rights. Further, the nature of internet business demands that considerable detail about their innovative processes and techniques be 
exposed to competitors, because it must be presented on the websites in order to attract clients. Some of our partner companies also license 
content from third parties, and it is possible that they could become subject to infringement actions based upon the content licensed from those 
third parties. Our partner companies generally obtain representations as to the origin and ownership of such licensed content. However, these 
representations may not adequately protect them. Any claims against our partner companies’ proprietary rights, with or without merit, could 
subject our partner companies to costly litigation and the diversion of their technical and management personnel. If our partner companies incur 
costly litigation and their personnel are not effectively deployed, the expenses and losses incurred by our partner companies will increase and 
their profits, if any, will decrease.  
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Government regulation of the internet and e-commerce may harm our partner companies’ businesses.  

Government regulation of the internet and e-commerce continues to evolve and unfavorable changes could harm our partner companies’ 
respective businesses. Our partner companies are subject to general business regulations and laws specifically governing the internet and e-
commerce. Such existing and future laws and regulations may impede the growth of the internet or other online services. These regulations and 
laws may cover taxation, user privacy, pricing content, copyrights, distribution, electronic contracts, consumer protection, the provision of online 
payment services, broadband residential internet access and the characteristics and quality of products and services. The scope of the 
applicability of existing laws governing issues such as property ownership, sales and other taxes, libel and personal privacy to the internet and e-
commerce continues to evolve. Unfavorable resolution of these issues may harm our partner companies’ businesses.  

Our partner companies that publish or distribute content over the internet may be subject to legal liability.  

Some of our partner companies may be subject to legal claims relating to the content on their websites, or the downloading and distribution of 
this content. Claims could involve matters such as defamation, invasion of privacy and copyright infringement. Providers of internet products 
and services have been sued in the past, sometimes successfully, based on the content of material. In addition, some of the content provided by 
our partner companies on their websites is drawn from data compiled by other parties, including governmental and commercial sources. The data 
may have errors. If any of our partner companies’ website content is improperly used or if any of our partner companies supply incorrect 
information an unexpected liability could result. Any of our partner companies that incur this type of unexpected liability may not have 
insurance to cover the claim or its insurance may not provide sufficient coverage. If our partner companies incur substantial cost because of this 
type of unexpected liability, the expenses incurred by our partner companies will increase and their profits, if any, will decrease.  

Our partner companies’ computer and communications systems may fail, which may discourage parties from using our partner companies’ 
systems.  

Some of our partner companies’ businesses depend on the efficient and uninterrupted operation of their computer and communications hardware 
systems. Any system interruptions that cause our partner companies’ websites to be unavailable to web browsers may reduce the attractiveness 
of our partner companies’ websites to third parties. If third parties are unwilling to use our partner companies’ websites, our business, financial 
condition and operating results could be adversely affected. Interruptions could result from natural disasters as well as power loss, 
telecommunications failure and similar events.  

Our partner companies’ businesses may be disrupted if they are unable to upgrade their systems to meet increased demand.  

Capacity limits on some of our partner companies’ technology, transaction processing systems and network hardware and software may be 
difficult to project, and our partner companies may not be able to expand and upgrade their systems to meet increased use. As traffic on our 
partner companies’ websites continues to increase, they must expand and upgrade their technology, transaction processing systems and network 
hardware and software. Our partner companies may be unable to accurately project the rate of increase in use of their websites. In addition, our 
partner companies may not be able to expand and upgrade their systems and network hardware and software capabilities to accommodate 
increased use of their websites. If our partner companies are unable to appropriately upgrade their systems and network hardware and software, 
the operations and processes of our partner companies may be disrupted.  
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Our partner companies may be unable to acquire or maintain easily identifiable website addresses or prevent third parties from acquiring 
website addresses similar to theirs.  

Some of our partner companies hold various website addresses relating to their brands. These partner companies may not be able to prevent third 
parties from acquiring website addresses that are similar to their addresses, which could adversely affect the use by businesses of our partner 
companies’ websites. In these instances, our partner companies may not grow as we expect. The acquisition and maintenance of website 
addresses generally is regulated by governmental agencies and their designees. The regulation of website addresses in the United States and in 
foreign countries is subject to change. As a result, our partner companies may not be able to acquire or maintain relevant website addresses in all 
countries where they conduct business. Furthermore, the relationship between regulations governing such addresses and laws protecting 
trademarks is unclear.  

If public and private capital markets are not favorable for the information technology and e-commerce sectors, we may not be able to execute 
on our strategy.  

The information technology and e-commerce markets have experienced significant volatility and the market for initial public offerings of 
information technology and e-commerce companies has experienced periods of weakness since 2000. If these markets are weak, we may not be 
able to create stockholder value by taking our partner companies public. In addition, reduced market interest in our industry may reduce the 
market value of our publicly-traded partner companies.  

Our operations and growth could be impaired by limitations on our and our partner companies’ ability to raise money.  

If the capital markets’ interest in our industry is depressed, our ability and the ability of our partner companies to grow and access the capital 
markets will be impaired. This may require us or our partner companies to take other actions, such as borrowing money on terms that may be 
unfavorable, or divesting of assets prematurely to raise capital. While we attempt to operate our business in such a manner so as to be 
independent from the capital markets, there is no assurance that we will be successful in doing so. Our partner companies are also dependent on 
the capital markets to raise capital for their own purposes.  

Because we have limited resources to dedicate to our partner companies, some of our partner companies may not be able to raise sufficient 
capital to sustain their operations.  

If our partner companies are not able to raise capital from us or other outside sources, then they may need to cease operations. Our allocation of 
resources to our partner companies is mostly discretionary. Because our resources and our ability to raise capital are limited, we may not commit 
to provide our partner companies with sufficient capital resources to allow them to reach a cash flow positive position. We allocate our resources 
to focus on those partner companies that we believe present the greatest potential to increase stockholder value. We cannot ensure that the 
companies we identified in this process are those that actually have the greatest value proposition. As a result of our limited resources, we will 
not allocate capital to all of our existing partner companies. Our decision to not provide additional capital support to some of our partner 
companies could have a material adverse impact on the operations of such partner companies.  
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ITEM 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments  

None.  

ITEM 2. Properties  

The location and general description of our properties as of February 28, 2007 are as follows:  

Corporate Offices  

Our corporate headquarters are located at 690 Lee Road, Suite 310 in an office facility located in Wayne, Pennsylvania, where we lease 
approximately 11,000 square feet.  

Partner Company Properties  

Our consolidated partner companies lease approximately 73,700 square feet of office, administrative, sales and marketing, operations and data 
center space, principally in California, Colorado, Georgia, Illinois, New York and Pennsylvania in the United States.  

ITEM 3. Legal Proceedings  

In May and June 2001, certain of the Company’s present directors, along with the Company, certain of its former directors, certain of its present 
and former officers and its underwriters, were named as defendants in nine class action complaints filed in the United States District Court for 
the Southern District of New York. The plaintiffs and the alleged classes they seek to represent include present and former stockholders of the 
Company. The complaints generally allege violations of Sections 11 and 12 of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), and 
Rule 10b-5 promulgated under the Exchange Act, based on, among other things, the dissemination of statements allegedly containing material 
misstatements and/or omissions concerning the commissions received by the underwriters of the initial public offering and follow-on public 
offering of the Company as well as failure to disclose the existence of purported agreements by the underwriters with some of the purchasers in 
these offerings to buy additional shares of the Company’s stock subsequently in the open market at pre-determined prices above the initial 
offering prices. The plaintiffs seek for themselves and the alleged class members an award of damages and litigation costs and expenses. The 
claims in these cases have been consolidated for pre-trial purposes (together with claims against other issuers and underwriters) before one judge 
in the Southern District of New York federal court. In April 2002, a consolidated, amended complaint was filed against these defendants which 
generally alleges the same violations and also refers to alleged misstatements or omissions that relate to the recommendations regarding the 
Company’s stock by analysts employed by the underwriters. In June and July 2002, defendants, including the Company defendants, filed 
motions to dismiss plaintiffs’ complaints on numerous grounds. The Company’s motion was denied in its entirety in an opinion dated 
February 19, 2003. In July 2003, a committee of the Company’s Board of Directors approved a proposed settlement with the plaintiffs in this 
matter. The settlement would provide for, among other things, a release of the Company and of the individual defendants (who had been 
previously dismissed without prejudice) for the wrongful conduct alleged in the amended complaint. The Company would agree to undertake 
other responsibilities under the partial settlement, including agreeing to assign away, not assert, or release certain potential claims the Company 
may have against its underwriters. Any direct financial impact of the proposed settlement is expected to be borne by the Company’s insurers. 
The complete terms of the proposed settlement is on file with the District Court. The District Court overseeing the litigation granted preliminary 
approval of the settlement in February 2005, subject to a change in the terms to bar cross-claims by defendant underwriters for contribution, but 
not for indemnification or otherwise. The parties to the settlement agreed on revised language to effectuate the changes regarding 
contribution/indemnification claims requested by the District Court and such language has been accepted by the District Court. A final fairness 
hearing on the settlement was held on April 24, 2006. The District Court has not yet ruled with respect to the settlement. On December 5, 2006, 
the Second Circuit Court of Appeals reversed the certification of plaintiff classes in six actions related to other issuers that had been designated 
as test cases with respect to the non-settling  
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defendants in those matters and made other rulings that drew into question the legal viability of the claims in those cases. While the Court of 
Appeals decision does not automatically determine those issues with respect to the case against the Company, it is at least a substantial precedent 
as to those issues. As a result, it is unclear when, or if, the District Court will approve the proposed class settlement in the case against the 
Company or if any party to that settlement will seek to withdraw its agreement to it. The District Court has deferred all further proceedings in the 
litigation pending resolution of these issues as well as of efforts to ask the Court of Appeals to reconsider its decision.  

ITEM 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders  

No matter was submitted to a vote of security holders, through the solicitation of proxies or otherwise, during the fourth quarter of fiscal year 
2006.  

PART II  

ITEM 5. Market For Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities  

Market Information. Our common stock is currently traded on the NASDAQ Global Market under the symbol “ICGE.” We transferred from 
the NASDAQ National Market (renamed the NASDAQ Global Market in 2006) to the NASDAQ SmallCap Market effective June 10, 2002 and 
transferred back to the NASDAQ National Market effective March 3, 2005. Our initial public offering of stock occurred on August 5, 1999 at 
$120.00 (post-split) per share on the NASDAQ National Market. In December 1999, the Company declared and paid a 100% stock dividend. In 
May 2004, the Company implemented a one-for-twenty reverse stock split. All share information in this Report reflects this dividend and this 
reverse stock split. The price range per share reflected in the table below is the highest and lowest sale price for our stock (post split) as reported 
by the NASDAQ National Market, the NASDAQ Global Market and the NASDAQ SmallCap Market during each quarterly period of our two 
most recent fiscal years.  

As of February 28, 2007, the last reported sale price for our common stock on the NASDAQ Global Market was $11.44 per share.  

Holders . As of February 28, 2007, there were 1,196 holders of record of our common stock, although there is a much larger number of 
beneficial owners.  

Dividends . We have never declared or paid cash dividends on our capital stock and we do not intend to pay cash dividends in the foreseeable 
future. We plan to retain any earnings for use in the operation of our business and to fund future growth.  

Stock Performance Graph  

The following graph shall not be deemed “filed” for purposes of Section 18 of the Exchange Act, or otherwise subject to the liabilities under that 
section, and shall not be deemed to be incorporated by reference into any filing of the Company under the Securities Act or the Exchange Act.  

The following graph presents a comparison of the Company’s stock performance with that of the Nasdaq Composite Index and the Goldman 
Sachs Technology Internet Index from December 31, 2001 to December 31, 2006.  

COMPARISON OF CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN* SINCE DECEMB ER 31, 2001  
AMONG INTERNET CAPITAL GROUP, INC.,  

THE NASDAQ COMPOSITE INDEX AND  
THE GSTI INTERNET INDEX  

                                                                  
    2006   2005 
    March 31   June 30   Sept. 30   Dec. 31   March 31   June 30   Sept. 30   Dec. 31 
    (1 st )   (2 nd )   (3 rd )   (4 th )   (1 st )   (2 nd )   (3 rd )   (4 th ) 

High    $ 10.04     $ 9.66     $ 9.65     $ 11.26     $ 9.37     $ 7.71     $ 8.96     $ 9.39   
Low    $ 7.90     $ 7.57     $ 8.05     $ 9.04     $ 6.85     $ 5.34     $ 6.59     $ 7.53   
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ITEM 6. Selected Consolidated Financial Data  

The following table summarizes certain selected historical consolidated financial information of ICG that has been derived from our audited 
Consolidated Financial Statements for each one-year period for the five years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, 2004, 2003 and 2002. The 
financial information may not be indicative of our future performance. The information set forth below should be read in conjunction with 
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and our Consolidated Financial Statements and the 
related Notes thereto included in this Report.  
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    Year Ended December 31,   
    2006     2005     2004     2003     2002   
    (in thousands, except per share data)   
Consolidated Statements of Operations Data:                                          
Revenue    $ 64,749     $ 47,568     $ 41,857     $ 57,915     $ 67,762   
Operating Expenses                                          

Cost of revenue      42,439       28,460       21,464       33,565       43,716   
Selling, general and administrative      42,108       40,795       31,239       43,138       73,257   
Research and development      8,755       12,276       8,660       13,705       23,031   
Amortization of intangibles      1,695       2,123       2,711       7,955       10,115   
Impairment related and other      178       3,448       758       (1,777 )     10,195   

     
  
    

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
  

Total operating expenses      95,175       87,102       64,832       96,586       160,314   
     

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
  

       (30,426 )     (39,534 )     (22,975 )     (38,671 )     (92,552 ) 
     

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
  

Other income (loss), net      34,605       135,489       (106,178 )     (58,706 )     91,526   
Interest income (expense), net      7,345       523       (3,630 )     (15,301 )     (19,393 ) 
     

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
  

Income (loss) before income taxes, minority interest and 
equity loss      11,524       96,478       (132,783 )     (112,678 )     (20,419 ) 

Income tax benefit (expense)      40       (18,640 )     —      —      (179 ) 
Minority interest      1,232       2,513       771       2,384       15,228   
Equity loss      (5,461 )     (6,703 )     (5,893 )     (14,540 )     (81,114 ) 
     

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
  

Income (loss) from continuing operations      7,335       73,648       (137,905 )     (124,834 )     (86,484 ) 
Income (loss) on discontinued operations      8,289       (1,130 )     2,588       (11,050 )     (15,735 ) 
     

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
  

Net income (loss)    $ 15,624     $ 72,518     $ (135,317 )   $ (135,884 )   $ (102,219 ) 
     

  

    

  

    

  

    

  

    

  

  

                                           
Basic Income (loss) Per Share:                                          
Income (loss) from continuing operations    $ 0.20     $ 1.98     $ (3.86 )   $ (8.25 )   $ (6.45 ) 
Income (loss) on discontinued operations      0.22       (0.03 )     0.07       (0.73 )     (1.18 ) 
     

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
  

Basic income (loss) per share    $ 0.42     $ 1.95     $ (3.79 )   $ (8.98 )   $ (7.63 ) 
     

  

    

  

    

  

    

  

    

  

  

Shares used in computation of basic income (loss) per 
share      37,570       37,109       35,713       15,130       13,400   

     

  

    

  

    

  

    

  

    

  

  

                                           
                                           
Diluted Income (loss) Per Share:                                          
Income (loss) from continuing operations    $ 0.19     $ 1.76     $ (3.86 )   $ (8.25 )   $ (6.45 ) 
Income (loss) on discontinued operations      0.22       (0.03 )     0.07       (0.73 )     (1.18 ) 
     

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
  

Diluted income (loss) per share    $ 0.41     $ 1.73     $ (3.79 )   $ (8.98 )   $ (7.63 ) 
Shares used in computation of diluted income (loss) per 

share      38,106       43,670       35,713       15,130       13,400   
                                           
Consolidated Balance Sheet Data :                                          
Cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments    $ 120,841     $ 147,912     $ 86,951     $ 77,590     $ 121,716   
Working capital (deficit)    $ 78,939     $ 140,504     $ 72,932     $ (124,479 )   $ 76,365   
Total assets    $ 354,427     $ 346,532     $ 277,606     $ 231,163     $ 366,246   
Other long-term debt, net of current portion    $ 544     $ 4,407     $ 11     $ 30     $ 7,290   
Senior convertible notes    $ 26,590     $ 37,000     $ 60,000     $ —    $ —  
Convertible subordinated notes    $ —    $ —    $ —    $ 173,919     $ 283,114   
Total stockholders’  equity (deficit)    $ 298,538     $ 256,245     $ 165,107     $ (19,294 )   $ (51,646 ) 
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ITEM 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations  

Introduction  

The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations contains forward-looking statements 
that involve risks and uncertainties. Our actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a 
result of certain factors, including those set forth elsewhere in this Report and the risks discussed in our other SEC filings. The following 
discussion should be read in conjunction with our audited Consolidated Financial Statements and the related Notes thereto included in this 
Report.  

Although we refer in this Report to companies in which we have acquired a convertible debt or an equity ownership interest as our “partner 
companies” and indicate that we have a “partnership” with these companies, we do not act as an agent or legal representative for any of our 
partner companies, we do not have the power or authority to legally bind any of our partner companies, and we do not have the types of 
liabilities in relation to our partner companies that a general partner of a partnership would have.  

The Consolidated Financial Statements include the consolidated accounts of Internet Capital Group, Inc., a company incorporated in Delaware, 
and its subsidiaries, both wholly-owned and consolidated (Internet Capital Group, Inc. and all such subsidiaries, are hereinafter referred to as 
“we,” “ICG,” the “Company” or “Internet Capital Group”), and have been prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting 
Principles in the United States of America (“GAAP”).  

Executive Summary  

The Company acquires and builds internet software and services companies that drive business productivity and reduce transaction costs 
between firms. The Company devotes its expertise and capital to maximizing the success of these platform companies that are delivering 
software and service applications to customers worldwide. We view the Company as primarily having two components: Corporate and our 
partner companies. Corporate primarily holds our cash, marketable securities and ownership interests in partner companies. Our partner 
companies are grouped into two operating segments consisting of the Core segment and the Other Holdings segment. The Core operating 
segment includes those partner companies in which the Company’s management takes a very active role in providing strategic direction and 
management assistance. The Other Holdings operating segment includes holdings in companies where, in general, we do not have a controlling 
ownership stake, we provide less operational support and the partner company is managed to provide the greatest near-term stockholder value. 
From time to time, partner companies are disposed of by ICG or cease operations.  

The various interests that we acquire in our partner companies are accounted for under one of three accounting methods: the consolidation 
method, the equity method or the cost method. The applicable accounting method is generally determined based on our voting interest in a 
partner company. Generally, if we own more than 50% of the outstanding voting securities of a partner company, and for which other 
stockholders do not possess the right to affect significant management decisions, a partner company’s accounts are reflected within our 
Consolidated Financial Statements. Generally, if we own between 20% and 50% of the outstanding voting securities, a partner company’s 
accounts are not reflected within our Consolidated Financial Statements; however, our share of the earnings or losses of the partner company is 
reflected in the caption “Equity loss” in our consolidated statements of operations. Partner companies not accounted for under either the 
consolidation or the equity method of accounting are accounted for under the cost method of accounting. Under this method, our share of the 
earnings or losses of these companies is not included in our consolidated statements of operations.  

Because we own significant interests in information technology and e-commerce companies, many of which have generated net losses, we have 
experienced, and expect to continue to experience, significant volatility in our quarterly results. While many of our partner companies have 
consistently reported losses, we have recorded net income in certain periods and experienced significant volatility from period-to-period due to 
infrequently occurring transactions and other events relating to our ownership interests in partner companies.  
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These transactions and events are described in more detail in our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements and include dispositions of, and 
changes to, our partner company ownership interests, dispositions of our holdings of marketable securities and debt repurchases or debt for 
equity exchanges.  

Liquidity and Capital Resources  

The following table summarizes our and our consolidated subsidiaries’ cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, short-term investments, 
marketable securities and senior convertible notes as of December 31, 2006 and 2005:  

We believe existing cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments and proceeds from the potential sales of all or a portion of our interests in 
certain marketable securities and partner companies to be sufficient to fund our cash requirements for the foreseeable future, including future 
commitments to partner companies, debt obligations and general operations requirements. At December 31, 2006, as well as the date of this 
filing, we were not obligated for any significant funding and guarantee commitments to existing partner companies. We will continue to evaluate 
acquisition opportunities and may acquire additional ownership interests in new and existing partner companies in the next twelve months; 
however, such acquisitions will generally be made at our discretion.  

Consolidated working capital decreased by $61.6 million from December 31, 2005 to December 31, 2006, primarily due to partner company 
ownership interest acquisitions in new and existing partner companies in 2006, convertible note repurchases in May 2006 and the classification 
of our senior convertible notes as a current liability as of December 31, 2006 due to repayment in February 2007.  
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    December 31, 2006     December 31, 2005   
            Consolidated                     Consolidated         
    Corporate     Subsidiaries     Total     Corporate     Subsidiaries     Total   
    (in thousands)   
Cash and cash equivalents    $ 104,249     $ 16,559     $ 120,808     $ 129,555     $ 13,104     $ 142,659   
Restricted Cash (1)      —      33       33       —      253       253   
Short-term investments      —      —      —      —      5,000       5,000   
     

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
  

     $ 104,249     $ 16,592     $ 120,841     $ 129,555     $ 18,357     $ 147,912   
                                                   
Marketable securities    $ 66,075     $ —    $ 66,075     $ 63,425     $ —    $ 63,425   
                                                   
Senior convertible notes due April 2009 

(2)    $ (26,590 )   $ —    $ (26,590 )   $ (37,000 )   $ —    $ (37,000 ) 

  

(1)   Restricted cash at December 31, 2006 and 2005 does not include $207 and $696, respectively, of long-term restricted cash included in 
“Other”  assets on the Company’s Consolidated balance sheets. 

  

(2)   ICG repurchased all outstanding senior convertible notes on February 12, 2007 for approximately $37.1 million in cash. 
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Summary of Statements of Cash Flows  

The decrease in cash used in operating activities from 2005 to 2006 is due to a reduction in operating loss in 2006 versus 2005 and the receipt of 
a $8.1 million refund received in 2006 on estimated federal income tax payments paid in 2005 of $26.9 million.  

The increase in cash used in operating activities from 2004 to 2005 is primarily the result of the payment of $26.9 million in estimated federal 
income taxes in 2005 versus no income taxes paid in 2004.  

The increase in cash used in investing activities from 2005 to 2006 is the result of net acquisitions of ownership interests in partner companies in 
2006 versus net sales of ownership interests in partner companies in 2005. The decrease in cash used in investing activities from 2004 to 2005 is 
the result of increased net sales of ownership interests in partner companies and marketable securities in 2005, versus net purchases of short-term 
investments in 2004.  

The decrease in cash used in financing activities from 2005 to 2006 is primarily related to proceeds from employee loan repayments in 2006 and 
the fact that there were less senior convertible notes repurchased in 2006 versus 2005. The variability in cash provided by (used in) financing 
activities from 2004 through 2005 is primarily the result of repurchases of $23.0 million of principal of convertible notes for $28.4 million in 
cash in 2005 versus the net issuance of $18.7 million of convertible notes in 2004.  

We and our consolidated subsidiaries are involved in various claims and legal actions arising in the ordinary course of business. We do not 
expect the ultimate liability with respect to these actions will materially affect our financial position or cash flows.  

Contractual Cash Obligations and Commercial Commitments  

The following table summarizes our contractual cash obligations and commercial commitments as of December 31, 2006:  

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements  

We are not involved in any off-balance sheet arrangements that have or are reasonably likely to have a material future effect on our financial 
condition, changes in financial condition, revenues or expenses, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or capital resources.  
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    Year Ended December 31, 
    2006   2005   2004 
            (in thousands)         
Cash used in operating activities    $ (7,203 )   $ (51,055 )   $ (24,153 ) 
Cash provided by (used in) investing activities    $ (7,141 )   $ 192,693     $ (34,243 ) 
Cash provided by (used in) financing activities    $ (9,454 )   $ (29,179 )   $ 12,781   

                                          
    Payments due by period   
    Total     Less than 1 Year     2-3 Years     4-5 Years     More than 5 years   
                    (in thousands)                   
Senior convertible notes    $ 26,590     $ 26,590     $ —    $ —    $ —  
Operating leases      5,482       1,560       2,352       1,311       259   
Other borrowings      1,491       947       544       —      —  
     

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
  

     $ 33,563     $ 29,097     $ 2,896     $ 1,311     $ 259   
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Our Partner Companies  

As of December 31, 2006, we owned interests in 18 partner companies that are categorized below based on segment and method of accounting.  

Results of Operations  

The following summarizes the unaudited selected financial information related to our segments. Each segment includes the results of our 
consolidated partner companies and records our share of the earnings and losses of partner companies accounted for under the equity method of 
accounting. The partner companies included within the segments are consistently the same 18 partner companies for 2006, 2005 and 2004. 
Additionally, our recently added partner companies, Channel Intelligence, Vcommerce and WhiteFence are included in the Core segment from 
their respective acquisition dates. The method of accounting for any particular partner company may change based on our ownership interest.  

“Discontinued Operations and Dispositions” are those partner companies that have been sold or ceased operations and are no longer included in 
a segment for all periods presented. Corporate expenses represent the general and administrative expenses of our business operations, which 
include supporting the partner companies and operating as a public company. The measure of segment net loss reviewed by us does not include 
items such as gains on the disposition of partner company ownership interests and marketable securities holdings, losses on convertible note 
repurchases and transactions, income taxes and accounting changes, which are reflected in other reconciling items in the information that 
follows.  
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CORE PARTNER COMPANIES (%Voting Interest) 

Consolidated   Equity   Cost 

ICG Commerce (66%)    Channel Intelligence (40%)   (none) 
Investor Force (80%)    Freeborders (34%)     
     Marketron (38%)     
     Metastorm (41%)     
     StarCite (26%)     
     Vcommerce (46%)     
     WhiteFence (39%)     
          

OTHER HOLDINGS COMPANIES (%Voting Interest) 
Consolidated   Equity   Cost 

(none)    GoIndustry (35%) (2)   Anthem Ventures Fund, L.P. (9%) 
         Blackboard (1) 

         Captive Capital Corporation (5%) 
         Creditex Group, Inc. (13%) 
         Emptoris, Inc. (5%) 
         Entegrity Solutions Corporation (2%) 
         Jamcracker, Inc. (2%) 
         Tibersoft Corporation (5%) 

  

(1)   As of February 28, 2007, we own 2,187,060 shares of Blackboard (NASDAQ:BBBB) (see “Note 4 — Marketable Securities” to 
Consolidated Financial Statements.) 

  

(2)   As of February 28, 2007, we own 69,177,300 shares, or 35% of the voting securities, of GoIndustry. GoIndustry’s common stock is traded 
on the AIM market of the London Stock Exchange under ticker symbol GOI. See “Note 3 — Ownership Interests in Partner Companies, 
Goodwill and Intangibles, net.” ) 
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For the Years Ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004  

Results of Operations — Core Companies  

The following presentation of our Results of Operations — Core Companies includes the results of our consolidated Core partner companies and 
our share of the results of our equity method Core partner companies.  

Revenue  

Revenue increased $17.1 million from $47.6 million in 2005 to $64.7 million in 2006. The primary drivers of the revenue increase are increased 
revenues at ICG Commerce and StarCite being consolidated through December 29, 2006 versus only the second half of 2005; the increase was 
offset by CommerceQuest, Inc. (“CommerceQuest”) being deconsolidated in the fourth quarter of 2005. On December 29, 2006, one of our 
consolidated companies, StarCite, completed a transaction to consolidate with OnVantage, Inc. Subsequent to the transaction, our ownership 
interest in the combined entity will be accounted for under the equity method of accounting and StarCite revenue will not be consolidated.  

Revenue increased $5.7 million from $41.9 million in 2004 to $47.6 million in 2005. The primary driver of the revenue increase is the 
consolidation of Investor Force and StarCite in 2005, which increased revenue  
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Segment Information 

(in thousands) 
                            Reconciling Items     
                            Discontinued                     
            Other   Total   Operations and                   Consolidated 
    Core   Holdings   Segment   Dispositions   Corporate   Other   Results 

For The Year Ended 
December 31, 2006                                                          
Revenues    $ 64,749     $ —    $ 64,749     $ —    $ —    $ —    $ 64,749   
Net income (loss)    $ (13,911 )   $ 592     $ (13,319 )   $ 6,646     $ (13,788 )     36,085     $ 15,624   
                                                           
For The Year Ended 
December 31, 2005                                                          
Revenues    $ 47,568     $ —    $ 47,568     $ —    $ —    $ —    $ 47,568   
Net income (loss)    $ (23,120 )   $ (4,852 )   $ (27,972 )   $ 1,184     $ (18,473 )   $ 117,779       72,518   
                                                           
For The Year Ended 
December 31, 2004                                                          
Revenues    $ 41,857     $ —    $ 41,857     $ —    $ —    $ —    $ 41,857   
Net income (loss)    $ (10,856 )   $ (2,215 )   $ (13,071 )   $ 1,804     $ (18,116 )   $ (105,934 )   $ (135,317 ) 

                          
    Year Ended December 31,   
    2006     2005     2004   
            (in thousands)           
Selected data:                          
Revenue    $ 64,749     $ 47,568     $ 41,857   
     

  
    

  
    

  
  

Cost of revenue      (42,439 )     (28,460 )     (21,464 ) 
Selling, general and administrative      (21,100 )     (22,420 )     (17,194 ) 
Research and development      (8,755 )     (12,276 )     (8,660 ) 
Amortization of intangibles      (1,829 )     (2,123 )     (2,711 ) 
Impairment related and other      (178 )     (347 )     (282 ) 

     
  
    

  
    

  
  

Operating expenses    $ (74,301 )     (65,626 )     (50,311 ) 
     

  
    

  
    

  
  

Interest and other      51       (897 )     492   
Equity loss      (4,410 )     (4,165 )     (2,894 ) 
     

  
    

  
    

  
  

Net loss      (13,911 )   $ (23,120 )   $ (10,856 ) 
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$8.1 million versus 2004. The residual decrease is due to lower revenues related to CommerceQuest prior to deconsolidation, as well as the 
deconsolidation of CommerceQuest. These decreases were offset by increased revenues at ICG Commerce.  

Operating Expenses  

Operating Expenses increased $8.7 million, from $65.6 million in 2005 to $74.3 million in 2006. The increase was the result of the consolidation 
of StarCite through December 29, 2006 versus only the second half of 2005 and increased operating expenses at ICG Commerce.  

Operating expenses increased $15.3 million, from $50.3 million in 2004 to $65.6 million in 2005. The primary driver of the operating expense 
increase is due to the consolidation of Investor Force and StarCite in 2005, which increased operating expenses by $16.3 million from 2004. The 
residual decrease is related to CommerceQuest’s reduced operating expenses in reaction to lower revenue, offset by increased operating expenses 
at ICG Commerce.  

Equity Loss  

A portion of our net results from our Core companies is derived from those partner companies in which we hold a substantial minority ownership 
interest. Our share of the income or losses of these companies is recorded in our Consolidated Statement of Operations under “Equity loss.”  

Our share of net income and net losses of Core companies increased to a loss of $(4.4) million in 2006, from $(4.2) million in 2005 and from 
$(2.9) million in 2004.  

The total revenue of our five Core equity method partner companies increased from $45.5 million in 2004 to $50.5 million in 2005 to 
$98.7 million in 2006. The increases are primarily the result of increased revenue at our Core equity method companies involved with offshore 
IT outsourcing, as well as the additions of Metastorm and WhiteFence in 2005 and Vcommerce in 2006.  

Our Core equity method companies reported aggregate net loss of $(13.6) million in 2006, compared to net loss of $(9.6) million in 2005 and 
$(13.6) million in 2004. Net loss for the 2006 period increased primarily due to the acquisition of partner companies. Accordingly, our share of 
the net income and net losses increased in the year ended December 31, 2006 from the same period in 2005. Results for the 2005 period 
improved over the 2004 period, primarily due to higher revenue, offset by higher spending levels in the 2005 period to deliver product, services 
and sales. Accordingly, our share of the net income and net losses of these partner companies increased in the 2005 period versus the 2004 
period.  
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Results of Operations — Other Holdings Companies  

The following presentation of our Results of Operations — Other Holdings Companies includes the results of our consolidated Other Holdings 
partner companies and our share of the results of our equity method Other Holdings partner companies.  

Equity loss decreased in 2006 from 2005, primarily due to improved results of GoIndustry. GoIndustry’s net loss in 2005 included an 
impairment of its goodwill. Equity loss increased in 2005 from 2004, due to the increase in our share of the net loss of GoIndustry in 2005 from 
2004.  

Results of Operations — Reconciling Items  

Discontinued Operations and Dispositions  

The following is a summary of the components included in “Discontinued Operations and Dispositions,” a reconciling item for segment 
reporting purposes:  

In 2006, Investor Force completed the sale of its database division to Morningstar, Inc. (“Morningstar”) for $10.0 million. In 2005, ICG 
Commerce entered into an agreement to sell its German subsidiary for nominal consideration. In 2004 and 2006, the Company received 
$3.0 million and $0.1 million, respectively, of additional proceeds from the sale of the assets of Delphion, Inc. In accordance with Statement of 
Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) SFAS No. 144, these three operations have been treated as discontinued operations. Accordingly, the 
operating results of these discontinued operations have been presented separately from continuing operations and include the gains or losses 
recognized on disposition. See Note 7 to our Consolidated Financial Statements.  

Cash proceeds to Investor Force of $9.0 million were received in August 2006, and $1.0 million was placed into escrow, with an anticipated 
release in August 2007. The Company recorded a gain of approximately $7.0 million on this transaction in 2006. The remaining $1.2 million of 
income from discontinued operations related to the 2006 operating activity of the Investor Force database division.  

The impact to our consolidated results of equity method partner companies in which we have sold or disposed of our ownership interest, or 
which have ceased operations during 2006, 2005 and 2004 is also included in the caption “Dispositions” for segment reporting purposes. Equity 
income (loss) relating to these entities increased in 2006 due to additional losses at eCredit.com, Inc. (“eCredit”) and ComputerJobs.com, Inc. 
(“ComputerJobs”). Equity income (loss) relating to these entities improved from 2004 to 2005, primarily due to the improvement in operating 
results of LinkShare Corporation (“Linkshare”) and the disposal of partner companies.  
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    Year Ended December 31,   
    2006     2005     2004   
    (in thousands)   
Selected data:                          
Revenue    $ —    $ —    $ —  
Operating expenses      —      —      —  
Interest and other      —      —      —  
Equity income (loss)      592       (4,852 )     (2,215 ) 
     

  
    

  
    

  
  

Net income (loss)    $ 592     $ (4,852 )   $ (2,215 ) 
     

  

    

  

    

  

  

                          
    Year Ended December 31,   
    2006     2005     2004   
    (in thousands)   
Discontinued operations    $ 8,289     $ (1,130 )   $ 2,588   
Equity income (loss) of partner companies sold/disposed of      (1,643 )     2,314       (784 ) 
     

  
    

  
    

  
  

Net income (loss)    $ 6,646     $ 1,184     $ 1,804   
     

  

    

  

    

  

  



Table of Contents  

Corporate  

General and Administrative  

Our general and administrative expenses increased $2.1 million in 2006 from 2005, primarily due to an increase in stock-based compensation of 
$3.3 million, offset by reductions in legal costs associated with the settlement of litigation.  

Our general and administrative expenses increased $4.7 million in 2005 from 2004, primarily due to an increase in stock-based compensation of 
$2.9 million, as well as increased legal costs associated with the settlement of litigation.  

Impairment Related and Other  

The charge in 2004 is due to settlement of a lease obligation for $0.5 million more than we had originally estimated.  

Interest Income/Expense  

The net $6.8 million increase in our interest income (expense) from 2005 to 2006 is attributable to a reduction in average principal amount of 
convertible notes outstanding from 2004 to 2006 and an increase in the average cash balance and interest rates during the same period.  
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    Year Ended December 31,   
    2006     2005     2004   
    (in thousands)   
                           
General and administrative    $ (20,874 )   $ (18,779 )   $ (14,045 ) 
Impairment related and other      —      —      (476 ) 
Interest income (expense), net      7,086       306       (3,595 ) 
     

  
    

  
    

  
  

Net loss    $ (13,788 )   $ (18,473 )   $ (18,116 ) 
     

  

    

  

    

  

  



Table of Contents  

Other  

Other Income (Loss), Net  

Other income (loss), net was income of $34.8 million in 2006 and income of $136.6 million in 2005 versus a loss of ($105.4) million in 2004. 
The income in 2006 and 2005 is primarily the result of gains on the sales of partner companies and marketable securities. The loss in 2004 is 
primarily attributable to the loss of $133.1 million on our debt-for-equity exchanges offset by sales of ownership interests in partner companies 
and marketable securities of $28.8 million. See Note 15 to our Consolidated Financial Statements.  

Income Tax  

Our net deferred tax asset of $573 million at December 31, 2006 consists of deferred tax assets of $595 million, relating primarily to partner 
company basis differences, capital and net operating loss carry forwards, offset by deferred tax liabilities of $22 million, primarily related to 
unrealized appreciation in available for sale securities. During 2001, we recorded a full valuation allowance against our net deferred tax assets 
that was maintained during 2004, 2005 and 2006. See Note 12 to our Consolidated Financial Statements.  

The 20.4% effective tax rate for 2005 differs from the 35% statutory rate, primarily due to the utilization of losses for which a valuation 
allowance had previously been provided. The amount of carry forward losses that we were permitted to utilize was limited due to the change in 
ownership experienced by us in 2004.  

Impairment Charges  

We continually evaluate the carrying values of our partner companies. Additionally, we operate in an industry that is rapidly evolving, extremely 
competitive and where many businesses have experienced difficulty in raising additional capital necessary to fund operating losses. Based on our 
periodic review of our partner company carrying values, impairment charges of $2.7 million and $1.3 million were recorded in 2005 and 2004, 
respectively. Additionally, we recorded other than temporary impairment charges related to our marketable securities totaling $1.3 million in 
2005 and $2.9 million in 2004. These charges are included in “Other income (loss)” above.  

Critical Accounting Policies  

Our discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based upon our Consolidated Financial Statements, which 
have been prepared in accordance with GAAP. The preparation of these financial statements requires us to make estimates and judgments that 
affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. On an ongoing 
basis, we evaluate our estimates, including those related to our interests in our partner companies, marketable securities, revenues, income taxes 
and commitments and contingencies. We base our estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that are believed to be 
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities. 
Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.  
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    Year Ended December 31,   
    2006     2005     2004   
    (in thousands)   
  
Other income (loss) (Note 15)    $ 34,813     $ 136,603     $ (105,438 ) 
Income tax benefit (expense)      40       (18,640 )     —  
Impairments      —      (2,697 )     (1,267 ) 
Minority interest      1,232       2,513       771   
     

  
    

  
    

  
  

Net income (loss)    $ 36,085     $ 117,779     $ (105,934 ) 
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We believe the following critical accounting policies are important to the presentation of our financial statements and require the most difficult, 
subjective and complex judgments.  

Valuation of Goodwill, Intangible Assets and Ownership Interests in Partner Companies  

We perform ongoing business reviews and perform annual goodwill impairment tests in accordance with SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other 
Intangible Assets” and other impairment tests in accordance with Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 18, “Equity Method 
Investments” and SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets” and use quantitative and qualitative 
measures to assess the need to record impairment losses on goodwill, intangible assets and ownership interests in our partner companies when 
impairment indicators are present. Where impairment indicators are present, we determine the amount of the impairment charge as the excess of 
the carrying value over the fair value. We determine fair value based on a combination of the discounted cash flow methodology, which is based 
upon converting expected future cash flows to present value, and the market approach, which includes analysis of market price multiples of 
companies engaged in lines of business similar to the company being evaluated. The market price multiples are selected and applied to the 
company based on relative performance, future prospects and risk profile of the company in comparison to the guideline companies. Significant 
assumptions relating to future operating results must be made when estimating the future cash flows associated with these companies. Significant 
assumptions relating to achievement of business plan objectives and milestones must be made when evaluating whether impairment indicators 
are present. Should unforeseen events occur or should operating trends change significantly, additional impairment losses could occur.  

Revenue Recognition  

ICG Commerce may assume all or a part of a customer’s procurement function as part of sourcing arrangements. Typically, in these 
engagements, ICG Commerce is paid a fixed fee agreed upon in advance and/or a fee based on a percentage of the amount spent by its 
customers’ respective purchasing department in the specified areas ICG Commerce manages. Additionally, in some cases, ICG Commerce has 
the opportunity to earn additional fees based on the level of savings achieved for customers. ICG Commerce recognizes revenue as earned which 
is typically over the life of the customer contract (which approximates the life of the customer relationship) and any additional fees as earned.  

StarCite was a consolidated company through December 29, 2006, at which time it merged with another company, reducing our ownership 
interest to 26%, and became an equity method company. StarCite’s revenues were primarily derived from hotel media marketing packages, 
attendee management software, site selection and various enabling technologies. Marketing package, attendee management software and 
enabling technology revenues were recognized over the life of the contract, which approximated the life of the customer relationship and 
typically ranged from one to three years. Site selection revenues were recognized at the time the meeting occurs, which assumed no significant 
performance obligation remains.  

CommerceQuest was a consolidated company through September 30, 2005, at which time it was acquired by Metastorm (which was an unrelated 
entity at the time) and became an equity method company. CommerceQuest recognized revenue from software license fees and services. 
CommerceQuest sold its software directly to end users, as well as through resellers. Fees from licenses were recognized as revenue upon contract 
execution (provided that all delivery obligations had been met), fees were fixed or determinable, collection was probable, and vendor-specific 
objective evidence existed for the undelivered elements of the arrangement. Maintenance revenue was recognized ratably over the term of the 
maintenance contract. Consulting and training revenue was recognized when the services were performed. Implementation fees, which did not 
relate to software license fees including start-up fees, were deferred and generally recognized as revenue over the term of the arrangement.  
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Deferred Income Taxes  

We record a valuation allowance to reduce our net deferred tax assets to the amount that is more likely than not to be realized. We consider 
future taxable income and prudent and feasible tax planning strategies in determining the need for a valuation allowance. In the event that we 
determine that we would not be able to realize all or part of our net deferred tax assets, an adjustment to the deferred tax assets is charged to 
earnings in the period such determination is made. Likewise, if we later determine that it is more likely than not that the net deferred tax assets 
would be realized, then the previously provided valuation allowance would be reversed.  

Commitments and Contingencies  

From time to time, we are a defendant or plaintiff in various legal actions that arise in the normal course of business. From time to time, we are 
also a guarantor of various third-party obligations and commitments. We are required to assess the likelihood of any adverse judgments or 
outcomes to these matters, as well as potential ranges of probable losses. A determination of the amount of reserves required for these 
contingencies, if any, which would be charged to earnings, is made after careful analysis of each individual matter. The required reserves may 
change in the future due to new developments in each matter or changes in circumstances, such as a change in settlement strategy. Changes in 
required reserves could increase or decrease our earnings in the period the changes are made.  

Recent Accounting Pronouncements  

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Financial Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in 
Income Taxes — an interpretation of FASB Statement 109” (“FIN 48”). FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes 
recognized in accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes.” This interpretation also provides guidance on de-recognition, 
classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure and transition. This interpretation is effective for fiscal years 
beginning after December 15, 2006, which is the fiscal year beginning on January 1, 2007 for the Company. We are currently evaluating but do 
not anticipate any material impact in applying the various provisions of FIN 48.  

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements”, which is applicable for fiscal years beginning after 
November 15, 2007. SFAS No. 157 defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in GAAP,” and expands disclosures 
about fair value measurements. SFAS No. 157 applies under other accounting pronouncements that require or permit fair value measurements, 
the FASB having previously concluded in those accounting pronouncements that fair value is the relevant measurement attribute. Although 
SFAS No. 157 does not require any new fair value measurements, its application may, for some entities, change current practices related to the 
definition of fair value, the methods used to measure fair value, and the expanded disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS No. 157 is 
effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. We are currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of SFAS No. 157 on our 
financial statements.  

In September 2006, the SEC Staff released Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB”) No. 108, “Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements 
when Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements.” SAB No. 108 provides guidance on the process of quantifying 
materiality of financial statement misstatements. SAB No. 108 is effective for fiscal years ending after November 15, 2006, with early 
application for the first interim period ending after November 15, 2006. The adoption of SAB No. 108 did not have any impact on our financial 
statements.  

On February 15, 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities.” Under this 
Standard, we may elect to report cost and equity partner companies, marketable securities, hedges and certain other items at fair value on a 
contract-by-contract basis with changes in value reported in earnings. This election is irrevocable. SFAS No. 159 is effective for fiscal years 
beginning after November 15, 2007. Early adoption within 120 days of the beginning of our 2007 fiscal year is permissible, provided that we 
have not yet issued interim financial statements for 2007 and adopted  
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SFAS No. 157. We are currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of SFAS No. 159 on our financial statements.  

ITEM 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk  

We are exposed to equity price risks on the marketable portion of our equity securities. Our public holdings at December 31, 2006 include equity 
positions in companies in sectors which have experienced significant historical volatility in their stock prices. A 20% adverse change in equity 
prices, based on a sensitivity analysis of our public holdings as of December 31, 2006, would result in an approximate $19.0 million decrease in 
the fair value of our public holdings.  

Cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and accounts payable are carried at cost which approximates fair value due to the short-term 
maturity of these instruments. Short-term investments and marketable securities are carried at fair value. Our senior convertible notes had a fair 
value of approximately $32.5 million at December 31, 2006 versus a carrying value of $26.6 million. Fair value of our senior convertible notes is 
determined by obtaining available market quotes. In February 2007, we repurchased the $26.6 million outstanding balance of our senior 
convertible notes for approximately $37.1 million, plus accrued interest.  

We have historically had very low exposure to changes in foreign currency exchange rates and, as such, have not used derivative financial 
instruments to manage foreign currency fluctuation risk.  

In 2006, the Company entered into the following cashless collar contracts to hedge 750,000 shares of its holdings of Blackboard common stock:  

In 2007, the Company entered into the following cashless collar contracts to hedge 375,000 shares of its holdings of Blackboard common stock:  

Each of these contracts limits the Company’s exposure to and benefits from price fluctuations in the underlying equity securities. See Note 4 of 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.  
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            Minimum           Maximum     

Shares   Expiration   Price per   Minimum   Price per   Maximum 
Hedged   Date   Share   Value   Share   Value 

500,000    March 15, 2010   $ 22.4419     $11.2 million   $ 55.4982     $27.7 million 
125,000    April 15, 2010   $ 23.2841     $2.9 million   $ 59.8307     $7.5 million 
125,000    March 15, 2010   $ 22.2223     $2.8 million   $ 49.8223     $6.2 million 

                                          
            Minimum           Maximum     

Shares   Expiration   Price per   Minimum   Price per   Maximum 
Hedged   Date   Share   Value   Share   Value 

125,000    March 15, 2010   $ 22.2107     $2.8 million   $ 49.6438     $6.2 million 
250,000    March 15, 2010   $ 24.0453     $6.0 million   $ 53.4521     $13.4 million 



   

ITEM 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data  

The following Consolidated Financial Statements, and the related Notes thereto, of Internet Capital Group, Inc. and the Report of Independent 
Registered Public Accounting Firm are filed as a part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.  
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM  

The Board of Directors and Stockholders  
Internet Capital Group, Inc.:  

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Internet Capital Group, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2006 and 
2005, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity (deficit), comprehensive income (loss) and cash flows for each 
of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2006. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s 
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.  

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit 
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial 
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.  

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Internet 
Capital Group, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the 
years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2006, in conformity with U. S. generally accepted accounting principles.  

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted the fair value method of 
accounting for stock-based compensation as required by Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123(R), Share-Based Payment .  

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the effectiveness of 
Internet Capital Group, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on criteria established in Internal 
Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO), and our report 
dated March 16, 2007 expressed an unqualified opinion on management’s assessment of, and the effective operation of, internal control over 
financial reporting.  

/s/ KPMG LLP  

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania  
March 16, 2007  
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INTERNET CAPITAL GROUP, INC.  
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS  

See accompanying notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.  

37  

                  
    December 31,     December 31,   
    2006     2005   
    (in thousands, except per share data)   
                   
Assets                  
Current Assets                  

Cash and cash equivalents    $ 120,808     $ 142,659   
Restricted cash      33       253   
Short-term investments      —      5,000   
Accounts receivable, net of allowance ($137-2006; $599-2005)      6,273       9,223   
Prepaid expenses and other current assets      2,557       15,399   
Assets of discontinued operations      —      11,911   

     
  
    

  
  

Total current assets      129,671       184,445   
Marketable securities      66,075       63,425   
Fixed assets, net      1,847       1,886   
Ownership interests in Partner Companies      137,911       71,453   
Goodwill      17,084       17,794   
Intangibles, net      182       3,407   
Other      1,657       4,122   
     

  
    

  
  

Total Assets    $ 354,427     $ 346,532   
     

  

    

  

  

                   
Liabilities and Stockholders’  Equity                  
Current Liabilities                  

Current portion of senior convertible notes    $ 26,590     $ —  
Current maturities of other long-term debt      947       1,113   
Accounts payable      4,123       6,181   
Accrued expenses      4,420       9,533   
Accrued compensation and benefits      9,222       7,141   
Deferred revenue      5,430       9,508   
Liabilities of discontinued operations      —      10,465   

     
  
    

  
  

Total current liabilities      50,732       43,941   
Senior convertible notes      —      37,000   
Other long-term debt      544       4,407   
Long-term deferred revenue      157       1,490   
Other liabilities      333       640   
Minority interests      4,123       2,809   
     

  
    

  
  

       55,889       90,287   
     

  
    

  
  

Stockholders’  Equity                  
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value; 10,000 shares authorized, none issued or outstanding      —      —  
Common stock, $0.001 par value; 2,000,000 shares authorized, 38,598 (2006) and 39,314 

(2005) issued and outstanding      39       39   
Additional paid-in capital      3,552,681       3,535,646   
Accumulated deficit      (3,317,095 )     (3,332,719 ) 
Unamortized deferred compensation      —      (6,684 ) 
Notes receivable-stockholders      —      (300 ) 
Accumulated other comprehensive income      62,913       60,263   

     
  
    

  
  

Total stockholders’  equity      298,538       256,245   
     

  
    

  
  

Total Liabilities and Stockholders’  Equity    $ 354,427     $ 346,532   
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INTERNET CAPITAL GROUP, INC.  
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS  

See accompanying notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.  
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    Year Ended December 31,   
    2006     2005     2004   
    (in thousands, except per share data)   
                           
Revenue    $ 64,749     $ 47,568     $ 41,857   
                           
Operating expenses                          

Cost of revenue      42,439       28,460       21,464   
Selling, general and administrative      42,108       40,795       31,239   
Research and development      8,755       12,276       8,660   
Amortization of intangibles      1,695       2,123       2,711   
Impairment related and other      178       3,448       758   

     
  
    

  
    

  
  

Total operating expenses      95,175       87,102       64,832   
     

  
    

  
    

  
  

       (30,426 )     (39,534 )     (22,975 ) 
Other income (loss), net      34,605       135,489       (106,178 ) 
Interest income      9,519       3,890       1,295   
Interest expense      (2,174 )     (3,367 )     (4,925 ) 
     

  
    

  
    

  
  

Income (loss) before income taxes, minority interest and equity loss      11,524       96,478       (132,783 ) 
Income tax benefit (expense)      40       (18,640 )     —  
Minority interest      1,232       2,513       771   
Equity loss      (5,461 )     (6,703 )     (5,893 ) 
     

  
    

  
    

  
  

Income (loss) from continuing operations      7,335       73,648       (137,905 ) 
Income (loss) on discontinued operations      8,289       (1,130 )     2,588   
     

  
    

  
    

  
  

Net income (loss)    $ 15,624     $ 72,518     $ (135,317 ) 
     

  

    

  

    

  

  

                           
Basic income (loss) per share:                          
Income (loss) from continuing operations    $ 0.20     $ 1.98     $ (3.86 ) 
Income (loss) on discontinued operations      0.22       (0.03 )     0.07   
     

  
    

  
    

  
  

     $ 0.42     $ 1.95     $ (3.79 ) 
     

  

    

  

    

  

  

Shares used in computation of basic income (loss) per share      37,570       37,109       35,713   
     

  

    

  

    

  

  

                           
Diluted income (loss) per share:                          
Income (loss) from continuing operations    $ 0.19     $ 1.76     $ (3.86 ) 
Income (loss) on discontinued operations      0.22       (0.03 )     0.07   
     

  
    

  
    

  
  

     $ 0.41     $ 1.73     $ (3.79 ) 
     

  

    

  

    

  

  

                           
Shares used in computation of diluted income (loss) per share      38,106       43,670       35,713   
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INTERNET CAPITAL GROUP, INC.  
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DE FICIT)  

                                                                  
                                                    Accumulated         
                    Additional             Unamortized     Notes     Other         
    Common Stock     Paid-In     Accumulated     Deferred     Receivable-     Comprehensive         
    Shares     Amount     Capital     Deficit     Compensation     Stockholders     Income     Total   
    (in thousands)   
Balance as of 

December 31, 2003      21,839     $ 22     $ 3,251,068     $ (3,269,920 )   $ (712 )   $ (460 )   $ 708     $ (19,294 ) 
Amortization of deferred 

compensation      —      —      —      —      1,413       —      —      1,413   
Issuance of common 

stock in payment of 
bonuses      33       —      273       —      —      —      —      273   

Issuance of common 
stock in exchange for 
convertible 
subordinated notes      15,887       16       267,607       —      —      —      —      267,623   

Impact of Partner 
Company equity 
transactions (Note 14)      —      —      2,313       —      —      —      —      2,313   

Issuance of restricted 
stock      640       —      4,412       —      (4,412 )     —      —      —  

Forfeiture of restricted 
stock      (11 )     —      (77 )     —      77       —      —      —  

Stockholder loans 
principal payments      —      —      —      —      —      160       —      160   

Net unrealized 
appreciation in 
marketable securities 
and reclassification 
adjustments      —      —      —      —      —      —      47,936       47,936   

Net loss      —      —      —      (135,317 )     —      —      —      (135,317 ) 
     

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
  

                                                                   
Balance as of 

December 31, 2004      38,388       38       3,525,596       (3,405,237 )     (3,634 )     (300 )     48,644       165,107   
Amortization of deferred 

compensation      —      —      —      —      3,507       —      —      3,507   
Impact of Partner 

Company equity 
transactions (Note 14)      —      —      2,271       —      —      —      —      2,271   

Issuance of restricted 
stock      819       1       6,013       —      (6,014 )     —      —      —  

Amortization of stock 
appreciation rights      —      —      824       —      —      —      —      824   

Issuance of deferred stock 
units to Board of 
Directors      109       —      809       —      (543 )     —      —      266   

Repurchase of common 
stock from former 
employees      (2 )     —      —      —      —      —      —      —  

Stock-based 
compensation tax 
benefit      —      —      133       —      —      —      —      133   

Net unrealized 
appreciation in 
marketable securities 
and reclassification 
adjustments      —      —      —      —      —      —      11,619       11,619   

Net income      —      —      —      72,518       —      —      —      72,518   
     

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
  

                                                                   
Balance as of 

December 31, 2005      39,314       39       3,535,646       (3,332,719 )     (6,684 )     (300 )     60,263       256,245   

Reclassification of 
unamortized deferred 



See accompanying notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.  
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compensation upon 
adoption of SFAS 
No. 123R      —      —      (6,684 )     —      6,684       —      —      —  

Share-based 
compensation expense 
related to restricted 
stock      —      —      2,559       —      —      —      —      2,559   

Impact of Partner 
Company equity 
transactions (Note 14)      —      —      15,169       —      —      —      —      15,169   

Issuance of restricted 
stock      50       —      —      —      —      —      —      —  

Forfeitures of restricted 
stock      (37 )     —      (129 )     —      —      —      —      (129 ) 

Share-based 
compensation related 
to stock appreciation 
rights and stock 
options      —      —      4,716       —      —      —      —      4,716   

Issuance of deferred stock 
units to Board of 
Directors      56       —      674       —      —      —      —      674   

Repurchase of common 
stock from current and 
former employees      (785 )     —      —      —      —      128       —      128   

Stockholder loans 
principal payments      —      —      730       —      —      125       —      855   

Forgiveness of 
stockholder loans      —      —      —      —      —      47       —      47   

Net unrealized 
appreciation in 
marketable securities 
and reclassification 
adjustments      —      —      —      —      —      —      2,650       2,650   

Net income      —      —      —      15,624       —      —      —      15,624   
     

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
  

                                                                   
Balance as of 

December 31, 2006      38,598     $ 39     $ 3,552,681       (3,317,095 )   $ —    $ —    $ 62,913     $ 298,538   
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INTERNET CAPITAL GROUP, INC.  
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LO SS)  

See accompanying notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.  
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    Year Ended December 31,   
    2006     2005     2004   
    (in thousands)   
                           
Net income (loss)    $ 15,624     $ 72,518     $ (135,317 ) 
     

  
    

  
    

  
  

Other comprehensive income (loss)                          
Unrealized holding gains in marketable securities      7,674       25,940       47,552   
Reclassification adjustments/realized net (gains) losses on marketable securities      (5,024 )     (14,567 )     630   

Other accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)      —      246       (246 ) 
     

  
    

  
    

  
  

Sub-total      2,650       11,619       47,936   
     

  
    

  
    

  
  

                           
Comprehensive income (loss)    $ 18,274     $ 84,137     $ (87,381 ) 
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INTERNET CAPITAL GROUP, INC.  
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS  

See accompanying notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.  
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    Year Ended December 31,   
    2006     2005     2004   
    (in thousands)   
                           
Operating Activities                          
Net income (loss)    $ 15,624     $ 72,518     $ (135,317 ) 
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to cash used in operating activities                          

(Income) loss from discontinued operations      (8,289 )     1,130       (2,588 ) 
Depreciation and amortization      3,395       3,691       3,748   
Impairment related and other      373       2,941       758   
Stock-based compensation      7,680       4,339       1,413   
Equity loss      5,461       6,703       5,893   
Other (income) loss      (34,605 )     (135,489 )     106,401   
Minority interest      (1,232 )     (2,513 )     (771 ) 

Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effect of acquisitions:                          
Restricted cash      122       156       170   
Accounts receivable, net      (1,395 )     (4,631 )     4,345   
Prepaid expenses and other assets      6,990       949       3,292   
Accounts payable      (3,019 )     (6,711 )     (6,989 ) 
Accrued expenses      1,075       2,506       (2,559 ) 
Deferred revenue      (762 )     600       (1,590 ) 
Other liabilities      3,261       3,553       551   

     
  
    

  
    

  
  

Cash flows from operating activities of continuing operations      (5,321 )     (50,258 )     (23,243 ) 
Cash flows from (used in) operating activities of discontinued operations      (1,882 )     (797 )     (910 ) 
     

  
    

  
    

  
  

Cash used in operating activities      (7,203 )     (51,055 )     (24,153 ) 
  
Investing Activities                          

Capital expenditures, net      (2,265 )     (965 )     (1,003 ) 
Purchases of short-term investments      —      (10,597 )     (85,219 ) 
Proceeds of short-term investments      5,000       63,537       27,288   
Proceeds from sales of marketable securities      5,554       19,153       7,798   
Proceeds from sales of Partner Company ownership interests      40,845       141,719       25,668   
Proceeds from sale of discontinued operations      9,000       —      —  
Acquisitions of ownership interests in Partner Companies, net      (63,292 )     (22,471 )     (8,669 ) 
Other acquisitions, net      (536 )     —      —  
Increase in cash due to consolidation of Partner Companies      —      2,331       —  
Reduction in cash due to deconsolidation of Partner Company      (1,447 )     —      —  

     
  
    

  
    

  
  

Cash flows from (used in) investing activities of continuing operations      (7,141 )     192,707       (34,137 ) 
Cash flows used in investing activities of discontinued operations      —      (14 )     (106 ) 
     

  
    

  
    

  
  

Cash provided by (used in) investing activities      (7,141 )     192,693       (34,243 ) 
  
Financing Activities                          

Repurchase of senior convertible notes      (12,768 )     (28,405 )     —  
Issuance of senior convertible notes, net      —      —      58,215   
Repurchase of convertible subordinated notes      —      —      (39,541 ) 
Long term debt and capital lease obligations, net      (1,310 )     (774 )     (6,062 ) 
Repayments of advances and loans from employees/stockholders      4,624       —      160   
Issuance of stock by subsidiary      —      —      9   

     
  
    

  
    

  
  

Cash flows from (used in) financing activities of continuing operations      (9,454 )     (29,179 )     12,781   
Cash flows from financing activities of discontinued operations      —      —      —  
     

  
    

  
    

  
  

Cash provided by (used in) financing activities      (9,454 )     (29,179 )     12,781   
Net increase (decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents      (23,798 )     112,459       (45,615 ) 
Effect of exchange rates on cash      65       496       (380 ) 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of year      144,541       31,586       77,581   
Cash and Cash Equivalents at end of year      120,808       144,541       31,586   
     

  
    

  
    

  
  

Less Cash and Cash Equivalents of discontinued operations at the end of year    $ —    $ 1,882     $ 2,693   
     

  
    

  
    

  
  

Cash and Cash Equivalents of continuing operations at the end of year    $ 120,808     $ 142,659     $ 28,893   
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INTERNET CAPITAL GROUP, INC.  
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

1. The Company  

Description of the Company  

Internet Capital Group, Inc. (the “Company”) acquires and builds Internet software and services companies that drive business productivity and 
reduce transaction costs between firms. Founded in 1996, the Company devotes its expertise and capital to maximizing the success of these 
platform companies, which are delivering software and service applications to customers worldwide.  

Although the Company refers to companies in which it has acquired a convertible debt or an equity ownership interest as its “Partner 
Companies” and indicates that it has a “partnership” with these companies, it does not act as an agent or legal representative for any of its 
Partner Companies, it does not have the power or authority to legally bind any of its Partner Companies and it does not have the types of 
liabilities in relation to its Partner Companies that a general partner of a partnership would have.  

2. Significant Accounting Policies  

Basis of Presentation  

The Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries. The Consolidated Financial 
Statements also include the following majority-owned subsidiaries for all or a portion of the periods indicated, each of which has been 
consolidated since the date the Company acquired majority voting control (collectively, the “Consolidated Subsidiaries”):  

The Consolidated Balance Sheets include the following majority-owned subsidiaries:  
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Year Ended December 31, 

2006   2005   2004 

ICG Commerce  
Investor Force  
StarCite (1)  

  

ICG Commerce  
CommerceQuest (2)  
Investor Force (3)  
StarCite (4)   

ICG Commerce  
CommerceQuest 

      
December 31, 

2006   2005 

ICG Commerce   ICG Commerce 
Investor Force   Investor Force 
    StarCite 

  

(1)   On December 29, 2006, StarCite completed a transaction in which it consolidated with OnVantage, Inc. Beginning on December 29, 2006, 
the Company’s ownership interest in the combined entity is accounted for under the equity method of accounting. See Note 3. 

  

(2)   In October 2005, CommerceQuest, a consolidated Partner Company, was acquired by Metastorm in exchange for an equity interest in 
Metastorm. Beginning October 1, 2005 (see Note 3), Metastorm was accounted for as an equity method Partner Company. 

  

(3)   Investor Force became a consolidated Partner Company on January 1, 2005. 
  

(4)   StarCite became a consolidated Partner Company on June 8, 2005. The results of operations of StarCite from June 8, 2005 to June 30, 2005 
were not material and were not included in the Consolidated Statements of Operations through June 30, 2005. StarCite’s results of 
operations are included in the Consolidated Statements of Operations beginning July 1, 2005. 
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INTERNET CAPITAL GROUP, INC.  
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)  

2. Significant Accounting Policies — (Continued)  

Principles of Accounting for Ownership Interests in Partner Companies  

The various interests that the Company acquires in its Partner Companies are accounted for under three methods: the consolidation method, the 
equity method and the cost method. The applicable accounting method is generally determined based on the Company’s voting interest in a 
Partner Company.  

Consolidation. Partner Companies in which the Company directly or indirectly owns more than 50% of the outstanding voting securities, and for 
which other stockholders do not possess the right to affect significant management decisions, are accounted for under the consolidation method 
of accounting. Under this method, a Partner Company’s balance sheet and results of operations are reflected within the Company’s Consolidated 
Financial Statements, and all significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated. Participation of other Partner Company 
stockholders in the net assets and in the earnings or losses of a consolidated Partner Company is reflected in the caption “Minority interest” in 
the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheet and Statements of Operations. Minority interest adjusts the Company’s consolidated results of 
operations to reflect only the Company’s share of the earnings or losses of the consolidated Partner Company. The results of operations and cash 
flows of a consolidated Partner Company are included through the latest interim period in which the Company owned a greater than 50% direct 
or indirect voting interest for the entire interim period or otherwise exercised control over the Partner Company. Upon a reduction of the 
Company’s ownership interest to below 50% of the outstanding voting securities, the accounting method is adjusted to the equity or cost method 
of accounting, as appropriate, for subsequent periods.  

Although the Company’s ownership percentage in GoIndustry AG exceeded 50% at December 31, 2005, the Company did not consolidate 
GoIndustry AG due to the existence of certain minority voting rights in accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) No. 96-16, 
“Investor’s Accounting for an Investee When an Investor Has a Majority of the Voting Interest but the Minority Shareholder or Shareholders 
Have Certain Approval or Veto Rights.” At December 31, 2006, the Company owns 35% of GoIndustry. See Note 4.  

Equity Method. Partner Companies that are not consolidated, but over which the Company exercises significant influence, are accounted for 
under the equity method of accounting. Whether or not the Company exercises significant influence with respect to a Partner Company depends 
on an evaluation of several factors, including, among others, representation on the Partner Company’s Board of Directors and ownership level, 
which is generally a 20% to 50% interest in the voting securities of the Partner Company, including voting rights associated with the Company’s 
holdings in common stock, preferred stock and other convertible instruments in the Partner Company. Under the equity method of accounting, a 
Partner Company’s accounts are not reflected within the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets and Statements of Operations; however, the 
Company’s share of the earnings or losses of the Partner Company is reflected in the caption “Equity loss” in the Consolidated Statements of 
Operations. The carrying value of equity method Partner Companies is reflected in “Ownership interests in Partner Companies” in the 
Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets.  

When the Company’s interest in an equity method Partner Company is reduced to zero, no further losses are recorded in the Company’s 
Consolidated Financial Statements, unless the Company guaranteed obligations of the Partner Company or has committed to additional funding. 
When the Partner Company subsequently reports income, the Company will not record its share of such income until it equals the amount of its 
share of losses not previously recognized.  

Cost Method. Partner Companies not accounted for under the consolidation or the equity method of accounting are accounted for under the cost 
method of accounting. Under this method, the Company’s share of the earnings or losses of such companies is not included in the Consolidated 
Balance Sheet or Consolidated Statements of Operations. However, cost method Partner Company impairment charges are recognized in the 
Consolidated Statements of Operations. If circumstances suggest that the value of the Partner Company has subsequently recovered, such 
recovery is not recorded.  
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INTERNET CAPITAL GROUP, INC.  
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)  

2. Significant Accounting Policies — (Continued)  

When a cost method Partner Company qualifies for use of the equity method, the Company’s interest is adjusted retroactively for its share of the 
past results of its operations. Therefore, prior losses could significantly decrease the Company’s carrying value balance at that time.  

The Company records its ownership interest in equity securities of Partner Companies accounted for under the cost method at cost, unless these 
securities have readily determinable fair values based on quoted market prices, in which case these interests are valued at fair value and 
classified as marketable securities or some other classification in accordance with SFAS No. 115, “Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt 
and Equity Securities.”  

Ownership Interests in Partner Companies, Goodwill and Intangibles, net  

The Company follows the guidance in SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” The Company is required to test intangible assets 
and goodwill for impairment in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 142. The Company follows the guidance in APB No. 18, “The 
Equity Method of Accounting for Investments in Common Stock,” to evaluate its equity method ownership interests in Partner Companies for 
impairment.  

The Company continually evaluates the carrying value of its ownership interests in each of its Partner Companies for possible impairment based 
on achievement of business plan objectives and milestones, the value of each ownership interest in the Partner Company relative to carrying 
value, the financial condition and prospects of the Partner Company, and other relevant factors. The business plan objectives and milestones the 
Company considers include, among others, those related to financial performance such as achievement of planned financial results or completion 
of capital raising activities, and those that are not primarily financial in nature, such as obtaining key business partnerships or the hiring of key 
employees. Impairment charges are determined by comparing the estimated fair value of a Partner Company with its carrying value. Fair value is 
determined by estimating the cash flows related to the asset, including estimated proceeds on disposition.  

The Company’s policy is to perform its annual impairment testing for all Partner Companies and goodwill in the fourth quarter of each fiscal 
year. The Company performed its annual impairment test during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006 and concluded that the carrying value of its 
ownership interest in Partner Companies, goodwill and intangibles, net was not impaired. At December 31, 2006, the Company’s carrying value 
of its ownership interests in Partner Companies totaled $137.9 million, goodwill totaled $17.1 million and intangibles, net totaled $0.2 million.  
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INTERNET CAPITAL GROUP, INC.  
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)  

2. Significant Accounting Policies — (Continued)  

Revenue Recognition  

During 2006, the Company’s revenues were primarily attributable to ICG Commerce and StarCite. During 2005 and 2004, the Company’s 
revenues were primarily attributable to ICG Commerce, CommerceQuest and StarCite.  

ICG Commerce generates revenue from sourcing consulting and procurement outsourcing services. Procurement outsourcing services generally 
include a combination of services and technology designed to help companies achieve unit cost savings and process efficiencies. ICG Commerce 
earns fees for implementation services, start-up services, content and category management (which may include sourcing as described below), 
hosting fees, buying center management fees, and certain transaction fees. ICG Commerce estimates the total contract value under these 
arrangements and generally recognizes revenue under these arrangements, excluding transaction fees and gain-share fees, on a straight-line basis 
over the term of the contract, which approximates the life of the customer relationship. Fees subject to guaranteed savings provisions are 
deferred until the contingency is achieved or it is determined from existing data and past experience that the savings will be achieved, and then 
recognized on a straight-line basis over the remaining life of the contract, which approximates the life of the customer relationship. Sourcing 
programs are engagements in which ICG Commerce negotiates prices from certain suppliers on behalf of its customers in certain categories in 
which ICG Commerce has a sourcing expertise. Under sourcing programs, either the customer pays a fixed-fee or a gain-share amount for use of 
the negotiated rates. In fixed-fee sourcing arrangements, revenue is recognized on a percentage-of-completion basis, provided that there is no 
uncertainty as to ICG Commerce’s ability to fulfill its obligations under the contract or other services that are to be rendered under the contract. 
Gain-share sourcing revenue is recognized when earned.  

StarCite was a consolidated company through December 29, 2006. StarCite’s revenues were primarily derived from hotel media marketing 
packages, attendee management software, site selection and various enabling technologies. Marketing packages, attendee management software 
and enabling technology revenues were recognized over the life of the contract, which approximated the life of the customer relationship and 
typically ranged from one to three years. Site selection revenues were recognized at the time the meeting occurs, which assumed no significant 
performance obligation remains.  

CommerceQuest was a consolidated company through September 30, 2005, at which time it was acquired by Metastorm and became an equity 
method company. CommerceQuest recognized revenue from software license fees and services. CommerceQuest sold their software direct to 
end users, as well as through resellers. Fees from licenses were recognized as revenue upon contract execution, provided all delivery obligations 
had been met, fees were fixed or determinable, collection was probable, and vendor-specific objective evidence existed for the undelivered 
elements of the arrangement. Maintenance revenue was recognized ratably over the term of the maintenance contract. Consulting and training 
revenue was recognized when the services were performed. Implementation fees, which did not relate to software license fees including start-up 
fees, were deferred and generally recognized as revenue over the term of the arrangement.  

Deferred Revenue  

Deferred revenue consists primarily of payments received in advance of revenue being earned under procurement sourcing arrangements, hotel 
media marketing packages, software licensing arrangements, software installation arrangements, maintenance agreements and various start up 
fee arrangements.  
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)  

2. Significant Accounting Policies — (Continued)  

Use of Estimates  

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from 
those estimates. These estimates include evaluation of the Company’s holdings in its Partner Companies, holdings in marketable securities, asset 
impairment, revenue recognition, income taxes and commitments and contingencies. Certain amounts recorded to reflect the Company’s share of 
losses of Partner Companies accounted for under the equity method are based on unaudited results of operations of those Partner Companies and 
may require adjustments in the future when audits of these entities are made final. It is reasonably possible that the Company’s accounting 
estimates with respect to the useful life of intangible assets and the ultimate recoverability of ownership interests in Partner Companies and 
goodwill could change in the near term and that the effect of such changes on the financial statements could be material. At year end, the 
Company believes the recorded amount of ownership interests in Partner Companies and goodwill is not impaired.  

Cash and Cash Equivalents  

The Company considers all highly liquid instruments with an original maturity of 90 days or less at the time of purchase to be cash equivalents. 
Cash and cash equivalents at December 31, 2006 and 2005 are invested principally in money market accounts and commercial paper.  

Restricted Cash  

The Company considers cash that is legally restricted and cash that is held as a compensating balance for letter of credit arrangements as 
restricted cash. At December 31, 2006 and 2005, restricted cash was held primarily in money market accounts. Long-term restricted cash of $0.2 
million at December 31, 2006 and $0.7 million at December 31, 2005 is included in “Other” assets on the Company’s Consolidated Balance 
Sheets.  

Short-term Investments  

Short-term investments are debt securities, principally commercial paper and certificates of deposit, maturing in less than one year, are classified 
as available for sale and are recorded at market value using the specific identification method. Short-term investments consisted of $5.0 million 
in certificates of deposit at December 31, 2005. All of the short-term investments outstanding at December 31, 2005 matured in 2006.  

Marketable Securities  

Marketable securities are reported at fair value, based on quoted market prices, with the net unrealized gain or loss reported as a component of 
“Accumulated other comprehensive income” in stockholders’ equity.  

Financial Instruments  

Cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and accounts payable are carried at cost which approximates fair value due to the short-term 
maturity of these instruments. Short-term investments and marketable securities are carried at fair value. The Company’s senior convertible 
notes had a fair value of approximately $32.5 million and $41.8 million at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively, versus a carrying value of 
$26.6 million and $37.0 million as of the same respective dates. Fair value of the Company’s senior convertible notes was determined by 
obtaining thinly traded market quotes. The Company repurchased the $26.6 million of outstanding senior convertible notes on February 12, 2007 
for $37.1 million. See Note 5.  

Research and Development  

Research and development costs are charged to expense as incurred.  
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)  

2. Significant Accounting Policies — (Continued)  

Income Taxes  

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method, whereby deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the estimated 
future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their 
respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which the temporary 
differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in 
income in the period that includes the enactment date.  

Net Income (Loss) Per Share  

Basic net income (loss) per share (“EPS”) is computed using the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during each period. 
Diluted EPS includes shares, unless anti-dilutive, that would arise from the exercise of stock options and conversion of other convertible 
securities and is adjusted, if applicable, for the effect on net income (loss) of such transactions. If a consolidated or equity method Partner 
Company has dilutive options or securities outstanding, diluted net income per share is computed by deducting from income (loss) from 
continuing operations the income attributable to the potential exercise of the dilutive options or securities of the Partner Company.  

Because the Company has incurred losses for 2004, the effects of dilutive securities are not included as they would be anti-dilutive. See Note 17.  

Issuances of Stock By Partner Companies  

At the time a Partner Company accounted for under the consolidation or equity method of accounting issues its stock at a price different from the 
Partner Company’s book value per share, the Company’s share of the Partner Company’s net equity changes. Accordingly, the Company adjusts 
its carrying value in the Partner Company as well as additional paid-in capital. See Note 14 for 2006 activity.  

Escrow Receivable  

The Company records an escrow receivable at the time the Company is entitled to the escrow proceeds, the amount is fixed and determinable 
and realization is assured.  

Concentration of Customer Base and Credit Risk  

Approximately 10% and 14% of the Company’s revenue for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively, related to a single 
customer of ICG Commerce. Accounts receivable from this customer at December 31, 2006 and 2005 were $1.1 million and $1.1 million, 
respectively.  
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)  

2. Significant Accounting Policies — (Continued)  

Stock Based Compensation  

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment” (“SFAS No. 123R”). SFAS No. 123R revises SFAS 
No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” and supersedes APB Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and 
its related implementation guidance. SFAS No. 123R requires compensation costs related to share-based payment transactions to be recognized 
in the financial statements. The amount of compensation cost is measured based on the grant date fair value of the equity. Compensation cost is 
recognized over the period that an employee provides service in exchange for the award. The Company adopted SFAS No. 123R on January 1, 
2006 using the modified prospective method. Under the modified prospective method, stock-based compensation expense recognized in the year 
ended December 31, 2006 includes (i) compensation expense for all share-based payments granted prior to, but not yet vested as of January 1, 
2006, based on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance with the original provisions of SFAS No. 123 “Accounting for Stock-Based 
Compensation,” and (ii) compensation expense for all share-based payments granted, modified or settled subsequent to January 1, 2006. The 
Company generally recognizes compensation expense for awards granted after December 31, 2005 on a straight-line basis over the vesting 
period of the awards. Fair value for stock options and SARs is determined using the Black-Scholes model and the expense is amortized over the 
vesting period. See Note 11.  

As permitted by SFAS No. 123, which was amended by SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation — Transition and 
Disclosure — an amendment of FASB Statement No. 123” through December 31, 2005, the Company measured compensation cost in 
accordance with APB Opinion No. 25. Accordingly, no compensation expense was recorded for stock options issued to employees that were 
granted where the exercise price was equal to fair market value on the grant date.  

The following table illustrates the effect on the Company’s net income (loss) and net income (loss) per share as if the fair value based method of 
SFAS No. 123 had been applied to all awards:  

The Company also included its share of its Partner Companies’ SFAS No. 123 pro forma expense in the Company’s SFAS No. 123 pro forma 
expense. Private Partner Companies utilize the minimum value method for valuing its stock options.  
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    Year Ended December 31,   
    2005     2004   
    (in thousands, except per share data)   
                   
Net income (loss), as reported    $ 72,518     $ (135,317 ) 
Stock-based employee compensation expense included in reported net income (loss)      4,339       1,583   
Total stock-based employee compensation expense determined under fair-value-based method for all awards     (8,305 )     (8,123 ) 
     

  
    

  
  

Pro forma net income (loss)    $ 68,552     $ (141,857 ) 
     

  

    

  

  

                   
Net income (loss) per basic share, as reported    $ 1.95     $ (3.79 ) 
Net income (loss) per diluted share, as reported    $ 1.73     $ (3.79 ) 
Pro forma net income (loss) per basic share    $ 1.85     $ (3.97 ) 
Pro forma net income (loss) per diluted share    $ 1.64     $ (3.97 ) 
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2. Significant Accounting Policies — (Continued)  

Recent Accounting Pronouncements  

In June 2006, the FASB issued FIN 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes — an interpretation of FASB Statement 109.” FIN 48 
clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes.” This 
interpretation also provides guidance on de-recognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure and 
transition. This interpretation is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006, which is the fiscal year beginning January 1, 2007 
for the Company. The Company is currently evaluating but does not anticipate any material impact in applying the various provisions of FIN 48.  

In September 2006, FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements,” which is applicable for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 
2007. SFAS No. 157 defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in GAAP, and expands disclosures about fair value 
measurements. SFAS No. 157 applies under other accounting pronouncements that require or permit fair value measurements, the FASB having 
previously concluded in those accounting pronouncements that fair value is the relevant measurement attribute. SFAS No. 157 is effective for 
fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. Although SFAS No. 157 does not require any new fair value measurements, its application may, 
for some entities, change current practices related to the definition of fair value, the methods used to measure fair value, and the expanded 
disclosures about fair value measurements. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of SFAS No. 157 on its financial 
statements.  

In September 2006, the SEC Staff released SAB No. 108, “Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying 
Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements.” SAB No. 108 provides guidance on the process of quantifying materiality of financial 
statement misstatements. SAB No. 108 is effective for fiscal years ending after November 15, 2006, with early application for the first interim 
period ending after November 15, 2006. The adoption of SAB No. 108 did not have any effect on the Company’s financial statements.  

On February 15, 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities.” Under this 
Standard, the Company may irrevocably elect to report cost and equity method partner companies, marketable securities, hedges and certain 
other items at fair value on a contract-by-contract basis with changes in value reported in earnings. SFAS No. 159 is effective for fiscal years 
beginning after November 15, 2007. Early adoption within 120 days of the beginning of the Company’s 2007 fiscal year is permissible, provided 
that the Company has not yet issued interim financial statements for 2007 and has adopted SFAS No. 157. The Company is currently evaluating 
the impact of the adoption of SFAS No. 159 on its financial statements.  

Comprehensive Income (Loss)  

The Company reports and displays comprehensive income (loss) and its components in the Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income 
(Loss). Comprehensive income (loss) is the change in equity of a business enterprise during a period from non-owner sources. Excluding net 
income (loss), the Company’s sources of comprehensive income (loss) are from net unrealized appreciation on its marketable securities and 
foreign currency translation adjustments. Reclassification adjustments result from the recognition in net income of gains or losses that were 
included in comprehensive income (loss) in prior periods.  

Reclassifications  

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation. The impact of these changes is not material and 
did not affect net income (loss). See Note 7.  
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3. Ownership interests in Partner Companies, Goodwill and Intangibles, net  

The following table summarizes the Company’s goodwill, other intangibles, and ownership interests in Partner Companies.  

The following table summarizes the 2006 activity related to Goodwill:  

As of December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005, all of the Company’s goodwill was allocated to the Core segment.  

50  

                  
    December 31,     December 31,   
    2006     2005   
    (in thousands)   
                   
Goodwill    $ 17,084     $ 17,794   
     

  

    

  

  

                   
Intangibles, net    $ 182     $ 3,407   
     

  

    

  

  

                   
Ownership interests in Partner Companies — Equity Method    $ 109,288     $ 67,617   
Ownership interests in Partner Companies — Cost Method      28,623       3,836   
     

  
    

  
  

     $ 137,911     $ 71,453   
     

  

    

  

  

          
Goodwill at December 31, 2005    $ 17,794   

Additional acquisition of ICG Commerce      697   
Deconsolidation of StarCite      (2,102 ) 
Additional acquisition of Investor Force      695   

     
  
  

Goodwill at December 31, 2006    $ 17,084   
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3. Ownership Interests in Partner Companies, Goodwill and Intangibles, net — (Continued)  

Intangibles, net are shown in the tables below:  

Intangible Assets at December 31, 2006 relate to ICG Commerce and Investor Force.  

Intangible Assets at December 31, 2005 related to ICG Commerce, Investor Force and StarCite. Specifically, customer lists and tradename 
related to StarCite at December 31, 2005; StarCite is no longer consolidated at December 31, 2006.  

Amortization expense for intangible assets during the three years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $1.7 million, $2.1 million and 
$2.7 million, respectively. Estimated amortization expense for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2007 is $0.2 million.  
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            As of December 31, 2006   
            (in thousands)   
    Useful     Gross Carrying     Accumulated         
Intangible Assets   Life     Amount     Amortization     Net Carrying Amount   
  
Technology    1.5-5 years   $ 18,051     $ (17,869 )   $ 182   
             

  

    

  

    

  

  

                                  
            As of December 31, 2005   
            (in thousands)   
    Useful     Gross Carrying     Accumulated         
Intangible Assets   Life     Amount     Amortization     Net Carrying Amount   
  
Technology    1.5-5 years   $ 18,105     $ (17,229 )   $ 876   
Customer lists    3 years     2,599       (247 )     2,352   
Tradename    Indefinite     179       —      179   
             

  
    

  
    

  
  

             $ 20,883     $ (17,476 )   $ 3,407   
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3. Ownership Interests in Partner Companies, Goodwill and Intangibles, net — (Continued)  

Acquisitions  

During 2006 and 2005, the Company acquired ownership positions in three Partner Companies, Investor Force, ICG Commerce and StarCite, 
which were accounted for under the purchase method of accounting. The purchase price, including the carrying value of the ownership interest 
for Partner Companies previously accounted for under the equity method, has been allocated to the assets and the liabilities based upon their fair 
values at the date of the acquisition. The assets and liabilities for the these acquisitions were allocated as follows (in thousands):  

Following is unaudited selected pro forma financial information had the Company consolidated StarCite for the year ended December 31, 2005. 
Revenue, net income (loss) and net income (loss) per diluted share would have been $54.9 million, $72.3 million and $1.73 per diluted share, 
respectively.  

Deconsolidation/Disposition  

On December 29, 2006, StarCite completed a transaction to consolidate with OnVantage, Inc. Following completion of the transaction, the 
Company’s ownership interest is 26% in the combined entity and will be accounted for under the equity method of accounting. Based on the 
estimated fair value of the combined entity, the Company recorded its share of the difference between the fair value and book value of StarCite 
deemed sold in relation to StarCite’s consolidation with OnVantage of $11.3 million as an increase to “Additional paid-in capital” on its 
Consolidated Balance Sheets. The Company’s carrying value of StarCite as an equity method company at December 31, 2006 was $11.6 million. 
The amount of goodwill and intangibles, net on the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets related to StarCite prior to the transaction was 
$2.1 million and $1.4 million, respectively.  

In October 2005, CommerceQuest, then a consolidated Partner Company, was acquired by Metastorm. Metastorm was an unrelated entity at the 
time of the transaction. In exchange for its interest in CommerceQuest and as a result of a concurrent financing, the Company now owns 41% of 
Metastorm. Based on the estimated fair value of the Company’s ownership interest in Metastorm, the Company recorded an impairment charge 
of approximately $2.7 million during the year ended December 31, 2005 related to $1.8 million of goodwill and $0.9 million of intangibles. The 
amount of goodwill on the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheet related to CommerceQuest prior to the impairment was $27.1 million. 
Beginning October 1, 2005, Metastorm has been accounted for under the equity method of accounting.  

The Company received $0.7 million in cash in February 2006 representing payment under a net working capital adjustment provision associated 
with the Metastorm acquisition. This amount is reflected as “Other income (loss), net” on the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations 
for the year ended December 31, 2005.  
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    Investor Force     ICG Commerce     StarCite   
Net Assets Acquired:                          
Goodwill    $ 695     $ 697     $ 2,102   
Customer base      —      —      2,513   
Technology      —      —      75   
Tradename      —      —      179   
Other net assets (liabilities)      (695 )     233       (1,659 ) 
     

  
    

  
    

  
  

     $ —    $ 930     $ 3,210   
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3. Ownership Interests in Partner Companies, Goodwill and Intangibles, net — (Continued)  

Equity Method Companies  

The following unaudited summarized financial information relates to the Company’s Partner Companies accounted for under the equity method 
of accounting at December 31, 2006 and 2005. This aggregate information has been compiled from the financial statements of the respective 
equity method Partner Companies.  

Balance Sheets (Unaudited)  

Results of Operations (Unaudited)  
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    As of December 31,   
    2006 (1)     2005 (2)   
                   
Cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments    $ 52,170     $ 51,158   
Other current assets      50,763       54,778   
Other non-current assets      128,946       119,429   
     

  
    

  
  

Total assets    $ 231,879     $ 225,365   
     

  

    

  

  

                   
Current liabilities    $ 81,145     $ 89,226   
Non-current liabilities      13,470       1,988   
Long-term debt      14,377       19,276   
Stockholders’  equity      122,887       114,875   
     

  
    

  
  

Total liabilities and stockholders’  equity    $ 231,879       225,365   
     

  

    

  

  

                   
Total carrying value    $ 109,288     $ 67,617   
     

  

    

  

  

  

(1)   Includes (ICG voting ownership): Channel Intelligence (40%), Freeborders (34%), GoIndustry (35%), Marketron (38%), Metastorm 
(41%), StarCite (26%), Vcommerce (46%) and WhiteFence (39%). 

  

(2)   Includes (ICG voting ownership): ComputerJobs (46%), CreditTrade Inc. (“CreditTrade” ) (27%), eCredit (29%), Freeborders (33%) 
GoIndustry AG (54%), Marketron (38%), Metastorm (41%) and WhiteFence (39%). 

                          
Year Ended December 31, 2006   

            Other Holdings/         
    Core (1)     Dispositions (2)     Total   
            (in thousands)           
Revenue    $ 98,674     $ 104,873     $ 203,547   
     

  

    

  

    

  

  

                           
Net income (loss)    $ (13,579 )   $ (9,061 )   $ (22,640 ) 
     

  

    

  

    

  

  

                           
Total equity income (loss)    $ (4,410 )   $ (1,051 )   $ (5,461 ) 
     

  

    

  

    

  

  

  

(1)   Includes Channel Intelligence (from date of acquisition), Freeborders, Marketron, Metastorm, Vcommerce (from date of acquisition) and 
WhiteFence. 

  

(2)   Includes ComputerJobs, CreditTrade, eCredit and GoIndustry. 
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3. Ownership Interests in Partner Companies, Goodwill and Intangibles, net — (Continued)  
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Year Ended December 31, 2005   

            Other Holdings/         
    Core (3)     Dispositions (4)     Total   
            (in thousands)           
Revenue    $ 50,471     $ 160,164     $ 210,635   
     

  

    

  

    

  

  

                           
Net income (loss)    $ (9,599 )   $ 1,085     $ (8,514 ) 
     

  

    

  

    

  

  

                           
Total equity income (loss)    $ (4,165 )   $ (2,538 )   $ (6,703 ) 
     

  

    

  

    

  

  

  

(3)   Includes Freeborders, Marketron, Metastorm (from date of acquisition), WhiteFence (from date of acquisition) and StarCite (for six 
months ended June 30, 2005). 

  

(4)   Includes ComputerJobs, Co-nect, Inc. (“Co-nect” ) (for nine months ended September 30, 2005), CreditTrade, eCredit, GoIndustry AG and 
LinkShare (for nine months ended September 30, 2005). 

                          
Year Ended December 31, 2004   

            Other Holdings/         
    Core (5)     Dispositions (6)     Total   
            (In thousands)           
Revenue    $ 45,484     $ 138,479     $ 183,963   
     

  

    

  

    

  

  

                           
Net income (loss)    $ (13,565 )   $ (13,906 )   $ (27,471 ) 
     

  

    

  

    

  

  

                           
Total equity income (loss)    $ (2,894 )   $ (2,999 )   $ (5,893 ) 
     

  

    

  

    

  

  

  

(5)   Includes Freeborders, Investor Force, Marketron and StarCite. 
  

(6)   Includes ComputerJobs, Co-nect, CreditTrade, eCredit, FoodLink Online LLC, GoIndustry AG and LinkShare. 
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3. Ownership Interests in Partner Companies, Goodwill and Intangibles, net — (Continued)  

Other Equity Company Information  

In November 2006, CreditTrade completed a merger with a subsidiary of Creditex Group Inc. (“Creditex”). The Company received 
approximately $19.0 million in cash for its ownership interest in CreditTrade, of which approximately $1.8 million which has been placed in 
escrow for eighteen months in connection with indemnities pursuant to the terms of the merger agreement. The Company’s carrying value in 
CreditTrade on its Consolidated Balance Sheets prior to the transaction was approximately $4.0 million. In a separate transaction in 
November 2006, the Company purchased capital stock representing a 15% ownership interest in Creditex for approximately $27.7 million. 
Following completion of the merger and the stock purchase, the Company has a 15% ownership interest in Creditex; therefore, Creditex is 
accounted for under the cost method of accounting as of December 31, 2006. The Company recorded these transactions based upon the fair value 
of each entity. The fair value of CreditTrade was based upon the sales transaction (and an independent appraisal) and the fair value of the 
Company’s ownership interest in Creditex was based upon an independent appraisal. As a result, the Company recorded a gain of $10.2 million 
in 2006 related to this transaction that is reflected in “Other income (loss), net” on the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations and 
will record an additional gain in approximately eighteen months to the extent any escrow releases are received.  

In January 2006, GoIndustry, in connection with a reverse merger, began listing its securities on the AIM market of the London Stock Exchange. 
The Company holds 69,177,300 shares of GoIndustry common stock that had a fair value of approximately $24.7 million as of December 31, 
2006 (determined using the closing price on the AIM market) and may receive an additional 11,964,602 shares of GoIndustry common stock as 
contingent consideration in 2007 in connection with the reverse merger. In connection with GoIndustry’s reverse merger and a financing round 
completed during the first six months of 2006, the Company recorded its share of GoIndustry’s equity adjustment of $5.4 million as an increase 
to “Additional paid-in capital” on its Consolidated Balance Sheets. The Company’s carrying value of GoIndustry as an equity method company 
at December 31, 2006 was approximately $5.9 million.  
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4. Marketable Securities and Related Derivatives  

Marketable securities represent the Company’s holdings in equity securities. The cost, unrealized holding gains/(losses), and fair value of 
marketable securities at December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005 were as follows:  

During the year ended December 31, 2006, the Company sold 693,042 shares of Traffic.com for proceeds of $5.5 million. Traffic.com became a 
public company in January 2006. During the year ended December 31, 2005, the Company sold 825,000 shares of Blackboard and received 
proceeds of $16.1 million. During the year ended December 31, 2005, the Company sold its holdings of Arbinet-thexchange Inc. (“Arbinet”) and 
Verticalnet, Inc. (“Verticalnet”) and received aggregate proceeds of $3.1 million. The gains on the Traffic.com, Blackboard, Arbinet and 
Verticalnet sales are reflected in “Other income (loss), net” in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations for the year ended 
December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.  

The amounts reflected as the Company’s cost for Blackboard, Arbinet and Verticalnet include the carrying value on the date these Partner 
Companies converted to marketable securities and the value of warrants exercised.  

The Company holds certain marketable securities in Partner Companies that are publicly traded. The Company manages the Company’s 
exposure to and benefits from price fluctuations of these marketable securities by selectively using derivatives or hedges. At inception, the 
Company formally designates and documents the qualifying financial instrument as a hedge of an underlying exposure. The Company formally 
assesses, both at inception and at least quarterly on an ongoing basis, whether the financial instruments used in hedging transactions are effective 
at offsetting changes in the fair value or cash flows of the related underlying exposure. Fluctuations in the derivative value generally are offset 
by changes in the fair value or cash flow of the exposures being hedged. This offset is driven by the high degree of effectiveness between the 
exposure being hedged and the hedging instrument. Any ineffective portion of an instrument’s change in fair value is immediately recognized in 
earnings.  

In 2006 and 2007, the Company entered into cashless collar contracts to hedge a portion of the Company’s holdings in Blackboard. These 
cashless collar contracts meet specific conditions under SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” and are 
accounted for as cash flow hedges. For cash flow hedges, the effective portion of the changes in fair value are reported in other comprehensive 
income. The fair value of these cash flow hedges was an asset of $0.4 million at December 31, 2006. There was no ineffectiveness recognized in 
earnings related to the Company’s hedging activity in 2006.  
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                    Unrealized         
    Common Shares             Holding         
    Owned     Cost     Gains/(Losses)     Fair Value   
    (in thousands, except shares)   
December 31, 2006                                  
Blackboard      2,187,060     $ 3,162     $ 62,536     $ 65,698   
Blackboard hedges              —      357       357   
Other              —      20       20   
             

  
    

  
    

  
  

             $ 3,162     $ 62,913     $ 66,075   
             

  

    

  

    

  

  

December 31, 2005                                  
Blackboard      2,187,060     $ 3,162     $ 60,219     $ 63,381   
Other              —      44       44   
             

  
    

  
    

  
  

             $ 3,162     $ 60,263     $ 63,425   
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4. Marketable Securities and Related Derivatives — (Continued)  

In 2006, the Company entered into the following cashless collar contracts to hedge 750,000 shares of its holdings of Blackboard common stock:  

In 2007, the Company entered into the following cashless collar contracts to hedge 375,000 shares of its holdings of Blackboard common stock:  

5. Debt  

Senior Convertible Notes  

In February 2007, the Company repurchased and extinguished the remaining $26.6 million of its April 2009 senior convertible notes for 
$37.1 million plus accrued interest. The Company will record a loss of $10.9 million on these repurchases, including $0.4 million for the 
acceleration of deferred financing fees. The loss will be included in “Other income (loss), net” in the first quarter of 2007.  

In May 2006, the Company repurchased $10.4 million of face value of its senior convertible notes for $12.8 million in cash, including accrued 
interest. The Company recorded a $2.5 million loss on the repurchase (including $0.1 million for the acceleration of deferred financing fees) 
during the year ended December 31, 2006 related to this transaction. Between October and November 2005, the Company repurchased an 
aggregate of $23.0 million of principal amount in total of the April 2009 senior convertible notes for $28.4 million in cash. The Company 
recorded a $5.9 million loss on the repurchase during the year ended December 31, 2005 including approximately $0.5 million related to the 
acceleration of deferred financing fees. These losses are included in “Other income (loss), net” on the Company’s Consolidated Statements of 
Operations.  

In April 2004, the Company issued $60.0 million of senior convertible notes. The notes bore interest at an annual rate of 5%, payable semi-
annually, and were set to mature in April 2009. The notes were convertible at the option of the holder, at any time on or before maturity into 
shares of the Company’s common stock at a conversion price of $9.108 per share. Additionally, subsequent to October 8, 2004, provided that at 
the time of redemption the Company was in compliance with certain other requirements, the notes could be redeemed by the Company if the 
Company’s closing stock price had exceeded $15.94 per share for at least 20 out of 30 consecutive trading days.  

Except for certain permitted senior indebtedness and liens created in connection with certain hedging transactions, the notes (i) were senior to all 
other indebtedness, (ii) prohibited incurring or guaranteeing additional indebtedness, (iii) prohibited liens on Company assets, (iv) prohibited 
redemptions of the Company’s common stock, except in certain instances, and (v) prohibited the payment of dividends and the distribution of 
any material assets of the Company to stockholders.  

The Company recorded interest expense of $1.5 million, $2.8 million and $2.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, 
respectively, related to these notes. Deferred financing fees related to the senior convertible notes of $1.6 million were being amortized over the 
life of the notes. Included in “Prepaid  
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        Minimum           Maximum     

Shares   Expiration   Price per   Minimum   Price per   Maximum 
Hedged   Date   Share   Value   Share   Value 

500,000    March 15, 2010   $ 22.4419     $11.2 million   $ 55.4982     $27.7 million 
125,000    April 15, 2010   $ 23.2841     $2.9 million   $ 59.8307     $7.5 million 
125,000    March 15, 2010   $ 22.2223     $2.8 million   $ 49.8223     $6.2 million 

                                          
        Minimum           Maximum     

Shares   Expiration   Price per   Minimum   Price per   Maximum 
Hedged   Date   Share   Value   Share   Value 

125,000    March 15, 2010   $ 22.2107     $2.8 million   $ 49.6438     $6.2 million 
250,000    March 15, 2010   $ 24.0453     $6.0 million   $ 53.4521     $13.4 million 
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5. Debt — (Continued)  

expenses and other current assets” in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2006 were $0.4 million of deferred 
financing fees. Included in “Other assets” in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2005 were $0.7 million of deferred 
financing fees. The Company expensed $0.2 million, $0.3 million and $0.3 million relating to these fees in the years ended December 31, 2006, 
2005 and 2004, respectively.  

Convertible Subordinated Notes  

In December 1999, the Company issued $566.3 million of convertible subordinated notes. The notes bore interest at an annual rate of 5.5% and 
were scheduled to mature in December 2004. From 2001 through March 31, 2004, the Company repurchased and extinguished $527.2 million of 
the original $566.3 million face value of convertible notes for $89.8 million in cash and 23.2 million shares of the Company’s common stock in a 
series of separate transactions. In June 2004, the Company redeemed for cash the remaining $39.1 million face value of convertible notes for 
$39.5 million, recognizing a $0.4 million loss on the early redemption. This loss is included in “Other income (loss), net” in the Company’s 
Consolidated Statements of Operations.  

The following tables summarize the Company’s cash debt repurchases and debt for equity exchanges:  

The debt for equity exchanges were accounted for in accordance with SFAS No. 84, “Induced Conversions of Convertible Debt,” and, 
accordingly, the Company recorded expense equal to the fair value of the shares issued in excess of the fair value of the shares issuable pursuant 
to the original conversion terms, less accrued interest. Additionally, additional paid-in capital increased by the face value of the convertible notes 
exchanged and the fair value of the shares issued in excess of the shares issuable pursuant to the original terms.  
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    Year Ended   
    December 31, 2004   
    (in thousands)   
           
Cash repurchases of convertible debt          
Face value of convertible subordinated notes repurchased/redeemed    $ 39,111   
Cash paid      (39,541 ) 
Other expenses      (169 ) 
     

  
  

Loss recorded    $ (599 ) 
     

  

  

          
    Year Ended   
    December 31, 2004   
    (in thousands)   
           
Debt for equity exchanges          
Face value of convertible subordinated notes exchanged    $ 134,808   
     

  

  

Shares of common stock issued for debt exchange      15,887   
     

  

  

Fair value of common stock issued    $ (133,264 ) 
Fair value of common stock issued-original terms      449   
Accrued interest      790   
Other expenses      (534 ) 
     

  
  

Expense recorded    $ (132,559 ) 
     

  
  

Net expense included in “Other income (loss), net”  for cash repurchases and debt for equity exchanges (Note 15)    $ (133,158 ) 
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The Company recorded interest expense of $1.6 million during 2004 in connection with these notes.  

Other Long-Term Debt  

The Company’s other long-term debt at December 31, 2006 relates to its consolidated Partner Companies, ICG Commerce and Investor Force, 
and primarily consists of secured notes due to the current shareholders of ICG Commerce's former German subsidiary. The Company’s long-
term debt at December 31, 2005 related to its consolidated Partner Companies, ICG Commerce, Investor Force and StarCite, and primarily 
consisted of secured notes due to stockholders and outside lenders of StarCite and ICG Commerce. See Note 3 regarding StarCite.  

The Company’s other long-term debt of $0.9 million and $0.6 million is due in 2007 and 2008, respectively.  

Loan and Credit Agreements  

On September 30, 2002, the Company entered into a loan agreement with Comerica Bank to provide for the issuance of letters of credit (the 
“Loan Agreement”). The Loan Agreement provided for issuances of letters of credit up to $20 million, subject to a cash-secured borrowing base 
as defined by the Loan Agreement. The Loan Agreement was reduced to $10 million in 2004. In December 2006, the Loan Agreement was 
extended to December 15, 2007. Issuance fees of 0.50% per annum of the face amount of each letter of credit will be paid to Comerica Bank 
subsequent to issuance. The Loan Agreement also is subject to a 0.25% per annum unused commitment fee payable to the bank quarterly. No 
amounts were outstanding at December 31, 2006 or 2005.  
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        As of December 31,   
    Interest Rates   2006     2005   
        (in thousands)   
  
Notes payable    6.0-10%   $ —    $ 3,158   
Capital leases    10.3-15.7%     168       382   
Other Debt    5.0%     1,323       1,980   
     

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

           1,491       5,520   
Current maturities          (947 )     (1,113 ) 
     

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

Long term debt        $ 544     $ 4,407   
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6. Fixed Assets  

Fixed assets consist of the following:  

Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $1.7 million, $1.1 million and $1.1 million, respectively.  

7. Discontinued Operations  

In August 2006, Investor Force completed the sale of its database division to Morningstar for $10.0 million. Cash proceeds to Investor Force of 
$9.0 million were received in August 2006, and $1.0 million was placed into escrow with an anticipated release in August 2007. The Company 
recorded a gain of approximately $7.0 million on this transaction for the three months ended September 30, 2006. The $1.0 million placed in 
escrow will be recognized as an additional gain when the amount of the escrow proceeds are fixed and determinable and realization is assured.  

Investor Force’s database division had revenues of $1.6 million until the sale in August 2006 and $3.0 million for the year ended December 31, 
2005. The Company’s share of net income for Investor Force’s database division was $1.2 million until the sale in August 2006 and $1.9 million 
for the year ended December 31, 2005.  

In 2005, ICG Commerce entered into an agreement to sell its German subsidiary for nominal consideration. The sale closed in January 2006. 
ICG Commerce’s German subsidiary had revenues of $9.8 million and $10.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, 
respectively. The Company recorded a loss of $2.3 million on this transaction in December 2005. The Company’s share of net losses for ICG 
Commerce’s German subsidiary was $0.7 million and $0.4 million for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.  

During 2006 and 2004, the Company received $0.1 million and $3.0 million, respectively, of additional proceeds from the sale of the assets of 
Delphion, Inc.  

In accordance with SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” these partner companies have been 
treated as discontinued operations. Accordingly, the operating results of these discontinued operations have been presented separately from 
continuing operations and include the gains or losses recognized on disposition in the line item “Income (loss) on discontinued operations” in the 
Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations.  
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        As of December 31,   
    Useful Life   2006     2005   
        (in thousands)   
Computer equipment and software, office equipment and furniture    3-10 years   $ 15,278     $ 16,270   
Leasehold improvements    1-5 years     167       289   
     

  
  

  
    

  
  

           15,445       16,559   
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization          (13,598 )     (14,673 ) 
     

  
  

  
    

  
  

         $ 1,847     $ 1,886   
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8. Segment Information  

The Company’s reportable segments using the “management approach” under SFAS No. 131, “Disclosure About Segments of a Business 
Enterprise and Related Information,” consist of two operating segments, the Core operating segment and the Other Holdings operating segment. 
Each segment includes the results of the Company’s Consolidated Partner Companies and records the Company’s share of earnings and losses of 
Partner Companies accounted for under the equity method of accounting and captures the Company’s basis in the assets of all of its partner 
companies. Any marketable securities are considered “Corporate” assets whereas, prior to becoming marketable securities, the Partner Company 
would have been included in the Core or Other Holdings category.  

The Core operating segment includes those partner companies in which the Company’s management takes a very active role in providing 
strategic direction and management assistance. The Other Holdings operating segment includes stakes in companies that are, in general, 
managed to provide the greatest near-term stockholder value.  

Approximately 5% and 14% of the Company’s consolidated revenues for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively, relates to 
sales generated in the United Kingdom. As of December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, the Company’s assets were located primarily in the United 
States.  

The following summarizes selected information related to the Company’s segments for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004. All 
significant intersegment activity has been eliminated. Assets are owned or allocated assets used by each operating segment.  

61  

                                                          
Segment Information 

(in thousands) 
                            Reconciling Items     
                            Discontinued                     
                    Total   Operations and                   Consolidated 
    Core   Other Holdings   Segment   Dispositions   Corporate   Other   Results 

Year Ended December 31, 
2006                                                          

Revenues    $ 64,749     $ —    $ 64,749     $ —    $ —    $ —    $ 64,749   
Net income (loss)    $ (13,911 )   $ 592     $ (13,319 )   $ 6,646     $ (13,788 )   $ 36,085 *   $ 15,624   
Assets    $ 172,129     $ 9,781     $ 181,910     $ —    $ 172,517     $ —    $ 354,427   
Capital Expenditures    $ (2,037 )   $ —    $ (2,037 )   $ —    $ (228 )   $ —    $ (2,265 ) 
                                                           
Year Ended December 31, 

2005                                                          
Revenues    $ 47,568     $ —    $ 47,568     $ —    $ —    $ —    $ 47,568   
Net income (loss)    $ (23,120 )   $ (4,852 )   $ (27,972 )   $ 1,184     $ (18,473 )   $ 117,779 *   $ 72,518   
Assets    $ 118,286     $ 3,836     $ 122,122     $ 15,299     $ 209,111     $ —    $ 346,532   
Capital Expenditures    $ (830 )   $ —    $ (830 )   $ —    $ (135 )   $ —    $ (965 ) 
                                                           
Year Ended December 31, 

2004                                                          
Revenues    $ 41,857     $ —    $ 41,857     $ —    $ —    $ —    $ 41,857   
Net income (loss)    $ (10,856 )   $ (2,215 )   $ (13,071 )   $ 1,804     $ (18,116 )   $ (105,934) *   $ (135,317 ) 
Assets    $ 110,204     $ 6,699     $ 116,903     $ 31,172     $ 129,531     $ —    $ 277,606   
Capital Expenditures, net    $ (843 )   $ —    $ (843 )   $ —    $ (160 )   $ —    $ (1,003 ) 

  

*   Other reconciling items to net income (loss) are as follows: 
                          
    Year Ended December 31,   
    2006     2005     2004   
                           
Other income (loss) (Note 15)    $ 34,813     $ 136,603     $ (106,705 ) 
Taxes      40       (18,640 )     —  
Minority interest      1,232       2,513       771   
Impairment of consolidated Partner Companies      —      (2,697 )     —  
     

  
    

  
    

  
  

     $ 36,085     $ 117,779     $ (105,934 ) 
     

  

    

  

    

  

  



Table of Contents  

INTERNET CAPITAL GROUP, INC.  
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)  

9. Parent Company Financial Information  

Parent company financial information is provided to present the financial position and results of operations of the Company and its wholly-
owned subsidiaries as if the Partner Companies accounted for under the consolidation method of accounting were accounted for under the equity 
method of accounting for all applicable periods presented. The Company’s share of the consolidated Partner Companies’ losses is included in 
“Equity loss” in the Parent Company Statements of Operations for all periods presented based on the Company’s ownership percentage in each 
period. The carrying value of the consolidated companies as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 is included in “Ownership interests in Partner 
Companies” in the Parent Company Balance Sheets.  

Parent Company Balance Sheets  

Parent Company Statements of Operations  
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    December 31,   
    2006     2005   
    (in thousands)   
Assets                  

Cash and cash equivalents    $ 104,249     $ 129,555   
Other current assets      1,904       14,226   

     
  
    

  
  

Current assets      106,153       143,781   
Ownership interests in Partner Companies      159,356       94,639   
Marketable securities      66,075       63,425   
Other      1,480       2,815   

     
  
    

  
  

Total assets    $ 333,064     $ 304,660   
     

  

    

  

  

                   
Liabilities and stockholders’  equity                  

Current portion of senior convertible notes    $ 26,590     $ —  
Current liabilities      7,936       11,415   
Senior convertible notes      —      37,000   
Stockholders’  equity      298,538       256,245   

     
  
    

  
  

Total liabilities and stockholders’  equity    $ 333,064     $ 304,660   
     

  

    

  

  

                          
    Year Ended December 31,   
    2006     2005     2004   
    (in thousands)   
                           
Revenue    $ —    $ —    $ —  
Operating expenses                          

General and administrative      20,873       18,779       14,074   
Impairment related and other      —      2,697       476   

     
  
    

  
    

  
  

Total operating expenses      20,873       21,476       14,550   
     

  
    

  
    

  
  

       (20,873 )     (21,476 )     (14,550 ) 
Other income (loss), net *      42,058       136,603       (103,705 ) 
Interest income (expense), net      7,086       306       (3,595 ) 
     

  
    

  
    

  
  

Income (loss) before income taxes and equity loss      28,271       115,433       (121,850 ) 
     

  
    

  
    

  
  

Income tax benefit (expense)      40       (18,640 )     —  
Equity loss      (12,687 )     (24,275 )     (13,467 ) 
     

  
    

  
    

  
  

Net income (loss)    $ 15,624     $ 72,518     $ (135,317 ) 
     

  

    

  

    

  

  

  

*   For purposes of Parent Company reporting, discontinued operations (see Note 7) are included in the “Other income (loss), net”  line item. 
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9. Parent Company Financial Information — (Continued)  

Parent Company Statements of Cash Flows  

10. Stockholders’ Equity  

Holders of the Company’s Common Stock are entitled to one vote per share and are entitled to dividends as declared. Dividends were restricted 
by the senior convertible notes and may be restricted by the inability to liquidate ownership interests in Partner Companies to fund cash 
dividends and may be subject to the preferential rights of the holders of the Company’s preferred stock, if any. No cash dividends have been 
declared to date, and the Company may not declare dividends in the foreseeable future.  

The Company may establish one or more classes or series of preferred stock. The holders of the preferred stock may be entitled to preferences 
over common stockholders with respect to dividends, liquidation, dissolution, or winding up of the Company, as established by the Company’s 
Board of Directors. As of December 31, 2006, 10,000,000 shares of preferred stock were authorized, none of which have been issued.  
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    Year Ended December 31   
    2006     2005     2004   
    (in thousands)   
                           
Operating Activities                          
Net income (loss)    $ 15,624     $ 72,518     $ (135,317 ) 
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to cash used in operating activities                          

Depreciation and amortization      138       144       71   
Impairment related and other      —      2,697       476   
Stock-based compensation      7,624       4,331       1,413   
Equity loss      12,687       24,275       13,467   
Other income (loss)      (42,058 )     (136,603 )     103,705   

Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effect of acquisitions:                          
Restricted cash      —      —      850   
Taxes receivable      —      (8,392 )     —  
Prepaid expenses and other assets      9,543       (73 )     1,176   
Accounts payable      (4,149 )     62       (189 ) 
Accrued expenses      (200 )     1,362       869   

     
  
    

  
    

  
  

Cash used in operating activities      (791 )     (39,679 )     (13,479 ) 
Investing Activities                          

Capital expenditures, net      (228 )     (135 )     (172 ) 
Proceeds from disposals of fixed assets      —      —      12   
Proceeds from sales of marketable securities      5,554       19,153       7,798   
Proceeds from sales of ownership interests in Partner Companies      44,845       141,719       25,668   
Acquisitions of ownership interests in Partner Companies, net      (66,542 )     (30,383 )     (21,147 ) 
Purchase of short-term investments      —      (4,922 )     (85,219 ) 
Proceeds from maturities of short-term investments      —      62,862       27,279   

     
  
    

  
    

  
  

Cash provided by (used in) investing activities      (16,371 )     188,294       (45,781 ) 
Financing Activities                          

Issuance of senior convertible notes, net      —      —      58,215   
Repurchase of senior convertible notes      (12,768 )     (28,405 )     —  
Repurchase of convertible subordinated notes      —      —      (39,541 ) 
Repayment of loans from employees      4,624       —      160   

     
  
    

  
    

  
  

Cash provided by (used in) financing activities      (8,144 )     (28,405 )     18,834   
     

  
    

  
    

  
  

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents      (25,306 )     120,210       (40,426 ) 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning at year      129,555       9,345       49,771   
     

  
    

  
    

  
  

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year    $ 104,249     $ 129,555     $ 9,345   
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10. Stockholders’ Equity — (Continued)  

Stockholder Rights Plan  

During 2000, the Company enacted a stockholder rights plan. Under the stockholder rights plan, preferred stock purchase rights were distributed 
as a dividend at the rate of one right for each share of Common Stock outstanding as of the close of business on December 6, 2000 and one right 
per share has been issued in connection with shares issued subsequent to such date. Each right entitles the holder to purchase from the Company 
one ten-thousandth of a share of series A junior participating preferred stock of the Company at an exercise price of $100 per right. The rights 
attached to the Company’s Common Stock are not currently exercisable. The rights become exercisable and will separate from the Common 
Stock upon the earlier to occur of (i) ten calendar days after a person or group acquires, or announces the intent to acquire, beneficial ownership 
of 15% or more of the Company’s Common Stock, or (ii) ten business days (or a later date following such announcement if determined by the 
Board of Directors of the Company in accordance with the plan) after the announcement of a tender offer or an exchange offer to acquire 15% or 
more of the Company’s outstanding Common Stock.  

The rights are redeemable for $0.0001 per right at the option of the Company’s Board of Directors at any time prior to the close of business on 
the tenth business day after the announcement of a stock acquisition event described above. If not redeemed, the rights will expire on 
November 22, 2010. Prior to the date upon which the rights would become exercisable under the plan, the Company’s outstanding stock 
certificates will represent both the shares of Common Stock and the rights will trade only with the shares of Common Stock.  

Generally, if the rights become exercisable, then each stockholder other than the acquirer is entitled to purchase, for the exercise price, that 
number of shares of Common Stock that, at the time of the transaction, will have a market value of three times the exercise price of the rights. In 
addition, if, after the rights become exercisable, the Company is acquired in a merger or other business combination, or 50% or more of its assets 
or earning power are sold, each right will entitle the holder to purchase, at the exercise price of the rights, that number of shares of Common 
Stock of the acquiring company that, at the time of the transaction, will have a market value of three times the exercise price of the rights.  

Common Stock Issued in Exchange for Convertible Debt  

During 2004, the Company issued 15,886,698 shares of Common Stock in exchange for convertible debt. See Note 5.  
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11. Stock Option Plans  

Incentive or non-qualified stock options may be granted to Company employees, directors and consultants under the 2005 Omnibus Equity 
Compensation Plan (the “2005 Equity Plan”), the Membership Profit Interest Plan (the “MPI Plan”), the 1999 Equity Compensation Plan (the 
“1999 Plan”) or the LGO Corporation 2001 Equity Compensation Plan (f/k/a Logistics.com 2001 Equity Compensation Plan) (the “LGO Plan” 
and, together with the 2005 Equity Plan, MPI Plan and the 1999 Plan, the “Plans”). Generally, the grants vest over a two to five year period and 
expire eight to ten years after the date of grant. At December 31, 2006, the Company had 542,873 shares of common stock reserved for under the 
Plans for possible future issuance. Most Partner Companies also maintain their own stock option plans.  

The following table is a summary of the Company’s stock-based compensation expense ($ in millions):  

Stock-Based Compensation is included in “Selling, General and Administrative” on the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations.  

Stock Appreciation Rights  

In 2005 and 2006, the Company issued stock appreciation rights (“SARs”) to certain employees. The Company granted SARs at a base price 
equal to the fair market value of its common stock on the date of grant, as determined by the most recent closing share price of the Company’s 
common stock prior to the Board of Directors meeting at which the grant was made, as reported on The Nasdaq Stock Market. Each SAR 
represents the right of the holder to receive, upon exercise of the SAR, shares of common stock equal to the amount by which the fair market 
value of a share of common stock on the date of exercise of the SAR exceeds the base price of the SAR. The SARs primarily vest over four years 
and were subject to variable accounting from their grant date in 2005 through the Company’s adoption of SFAS No. 123R on January 1, 2006.  
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                                    Weighted   
                                    Average Years   
                                    Remaining of   
                                    Stock-Based   
                            Unrecognized Stock-     Compensation   
    Year Ended     Based Compensation     Expense at   
    December 31,     at December 31, 2006     December 31, 2006   
    2006     2005     2004                   
                                           
SARs    $ 4.2     $ 0.8     $ —    $ 10.2       2.5   
Stock Options    $ 0.5     $ 0.2     $ 0.5     $ 0.2       1.3   
Restricted Stock    $ 2.6     $ 2.9     $ 0.9     $ 4.0       1.6   
DSUs    $ 0.3     $ 0.4     $ —    $ —      0.1   
     

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
          

Stock-Based Compensation    $ 7.6     $ 4.3     $ 1.4     $ 14.4           
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11. Stock Option Plans — (Continued)  

Changes in SARs for the year ended December 31, 2006 were as follows:  

The following table summarizes information about SARs outstanding at December 31:  

Stock Options  

The fair value of each stock option is estimated on the date of the grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. Stock options generally 
vest over four years.  
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            Weighted Average     Weighted Average   
    SARs     Base Price     Fair Value   
SARs granted in 2005      3,605,500     $ 7.34     $ 4.43   
Issued at December 31, 2005      3,605,500     $ 7.34     $ 4.43   
SARs cancelled      (156,771 )   $ 7.34     $ 4.43   
SARs granted      201,450     $ 9.25     $ 5.66   
     

  
    

  
    

  
  

Issued at December 31, 2006      3,650,179     $ 7.45     $ 4.50   
     

  

    

  

    

  

  

                                  
2006   

                    Weighted Average     Aggregate Intrinsic   
                    Remaining     Value of SARs   
                    Contractual Life     Outstanding at   
    SARs     SARs     of SARs Outstanding     December 31, 2006   

Grant Price   Outstanding     Exercisable     (in Years)     (in thousands)   
$7.34      3,443,729       1,257,248       8.6     $ 10,056   
$8.14 — $10.69      206,450       50,087       9.4     $ 219   
     

  
    

  
            

  
  

       3,650,179       1,307,335             $ 10,275   
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11. Stock Option Plans — (Continued)  

Changes in stock options for the year ended December 31, 2006 were as follows:  

At December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 there were 615,652, 634,953 and 583,751 options exercisable, respectively, at a weighted average 
exercise price of $38.17, $41.62 and $44.98 per share, respectively, under the Plans.  

The following tables summarize information about stock options outstanding at December 31:  

At December 31, 2006, the Company expects an additional 21,802 shares to vest.  

Included in stock-based compensation for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 is approximately $0.1 million and $0.5 million, 
respectively, related to option grants to non-employees in the year ended December 31, 2000.  
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            Weighted Average     Weighted Average   
            Grant Date     Grant Date   
    Shares     Exercise Price     Fair Value   
Outstanding at December 31, 2003      825,094     $ 61.60     $ 50.04   
Options granted      55,100     $ 7.90     $ 5.98   
Options forfeited      (89,365 )   $ 244.15     $ 195.76   
     

  
              

Outstanding at December 31, 2004      790,829     $ 37.19     $ 30.51   
Options granted      12,000     $ 7.73     $ 5.06   
Options forfeited      (75,942 )   $ 32.10     $ 27.16   
     

  
              

Outstanding at December 31, 2005      726,887     $ 37.24     $ 30.44   
Options granted      250     $ 9.34     $ 5.74   
Options forfeited      (89,683 )   $ 38.01     $ 35.73   
     

  
              

Issued at December 31, 2006      637,454     $ 37.12     $ 29.69   
     

  

    

  

    

  

  

                                  
2006   

                    Weighted Average         
                    Remaining         
                    Contractual Life     Aggregate Intrinsic   
                    of Shares     Value at   
    Shares     Shares     Outstanding     December 31, 2006   

Exercise Price   Outstanding     Vested     (in Years)     (in thousands)   
$4.59 — $8.00      137,224       123,338       6.5     $ 690   
$8.01 — $12.00      186,483       178,567       6.3     $ 240   
$12.01 — $20.00      127,199       127,199       4.9     $ —  
$20.01 — $2,210.00      186,548       186,548       3.5     $ —  
     

  
    

  
            

  
  

       637,454       615,652             $ 930   
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11. Stock Option Plans — (Continued)  

SARs and Stock Options Fair Value Assumptions  

The following assumptions were used to determine the fair value of stock options and SARs granted to employees by the Company for the three 
years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004:  

The Company estimates the grant date fair value of SARs and stock options using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model, which requires the 
input of highly subjective assumptions. These assumptions include estimating the expected life of the award and the estimated volatility of our 
stock price over the expected term. Expected volatility is based on historical volatility of our Common Stock over the period commensurate with 
the expected term of the stock options. The expected term calculation for stock options granted is based on the “simplified” method described in 
SAB No. 107, Share-Based Payment. The risk-free interest rate is based on the U.S. Treasury yield in effect at the time of grant for an instrument 
with a maturity that is commensurate with the expected term of the options. Changes in these assumptions as well as a change in the estimated 
forfeitures of SARs and stock option awards can materially affect the amount of stock-based compensation recognized in the Consolidated 
Statements of Operations. Changes in the derived requisite service period can materially affect the amount of stock-based compensation 
recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.  

Restricted Stock  

Changes in restricted stock for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 are shown in the following table:  

The total aggregate fair value of restricted stock awards that vested and were converted to common stock during the years ended December 31, 
2006 and 2005 was $3.1 million and $2.7 million, respectively. At December 31, 2006, the Company expects 796,887 shares to vest.  
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    2006   2005   2004 

Expected volatility    60%   60-70%   70-132.99% 
Average expected option life    6.25 years   6.25 years   3 years 
Risk-free interest rate    4.55-5.10%   3.91-4.26%   2.26-2.88% 
Dividend yield    0.0%   0.0%   0.0% 

                  
            Weighted Average   
            Grant Date Fair   
    Shares     Value   
Restricted stock granted in 2004      640,326     $ 6.89   
Forfeited      (12,498 )   $ 7.20   
     

  
    

  
  

Issued and unvested, December 31, 2004      627,828     $ 6.89   
Granted      819,300     $ 7.34   
Vested      (314,063 )   $ 7.02   
     

  
    

  
  

Issued and unvested, December 31, 2005      1,133,065     $ 7.15   
     

  
    

  
  

Granted      49,620     $ 9.28   
Vested      (326,563 )   $ 7.12   
Forfeited      (37,500 )   $ 7.34   
     

  
    

  
  

Issued and unvested December 31, 2006      818,622     $ 7.28   
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Recipients of restricted stock did not pay any cash consideration to the Company for the shares, have the right to vote all shares subject to the 
grant and receive all dividends with respect to the shares, whether or not the shares have vested. The 2006, 2005 and 2004 restricted stock grants 
were valued at $0.5 million, $6.0 million and $4.4 million, respectively, and are being amortized over the vesting period. The 2006 restricted 
stock grants primarily vest 33% in 2006 and ratably 33% each November through 2008. The 2005 restricted stock grants vested 25% in 2005 and 
ratably 25% per year through 2008. The 2004 restricted stock grants generally vest ratably over four years with acceleration provisions based on 
certain operating metrics.  

Deferred Stock Units  

In 2006, each non-management member of the Company’s Board of Directors received deferred stock units (“DSUs”) for his service on the 
Board and its committees under the Company’s Non-Management Director Compensation Plan (the “Director Plan”). DSUs received by 
directors in conjunction with their service on the Board and its committees vest on the anniversary date of the grant. Also in 2006, the Company 
issued quarterly compensation payments to each non-management director for his service on the Board and its committees under the Director 
Plan. The director had the right to elect to receive such payments in whole or in part in the form of DSUs in lieu of cash under the Internet 
Capital Group, Inc. Director Deferred Stock Unit Program. If directors elect to receive DSUs in conjunction with the quarterly compensation 
payments, the directors are entitled to the right to receive the number of shares of Common Stock of the Company equal to the fees earned by the 
director divided by 75% of the fair market value of a share of the Company’s common stock as of the date on which the fees would have been 
paid. The Company recorded expense when these DSUs were issued as they are immediately vested on the date of grant.  

During the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Company issued DSUs to the Company’s non-management directors valued at 
$0.6 million and $0.8 million, respectively. The expense of $0.3 million and $0.4 million for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, 
respectively, associated with the annual DSU grants is included in share-based payment expense. The expense of $0.4 million and $0.3 million 
for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively, associated with the quarterly grants for service are included in selling, general 
and administrative (and not reflected in the Stock-Based Compensation table above) on the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations. 
Changes in DSUs for the year ended December 31, 2006 are shown in the following table:  

Consolidated Partner Companies  

The Company also included its share of its Partner Companies’ SFAS No. 123 pro forma expense in the Company’s SFAS No. 123 pro forma 
expense.  
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            Weighted Average Grant Date   
    DSUs     Fair Value   
Issued and unvested, January 1, 2005      —      —  
Granted      108,843     $ 7.44   
Vested      34,781     $ 7.65   
Issued and unvested, December 31, 2005      74,062     $ 7.34   
Granted      56,494     $ 9.08   
Vested      (109,056 )   $ 7.87   
     

  
    

  
  

Issued and unvested, December 31, 2006      21,500     $ 9.22   
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The Company’s consolidated Partner Companies recorded $0.1 million of compensation expense related to stock-based awards during the year 
ended December 31, 2006.  

In December 2006, ICG Commerce exchanged its employee stock options to restricted stock and granted restricted stock-based awards to their 
new CEO. The total fair value associated with these activities was $2.3 million.  

At December 31, 2006, the total unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested stock-based awards granted under the consolidated 
Partner Companies’ plans was $2.2 million. That cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 3.7 years.  

Other  

During 2004, the Company issued 33,282 shares of common stock, valued at $0.3 million, to certain executive officers of the Company in 
payment of a portion of amounts due under the 2003 bonus plan.  

In 1999, the Company accepted full recourse promissory notes totaling $79.8 million from certain employees and a director as consideration for 
exercising all or a portion of their vested and unvested stock options issued under the 1999 Plan (a total of 1,799,575 shares of common stock 
were issued in connection with these exercises). These notes receivable were recorded as a reduction of stockholders’ equity (deficit). Through 
December 31, 2002, of the $79.8 million original principal balance, the Company received cash payments of $16.0 million and $33.2 million in 
connection with employees’ termination of employment, primarily through the repurchase of unvested shares, at the lower of cost or fair market 
value, and vested shares, at fair market value.  

In 1999 and 2000, the Company made loans to employees to pay income taxes that became due in connection with the above-described option 
exercises. The outstanding principal and accrued interest balance on these loans at December 31, 2005 totaled approximately $4.8 million 
(including $3.6 million in principal and $1.2 million in interest) against which the Company recorded a reserve of approximately $2.0 million.  

In 2001 and 2002, certain employees’ and former employees’ loans were modified from full recourse to 25% recourse of the original above-
described option loan principal, the interest rate on the loans was modified to the applicable federal rate as of the date of modification and 
extension of the term of the loans from five years to (i) the earlier of December 1, 2006 or 3 years after separation of employment for the 2001 
modifications and (ii) to December 1, 2006 for the 2002 modifications. These modifications to the loans resulted in accounting for the loans and 
774,716 shares of underlying common stock as options. Accordingly, these options have been treated for accounting purposes as variable awards 
since the modification date. The impact of these variable awards was not significant through December 2006. Additionally, accrued interest on 
these loans was fully reserved for since the modification date.  

Other than the $2.8 million at December 31, 2005 of tax loans discussed above and $0.3 million reflected as “Note Receivable-Stockholders,” 
these option and tax loans and accrued interest were no longer recorded on the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2005. 
All loans have matured at December 31, 2006 which is discussed below.  
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All remaining loans to current and former employees matured in 2005 and 2006. At maturity, of the recourse portion of the loans collected of 
$4.6 million, $2.8 million was applied to the principal portion of the tax loans, $0.7 million to additional paid-in capital, $1.0 million to interest 
income and $0.1 million to “Notes Receivable-Stockholders.” Additionally, the Company foreclosed on approximately 787,000 shares in 2006 
and 2005 of the Company’s common stock securing these loans and recorded a $0.1 million reduction to “Notes Receivable-Stockholders” and 
forgave less than $0.1 million. The foreclosures are reflected as “Repurchase of common stock from current and former employees” on the 
Company’s Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit).  
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12. Income Taxes  

Total income tax expense (benefit) was allocated as follows:  

The provision for income tax expense (benefit) consists of:  

The current (benefit) expense consists of U. S. federal income taxes.  

During 2005, the Company made an estimated federal income tax payment of $26.9 million and the tax benefit of stock-based compensation 
included in equity is $0.1 million. Accordingly, an income tax receivable of $8.4 million is included in “Prepaid expenses and other current 
assets” on the Company’s December 31, 2005 Consolidated Balance Sheets. The income tax refund was received in 2006.  

At December 31, 2006, the Company had federal net operating loss carry forwards of approximately $500 million that may be used to offset 
future taxable income. The Company also had capital loss carry forwards of approximately $667 million that may be used to offset future capital 
gains. The net operating loss and capital loss carry forwards, as well as certain other deferred tax assets, are subject to significant limitations on 
their utilization. The annual limitation on the utilization of these carry forwards is approximately $14.5 million. The net operating loss carry 
forwards expire between 2014 and 2023, and the capital loss carry forwards expire between 2006 and 2011. Additional limitations on the 
utilization of these carry forwards may be imposed if the Company experiences another change in ownership.  

A valuation allowance has been provided for the Company’s net deferred tax asset as the Company believes, after evaluating all positive and 
negative evidence, historical and prospective, that it is more likely than not that these benefits will not be realized.  

The Company’s net deferred tax asset (liability) consists of the following:  
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    Year Ended December 31,   
    2006     2005     2004   
    (in thousands)   
Income tax expense (benefit) from continuing operations    $ (40 )   $ 18,640     $ —  
     

  
    

  
    

  
  

Total    $ (40 )   $ 18,640     $ —  
     

  

    

  

    

  

  

                          
    Year Ended December 31,   
    2006     2005     2004   
    (in thousands)   
Current    $ (40 )   $ 18,640     $ —  
Deferred      —      —      —  
     

  
    

  
    

  
  

Total    $ (40 )   $ 18,640     $ —  
     

  

    

  

    

  

  

                  
    As of December 31,   
    2006     2005   
    (in thousands)   
Net operating loss carry forward    $ 183,988     $ 153,414   
Capital loss carry forward      233,544       267,018   
Other comprehensive income      (22,019 )     (21,092 ) 
Reserves and accruals      3,246       3,277   
Stock-based compensation expense      4,139       —  
Other, net      329       96   
Partner Company basis difference      170,164       214,044   
Valuation allowance      (573,391 )     (616,757 ) 
     

  
    

  
  

Net deferred tax asset (liability)    $ —    $ —  
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12. Income Taxes (Continued)  

     The effective tax rate differs from the federal statutory rate as follows:  

13. Related Parties  

During 2004, the Company entered into a consulting arrangement with a member of the Company’s Board of Directors. The Company expensed 
$0.8 million, $0.9 million and $0.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, related to this consulting 
arrangement, which is reflected in selling, general and administrative on the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations. At 
December 31, 2006 and 2005, $0.5 million and $0.4 million, respectively, are included in “Accrued expenses” on the Company’s Consolidated 
Balance Sheets. The Company also expensed stock-based compensation of $0.6 million and $0.4 million in 2006 and 2005, respectively, related 
to this consulting arrangement.  

The Company provides strategic and operational support to its Partner Companies in the normal course of its business. The Company’s 
employees and consultants generally provide these services. The costs related to employees are paid by the Company and are reflected by the 
Company in general and administrative expenses. Non-management members of the Company’s Board of Directors are compensated with cash 
and equity grants in the Company that are accounted for in accordance SFAS No. 123R.  

14. Other supplemental non-cash financing and investing activities  

The Company paid interest in 2006, 2005 and 2004 of $1.6 million, $3.1 million and $2.6 million, respectively.  

The Company paid an estimated tax of $0.3 million in 2006 and received a tax refund of $8.1 million in 2006 related to its 2005 tax return. The 
Company paid an estimated tax of $26.9 million in 2005. No income taxes were paid in 2004 as the Company had a net operating loss.  

In 2004, the Company issued 15.9 million shares of common stock in exchange for $134.8 million of convertible debt. See Note 5.  

During the year ended December 31, 2006, ICG Commerce exchanged employee stock options to restricted stock for employees and issued 
equity with vesting restrictions to ICG Commerce’s new CEO. Accordingly, the Company recorded its share of this Partner Company’s equity 
adjustment as a decrease to “Additional paid-in capital” on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.  

During the year ended December 31, 2006, StarCite completed a transaction in which it consolidated with OnVantage, Inc. Following the 
consolidation, the Company recorded its share of StarCite’s equity adjustment of $11.3 million as an increase to “Additional paid-in capital” on 
the Consolidated Balance Sheets.  

During the year ended December 31, 2006, GoIndustry, one of the Company’s equity method Partner Companies completed a financing round. 
Accordingly, the Company recorded its share of this Partner Company’s equity adjustment of $5.4 million as an increase to “Additional paid-in 
capital” on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.  
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    As of December 31, 
    2006   2005   2004 

Tax expense (benefit) at statutory rate      35.0 %     35.0 %     (35.0 )% 
Debt for equity exchanges      —      —      35.0 % 
Non-deductible expenses and other      5.1 %     1.6 %     —  
Valuation allowance      (40.4 )%     (16.2 )%     —  
       

  
      

  
      

  
  

       (0.3 )%     20.4 %     0.0 % 
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INTERNET CAPITAL GROUP, INC.  
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)  

14. Other supplemental non-cash financing and investing activities — (Continued)  

During the year ended December 31, 2005, one of the Company’s equity method Partner Companies completed a financing round. Accordingly, 
the Company recorded its share of this Partner Company’s equity adjustment of $2.3 million as an increase to “Additional paid-in capital” on the 
Consolidated Balance Sheets.  

During the year ended December 31, 2004, one of the Company’s consolidated Partner Companies adjusted its additional paid-in capital to 
reflect the reversal of a $3.1 million equity financing fee accrual. Accordingly, the Company recorded its share of this Partner Company equity 
adjustment as an increase to “Additional paid-in capital” on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.  

15. Other Income (Loss)  

Other Income (Loss), net  

Other income (loss), net consists of the effect of transactions and other events relating to the Company’s ownership interests in its Partner 
Companies and its operations in general.  

During 2006, the Company sold its ownership interest in CreditTrade for approximately $19.0 million in net consideration. The Company 
received $17.2 million in 2006 and recorded a gain of $10.2 million. See Note 3.  

During 2005, the Company sold its ownership interest in LinkShare for approximately $150.1 million in net consideration. The Company 
received $135.4 million in 2005 and $14.7 million in 2006, and recorded a gain of $118.8 million in 2005 and $14.0 million in 2006. The gain in 
2006 primarily related to the escrow release.  

Additionally, during 2006, 2005 and 2004, the Company sold its ownership interests in various other Partner Companies in exchange for cash 
and contingent consideration. The residual gain of $6.8 million in 2006 primarily related to the gains on the sales of ComputerJobs and eCredit. 
The remaining gain of $6.5 million in 2005 primarily related to the gain on the sale of the Company’s ownership interest in Co-nect of 
$5.3 million other and escrow releases. The gain of $22.6 million in 2004 primarily relates to the sale of the Company’s ownership interests in 
eMerge Interactive, Inc. and Onvia.com, Inc.  

During the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, the Company recorded impairment charges of $1.3 million and $2.9 million, respectively, 
for the other than temporary decline in the fair market value of Verticalnet in 2005 and Universal Access Global Holdings Inc. in 2004.  

74  

                          
    Year Ended December 31,   
    2006     2005     2004   
    (in thousands) 
                           
Sales/distributions of ownership interests in Partner Companies    $ 31,034     $ 125,255     $ 22,553   
Gains (losses) on debt extinguishment (Note 5)      (2,490 )     (5,881 )     (133,158 ) 
Realized gains on marketable securities (Note 4)      5,484       15,911       6,213   
Other than temporary impairment of marketable securities      —      (1,342 )     (2,869 ) 
Cost method Partner Company impairment charges      —      —      (1,267 ) 
Gain (loss) on warrants      (83 )     2,596       1,191   
Gain on settlement of debt of Consolidated Partner Company      —      —      1,593   
Other      868       64       (961 ) 
     

  
    

  
    

  
  

     $ 34,813     $ 136,603     $ (106,705 ) 
Total other income (loss) for Consolidated Partner Companies      (208 )     (1,114 )     527   
     

  
    

  
    

  
  

     $ 34,605     $ 135,489     $ (106,178 ) 
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INTERNET CAPITAL GROUP, INC.  
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)  

15. Other Income (Loss) — (Continued)  

During 2006, the Company reversed a $1.0 million accrual related to costs directly associated with the acquisition of a partner company 
ownership interest in 2000 as the statute of limitations with respect to such matter has expired.  

During the year ended December 31, 2004, the Company settled short-term debt consisting of $6.2 million of principal and $2.3 million of 
accrued interest for a total of $6.9 million in cash. The resulting $1.6 million gain is reflected in “Other income (loss), net” in the Company’s 
Consolidated Statement of Operations.  

16. Commitments and Contingencies  

The Company and its consolidated subsidiaries are involved in various claims and legal actions arising in the ordinary course of business. In the 
opinion of management, the amount of the ultimate liability with respect to these actions will not materially affect the financial position, results 
of operations or cash flows of the Company and its subsidiaries.  

The Company and its consolidated Partner Companies lease their facilities under operating lease agreements expiring 2007 through 2011 and 
thereafter. Future minimum lease payments as of December 31, 2006 under the leases are as follows (in thousands):  

Rent expense under the non-cancelable operating leases was $1.8 million in 2006, $2.4 million in 2005 and $1.8 million in 2004.  

Because many of its Partner Companies are not majority-owned subsidiaries, changes in the value of the Company’s interests in Partner 
Companies and the income or loss and revenue attributable to them could require the Company to register under the Investment Company Act 
unless it takes action to avoid being required to register. However, the Company believes it can take steps to avoid being required to register 
under the Investment Company Act, which would not adversely affect its operations or stockholder value.  
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2007    $ 1,560   
2008    $ 1,318   
2009    $ 1,034   
2010    $ 696   
2011    $ 615   
Thereafter    $ 259   
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INTERNET CAPITAL GROUP, INC.  
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)  

17. Net Income (Loss) per Share  

The calculations of net income (loss) per share were:  

The following dilutive securities were not included in the computation of diluted net loss per share as their effect would have been anti-dilutive:  
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    Year Ended December 31,   
    2006     2005     2004   
    (in thousands, except shares and per share data)   
Basic and Diluted:                          
Income (loss) from continuing operations    $ 7,335     $ 73,648     $ (137,905 ) 
Income (loss) on discontinued operations      8,289       (1,130 )     2,588   
     

  
    

  
    

  
  

Net income (loss) — Basic    $ 15,624     $ 72,518     $ (135,317 ) 
     

  
    

  
    

  
  

Interest expense — convertible debt      —      3,104       —  
     

  
    

  
    

  
  

Net income (loss) — Diluted    $ 15,624     $ 75,622     $ (135,317 ) 
     

  
    

  
    

  
  

                           
Basic:                          
Income (loss) from continuing operations per share    $ 0.20     $ 1.98     $ (3.86 ) 
Income (loss) on discontinued operations per share      0.22       (0.03 )     0.07   
     

  
    

  
    

  
  

Net income (loss) per share    $ 0.42     $ 1.95     $ (3.79 ) 
     

  
    

  
    

  
  

                           
Diluted:                          
Income (loss) from continuing operations per share    $ 0.19     $ 1.76     $ (3.86 ) 
Income (loss) on discontinued operations per share      0.22       (0.03 )     0.07   
     

  
    

  
    

  
  

Net income (loss) per share    $ 0.41     $ 1.73     $ (3.79 ) 
     

  
    

  
    

  
  

                           
Basic weighted average common shares outstanding      37,569,795       37,108,750       35,712,555   
     

  
    

  
    

  
  

Incremental Diluted Shares Impact:                          
Stock options      52,245       42,177       —  
Restricted stock      460,550       327,713       —  
Warrants      4,352       2,466       —  
DSUs      15,662       10,397       —  
SARs      3,618       30,957       —  
Convertible debt      —      6,147,253       —  
     

  
    

  
    

  
  

Diluted weighted average common shares outstanding      38,106,221       43,669,713       35,712,555   
     

  
    

  
    

  
  

                  
            Weighted Average 
    Shares   price per share 

  
Year ended December 31, 2006                  
Stock options      381,997     $ 57.31   
Stock options (exercised with partial recourse loans)      508,028     $ 41.70   
SARs      3,483,124     $ 7.42   
Senior convertible notes      3,337,705     $ 9.11   
Warrants      3,150     $ 100.00   
                   
Year Ended December 31, 2005                  
Stock options      602,913     $ 43.88   
Stock options (exercised with partial recourse loans)      754,135     $ 41.70   
Warrants      9,450     $ 100.00   
                   
Year Ended December 31, 2004                  
Stock options      790,829     $ 37.19   
Stock options (exercised with partial recourse loans)      756,128     $ 41.70   
Restricted stock      627,828     $ —  
Senior convertible notes      6,587,621     $ 9.11   
Warrants      26,521     $ 189.27   
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INTERNET CAPITAL GROUP, INC.  
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)  

18. Selected Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited)  

The following table sets forth selected quarterly consolidated financial information for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005. The 
operating results for any given quarter are not necessarily indicative of results for any future period.  
                                                                  
    Fiscal 2006 Quarter Ended     Fiscal 2005 Quarter Ended   
    Mar.31     Jun.30     Sep.30     Dec.31     Mar.31     Jun.30     Sep.30     Dec.31   
    (in thousands, except per share data)   
                                                                   
Revenue    $ 15,175     $ 15,986     $ 16,576     $ 17,012     $ 11,115     $ 9,769     $ 14,647     $ 12,037   
Operating Expenses                                                                  

Cost of revenue      9,235       9,996       10,452       12,756       6,081       6,405       8,286       7,688   
Selling, general & 

administrative      10,114       10,039       11,317       10,638       8,793       8,582       11,977       11,443   
Research and 

development      2,431       2,465       2,112       1,747       3,156       2,888       4,075       2,157   
Amortization of 

intangibles      557       558       293       287       571       366       608       578   
Impairment related and 

other      93       32       24       29       415       (6 )     2,718       321   
     

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
  

       (7,255 )     (7,104 )     (7,622 )     (8,445 )     (7,901 )     (8,466 )     (13,017 )     (10,150 ) 
                                                                   
Other income (loss), net      98       (1,953 )     15,671       20,789       5,056       9,880       119,961       592   
Interest income      2,532       1,913       2,444       2,630       475       613       752       2,050   
Interest expense      (654 )     (579 )     (431 )     (510 )     (910 )     (857 )     (901 )     (699 ) 
     

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
  

Income (loss) before 
minority interest and 
equity loss      (5,279 )     (7,723 )     10,062       14,464       (3,280 )     1,170       106,795       (8,207 ) 

                                                                   

Income tax 
(expense) benefit      643       1,004       (1,607 )     —      —      —      (20,349 )     1,709   

Minority interest      (64 )     47       514       735       911       267       709       626   
Equity loss      (736 )     (1,737 )     (2,726 )     (262 )     (475 )     (477 )     (681 )     (5,070 ) 
     

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
  

Income (loss) from 
continuing operations      (5,436 )     (8,409 )     6,243       14,937       (2,844 )     960       86,474       (10,942 ) 

                                                                   

Income (loss) on 
discontinued operations      527       639       7,120       3       (274 )     116       820       (1,792 ) 

     
  
    

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
  

Net income (loss)    $ (4,909 )   $ (7,770 )   $ 13,363     $ 14,940     $ (3,118 )   $ 1,076     $ 87,294     $ (12,734 ) 
     

  

    

  

    

  

    

  

    

  

    

  

    

  

    

  

  

                                                                   
Basic income (loss) per 

share (1)                                                                  
Income (loss) from 

continuing operations    $ (0.14 )   $ (0.23 )   $ 0.17     $ 0.40     $ (0.07 )   $ 0.03     $ 2.34     $ (0.28 ) 
Discontinued operations      0.01       0.02       0.19       —      (0.01 )     (0.01 )     0.01       (0.06 ) 
     

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
  

     $ (0.13 )   $ (0.21 )   $ 0.36     $ 0.40     $ (0.08 )   $ 0.02     $ 2.35     $ (0.34 ) 
     

  

    

  

    

  

    

  

    

  

    

  

    

  

    

  

  

  
Shares used in computation 

of basic income (loss) per 
share (1)      37,401       37,470       37,535       37,703       37,012       37,040       37,109       37,274   

     

  

    

  

    

  

    

  

    

  

    

  

    

  

    

  

  

                                                                   
Diluted income (loss) per 

share (1)                                                                  
Income (loss) from 

continuing operations    $ (0.14 )   $ (0.23 )   $ 0.16     $ 0.37     $ (0.07 )   $ 0.04     $ 1.96     $ (0.28 ) 
Discontinued operations      0.01       0.02       0.18       —      (0.01 )     (0.01 )     0.01       (0.06 ) 
     

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
  

     $ (0.13 )   $ (0.21 )   $ 0.34     $ 0.37       (0.08 )   $ 0.03     $ 1.97     $ (0.34 ) 
     

  

    

  

    

  

    

  

    

  

    

  

    

  

    

  

  

                                                                   
Shares used in computation 

of diluted income (loss) 
per share (1)      37,401       37,470       40,986       41,184       37,012       43,784       44,386       37,274   
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(1)   The sum of quarterly income (loss) per share differs from the full year amount due to changes in the number of shares outstanding during 
the year. 
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ITEM 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosures  

None.  

ITEM 9A. Controls and Procedures  

Disclosure Controls and Procedures  

We carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief 
Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 
15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act) as of the end of the period covered in this Report. Based upon that evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer 
and Chief Financial Officer concluded that, as of the end of the period covered in this Report, our disclosure controls and procedures have been 
designed and are being operated in a manner that provides reasonable assurance that information required to be included in the Company’s 
periodic SEC reports is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the relevant SEC rules and forms.  

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting  

The management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting (as defined in 
Rule 13a-15(f) under the Exchange Act). The Company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles. The Company internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that 
(i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of 
the Company, (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements for 
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, (iii) provide reasonable assurance that receipts and expenditures 
of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company, (iv) and provide 
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the Company’s assets that could 
have a material effect on the financial statements.  

The management of Internet Capital Group, Inc. evaluated the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006. In 
making this assessment, it used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in 
Internal Control-Integrated Framework. Management’s assessment included an evaluation of the design of its internal control over financial 
reporting and testing of the operational effectiveness of its internal control over financial reporting. Management reviewed the results of its 
assessment with the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors. Based on this assessment, as of December 31, 2006, the Company’s internal 
control over financial reporting was effective based on those criteria.  

The Company’s independent registered public accounting firm, KPMG LLP, has audited management’s assessment of the Company’s internal 
control over financial reporting. KPMG LLP’s report on management’s assessment and the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over 
financial reporting appears below.  

There have been no changes in internal control over financial reporting during the period covered by this Report that have materially affected, or 
are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.  

Inherent Limitations on Effectiveness of Controls  

The design of any system of control is based upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events, and there can be no assurance that 
any design will succeed in achieving its stated objectives under all future events, no matter how remote, that controls may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may not deteriorate. Because of their inherent 
limitations, systems of control may not prevent or detect all misstatements. Accordingly, even effective systems of control can provide only 
reasonable assurance of achieving their control objectives.  
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm  

The Board of Directors and Stockholders  
Internet Capital Group, Inc.:  

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting, 
that Internet Capital Group, Inc. and subsidiaries maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based 
on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway 
Commission (COSO). Internet Capital Group, Inc.’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial 
reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on 
management’s assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.  

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was 
maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating 
management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other 
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.  

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial 
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in 
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance 
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and 
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or 
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.  

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that 
the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.  

In our opinion, management’s assessment that Internet Capital Group, Inc. and subsidiaries maintained effective internal control over financial 
reporting as of December 31, 2006, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated 
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). Also, in our opinion, Internet Capital 
Group, Inc. maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on criteria 
established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission 
(COSO).  

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated 
balance sheets of Internet Capital Group, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the related consolidated statements of 
operations, stockholders’ equity (deficit), comprehensive income (loss) and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended 
December 31, 2006, and our report dated March 16, 2007 expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements.  

/s/ KPMG LLP  
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania  
March 16, 2007  

ITEM 9B. Other Information  

None.  
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PART III  

ITEM 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant  

We incorporate by reference the information contained under the captions “Election of Directors,” “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership 
Reporting Compliance,” “Executive Officers” and “Corporate Governance” in our Definitive Proxy Statement for our 2007 annual meeting of 
stockholders, to be filed within 120 days after the end of the year covered by this Report pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Exchange Act.  

We have adopted a written code of business conduct and ethics, known as our Corporate Code of Conduct, which applies to all of our directors, 
officers and employees, including our principal executive officer and our principal financial and accounting officer. Our code of conduct is 
available on our internet website, www.internetcapital.com. Any amendments to our Corporate Code of Conduct or waivers from the provisions 
of the Corporate Code of Conduct for our principal executive officer and our principal financial and accounting officer will be disclosed on our 
internet website within five business days following the date of such amendment or waiver.  

ITEM 11. Executive Compensation  

We incorporate by reference the information contained under the caption “Executive Compensation” in our Definitive Proxy Statement for our 
2007 annual meeting of stockholders, to be filed within 120 days after the end of the year covered by this Report pursuant to Regulation 14A 
under the Exchange Act.  

ITEM 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters  

We incorporate by reference the information contained under the caption “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Directors and 
Officers” in our Definitive Proxy Statement for our 2007 annual meeting of stockholders, to be filed within 120 days after the end of the year 
covered by this Report pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Exchange Act.  

ITEM 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions  

We incorporate by reference the information contained under the caption “Certain Relationships and Related Transactions” in our Definitive 
Proxy Statement for our 2007 annual meeting of stockholders, to be filed within 120 days after the end of the year covered by this Report 
pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Exchange Act.  

ITEM 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services  

We incorporate by reference the information contained under the caption “Ratification of Appointment of Independent Registered Public 
Accounting Firm” in our Definitive Proxy Statement for our 2007 annual meeting of stockholders, to be filed within 120 days after the end of the 
year covered by this Report pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Exchange Act.  
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PART IV  

ITEM 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules  

1. Consolidated Financial Statements  

The Consolidated Financial Statements and related Notes thereto as set forth under Item 8 of this Report are incorporated herein by reference.  

2. Financial Statement Schedule  

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm  

The Board of Directors and Stockholders  
Internet Capital Group, Inc.:  

Under date of March 16, 2007, we reported on the consolidated balance sheets of Internet Capital Group, Inc. and subsidiaries as of 
December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity (deficit), comprehensive income 
(loss) and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2006. In connection with our audits of the 
aforementioned consolidated financial statements, we also audited the related consolidated financial statement schedule. The consolidated 
financial statement schedule is the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the consolidated 
financial statement schedule based on our audits.  

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken 
as a whole, presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein.  

As discussed in Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted the fair value method of 
accounting for stock-based compensation as required by Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123(R), Share-Based Payment .  

/s/ KPMG LLP  

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania  
March 16, 2007  

The following financial statement schedule of Internet Capital Group, Inc. for each of the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 
should be read in conjunction with our Consolidated Financial Statements and related Notes thereto.  

INTERNET CAPITAL GROUP  
SCHEDULE II —VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS  

Years Ended December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006  
(in thousands)  
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    Balance at the                 
    beginning of the   Charged to costs           Balance at the end 
    year   and expenses   Write -offs   of the year 

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts :                                  
December 31, 2004    $ 2,019     $ (489 )   $ (754 )   $ 776   
December 31, 2005    $ 776     $ 241 (a)   $ (418 )(b)   $ 599   
December 31, 2006    $ 599     $ 641     $ (1,103 )(c)   $ 137   

  

(a)   Reserve of $138 was established upon acquisitions of partner companies during 2005. 
  

(b)   Reserve of $221 was eliminated upon deconsolidation of partner company during 2005. 
  

(c)   Reserve of $656 was eliminated upon deconsolidation of partner company during 2006. 
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3. List of Exhibits  

The following is a list of exhibits required by Item 601 of Regulation S-K filed as part of this Report. Where so indicated, exhibits which were 
previously filed are incorporated by reference. For exhibits incorporated by reference, the location of the exhibit in the previous filing is 
indicated in parentheses.  
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Exhibit Number   Document 

       
2.1  

  

Agreement of Merger, dated February 2, 1999, between Internet Capital Group, L.L.C. and Internet Capital Group, Inc. 
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, filed May 11, 1999 (File 
No. 333-78193)). 

       
3.1.1  

  
Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Internet Capital Group, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Company’s 
Registration Statement on Form 8-A, filed August 4, 1999 (File No. 000-26989)). 

       
3.1.2  

  
Certificate of Amendment of Restated Certificate of Incorporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.3 to the Company’s 
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002, filed March 31, 2003 (File No. 001-16249)). 

       
3.1.3  

  

Second Amendment of Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Internet Capital Group, Inc. (incorporated by reference to 
Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2004, filed August 9, 2004 (File 
No. 001-16249)). 

       
3.2  

  
Amended and Restated By-laws of Internet Capital Group, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s 
Current Report on Form 8-K, filed March 5, 2007 (File No. 001-16249)). 

       
4.1  

  
Form of Certificate for Internet Capital Group, Inc. Common Stock (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s 
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004, filed March 16, 2005 (File No. 001-16249)). 

       
4.2  

  

Rights Agreement, dated as of November 22, 2000, between Internet Capital Group, Inc. and ChaseMellon Shareholder 
Services, L.L.C., as Rights Agent, including Form of Rights Certificate (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1.1 to the 
Company’s Registration Statement on Form 8-A, filed December 1, 2000 (File No. 001-16249)). 

       
4.3  

  
Form of 5% Senior Convertible Notes due 2009 of Internet Capital Group, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to 
the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed April 1, 2004 (File No. 001-16249)). 

       
4.4  

  
Amendment No. 1 to Form of 5% Senior Convertible Notes due 2009 of Internet Capital Group, Inc. (incorporated by 
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed October 27, 2005 (File No. 001-16249)). 

       
4.5  

  
Amendment No. 2 to Form of 5% Senior Convertible Notes due 2009 of Internet Capital Group, Inc. (incorporated by 
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed October 27, 2005 (File No. 001-16249)). 

       
10.1  

  
Internet Capital Group, Inc. Amended and Restated 1999 Equity Compensation Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 
to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed March 5, 2007 (File No. 001-16249)). 
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Exhibit Number   Document 

       
10.2  

  
Internet Capital Group, Inc. Amended and Restated 2005 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan (incorporated by reference to 
Exhibit 10.7 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed March 5, 2007 (File No. 001-16249)). 

       
10.3  

  

Internet Capital Group, Inc. Amended and Restated Executive Deferred Compensation Plan (incorporated by reference to 
Exhibit 10.2.2 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002, filed March 31, 2003 
(File No. 001-16249)). 

       
10.4  

  
Internet Capital Group, L.L.C. Membership Profit Interest Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s 
Registration Statement on Form S-1, filed May 11, 1999 (File No. 333-78193)). 

       
10.5  

  
Internet Capital Group, Inc. Amended and Restated Non-Management Director Compensation Plan (incorporated by reference 
to Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed March 5, 2007 (File No. 001-16249)). 

       
10.6  

  
Internet Capital Group, Inc. Amended and Restated Director Deferred Stock Unit Program (incorporated by reference to 
Exhibit 10.5 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed March 5, 2007 (File No. 001-16249)). 

       
10.7.1  

  
Logistics.com, Inc. 2001 Equity Compensation Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Annual 
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002, filed March 31, 2003 (File No. 001-16249)). 

       
10.7.2  

  

Amendment No. 1 to the Logistics.com, Inc. 2001 Equity Compensation Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3.1 to 
the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002, filed March 31, 2003 (File No. 001-
16249)). 

       
10.8.1  

  
Internet Capital Group 2006 Bonus Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company’s Current Report on 
Form 8-K, filed February 28, 2006 (File No. 001-16249)). 

       
10.8.2  

  
Internet Capital Group 2007 Performance Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Current Report on 
Form 8-K, filed March 5, 2007 (File No. 001-16249)). 

       
10.9  

  

Form of Internet Capital Group, Inc. Restricted Stock Grant Without Performance Acceleration (incorporated by reference to 
Exhibit 10.32 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004, filed March 16, 2005 
(File No. 001-16249)). 

       
10.10  

  

Form of Internet Capital Group, Inc. Restricted Stock Grant With Performance Acceleration (incorporated by reference to 
Exhibit 10.33 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004, filed March 16, 2005 
(File No. 001-16249)). 

       
10.11  

  

Form of Internet Capital Group, Inc. Stock Option Grant Without Performance Acceleration (incorporated by reference to 
Exhibit 10.34 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004, filed March 16, 2005 
(File No. 001-16249)). 

       
10.12  

  

Form of Internet Capital Group, Inc. Stock Option Grant With Performance Acceleration (incorporated by reference to 
Exhibit 10.35 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004, filed March 16, 2005 
(File No. 001-16249)). 

       
10.13  

  
Form of Internet Capital Group, Inc. Non-Employee Director Initial Stock Option Grant (incorporated by reference to 
Exhibit 10.36 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K 
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Exhibit Number   Document 

       
     for the year ended December 31, 2004, filed March 16, 2005 (File No. 001-16249)). 
       
10.14  

  

Form of Internet Capital Group, Inc. Non-Employee Director Annual Stock Option Grant (incorporated by reference to 
Exhibit 10.37 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004, filed March 16, 2005 
(File No. 001-16249)). 

       
10.15  

  
Form of Internet Capital Group, Inc. Stock Unit Award Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the 
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed July 28, 2005 (File No. 001-16249)). 

       
10.16  

  
Form of Internet Capital Group, Inc. Stock Appreciation Rights Certificate (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the 
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed July 28, 2005 (File No. 001-16249)). 

       
10.17  

  

Employment Agreement, dated February 28, 2007, by and among Internet Capital Group Operations, Inc., Internet Capital 
Group, Inc. and Walter W. Buckley, III (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on 
Form 8-K, filed March 5, 2007 (File No. 001-16249)). 

       
10.18  

  
Letter Agreement, dated February 28, 2007, by and between Internet Capital Group and R. Kirk Morgan (incorporated by 
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed March 5, 2007 (File No. 001-16249)). 

       
10.19  

  

Letter Agreement, dated July 28, 2005, by and between Internet Capital Group and Douglas A. Alexander (incorporated by 
reference to Exhibit 10.32 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005, filed 
March 15, 2006 (File No. 001-16249)). 

       
10.20  

  
Letter Agreement, dated July 28, 2005, by and between Internet Capital Group and Anthony P. Dolanski (incorporated by 
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed July 28, 2005 (File No. 001-16249). 

       
10.21.1  

  

Independent Contractor Agreement, dated August 17, 2004, by and between Internet Capital Group Operations, Inc., Wayne 
Strategy Consultants, Inc. and Dr. Michael D. Zisman (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Quarterly 
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2004, filed November 9, 2004 (File No. 001-16249)). 

       
10.21.2  

  

First Amendment to Independent Contractor Agreement, dated January 18, 2005, by and among Internet Capital Group 
Operations, Inc., Wayne Strategy Consultants, Inc. and Dr. Michael D. Zisman (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to 
the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed January 19, 2005 (File No. 001-16249)). 

       
10.21.3  

  

Second Amendment to Independent Contractor Agreement, dated August 1, 2006, by and among Internet Capital Group 
Operations, Inc., Wayne Strategy Consultants, Inc. and Dr. Michael D. Zisman (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to 
the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed August 2, 2006 (File No. 001-16249)). 

       
10.22  

  
Form of Restrictive Covenant Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Current Report on 
Form 8-K, filed July 28, 2005 (File No. 001-16249)). 

       
10.23  

  

Form of Promissory Note (Option Loan) by and between Internet Capital Group Operations, Inc. and certain of its officers 
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 
30, 2002, filed November 
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Exhibit Number   Document 

       
     14, 2002 (File No. 001-16249)). 
       
10.24  

  

Form of Share Pledge Agreement by and between Internet Capital Group Operations, Inc. and certain of its officers 
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 
30, 2002, filed November 14, 2002 (File No. 001-16249)). 

       
10.25  

  

Form of Promissory Note (Tax Loan) by and between Internet Capital Group Operations, Inc. and certain of its officers 
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 
30, 2002, filed November 14, 2002 (File No. 001-16249)). 

       
10.26.1  

  

Letter of Credit Agreement, dated as of September 30, 2002, by and between Comerica Bank-California and Internet Capital 
Group, Inc., ICG Holdings, Inc. and Internet Capital Group Operations, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the 
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2002, filed November 14, 2002 (File No. 001-
16249)). 

       
10.26.2  

  

First Amendment to Letter of Credit Agreement, dated as of October 20, 2003, by and between Comerica Bank, Internet 
Capital Group, Inc., ICG Holdings, Inc. and Internet Capital Group Operations, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 
to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003, filed November 14, 2003 (File 
No. 001-16249)). 

       
10.26.3  

  

Second Amendment to Letter of Credit Agreement, dated as of December 15, 2004, by and between Comerica Bank, Internet 
Capital Group, Inc., ICG Holdings, Inc. and Internet Capital Group Operations, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
10.14.2 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004, filed March 16, 2005 (File No. 
001-16249)). 

       
10.26.4  

  

Third Amendment to Letter of Credit Agreement, dated as of December 15, 2005, by and between Comerica Bank, Internet 
Capital Group, Inc., ICG Holdings, Inc. and Internet Capital Group Operations, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 
to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed December 15, 2005 (File No. 001-16249)). 

       
10.26.5  

  

Fourth Amendment to Letter of Credit Agreement, dated as of December 15, 2006, by and between Comerica Bank, Internet 
Capital Group, Inc., ICG Holdings, Inc. and Internet Capital Group Operations, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 
to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed December 19, 2006 (File No. 001-16249)). 

       
10.27  

  

Securities Purchase Agreement, dated as of March 31, 2004, by and among Internet Capital Group, Inc. and the Investors 
named therein (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed April 1, 2004 
(File No. 001-16249)). 

       
10.28  

  

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of April 8, 2004, by and among Internet Capital Group, Inc. and the Investors named 
therein (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed April 1, 2004 (File 
No. 001-16249)). 

  
10.29  

  

Note Purchase Agreement, dated October 25, 2005, by and among Internet Capital Group, Inc., Langley Partners, L.P., Bear 
Stearns Securities Corp., Custodian for Jeffrey Thorp IRA Rollover, JMG Capital Partners, LP and JMG Triton Offshore Fund, 
Ltd. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed October 27, 
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Exhibit Number   Document 

       
     2005 (File No. 001-16249)). 
       
10.30  

  

Note Purchase Agreement, dated February 12, 2007, by and between Mason Capital Management, LLC (and its affiliates and 
advisory clients named therein) and Internet Capital Group, Inc. (incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current Report 
on Form 8-K, filed February 12, 2007 (File No. 001-16249)). 

       
10.31  

  
Note Purchase Agreement, dated February 12, 2007, by and between Sonoma Capital, LP and Internet Capital Group, Inc. 
(incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed February 12, 2007 (File No. 001-16249)). 

       
10.32  

  

Letter Agreement, dated December 16, 2005, by and between ICG Holdings, Inc. and Credit Suisse First Boston Capital LLC 
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.31 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 
2005, filed March 15, 2006 (File No. 001-16249)). 

       
10.33.1  

  

Agreement of Lease, dated June 30, 2003, between FV Office Partners, L.P. and Internet Capital Group Operations, Inc. 
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 
2003, filed August 14, 2003 (File No. 001-16249)). 

       
10.33.2  

  

First Amendment to Lease, dated November 20, 2003, between FV Office Partners, L.P. and Internet Capital Group 
Operations, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.37 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended 
December 31, 2003, filed March 15, 2004 (File No. 001-16249)). 

       
10.33.3  

  
Second Amendment to Lease, dated August 21, 2006, by and between Chesterbrook Partners, L.P. (as successor-in-interest to 
FV Partners, L.P.) and Internet Capital Group Operations, Inc. (filed herewith). 

       
11.1  

  

Statement Regarding Computation of Per Share Earnings (included herein at Note 2-“Significant Accounting Policies”  in the 
subsection “Net Income (Loss) Per Share” to the Consolidated Financial Statements and Note 17-“Net Income (Loss) Per 
Share”  to the Consolidated Financial Statements). 

       
21.1    Subsidiaries of Internet Capital Group, Inc. (filed herewith). 
       
23.1    Consent of KPMG LLP (filed herewith). 
       
31.1    Certification of Chief Executive Officer required by Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith). 
       
31.2    Certification of Chief Financial Officer required by Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith). 
       
32.1    Certification of the Chief Executive Officer required by Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith). 
       
32.2    Certification of the Chief Financial Officer required by Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith). 
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SIGNATURES  

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Security Exchange Act of 1934, the Company has duly caused this Report to be signed 
on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.  

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this Report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of 
the Company in the capacities set forth opposite their names, and on the date set forth above.  
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Date: March 16, 2007  INTERNET CAPITAL GROUP, INC.  

  
  

  By:   /s/ R. KIRK MORGAN     
    Name:   R. Kirk Morgan    
    Title:   Chief Financial Officer    
  

          
Signature   Title     
           
/s/ WALTER W. BUCKLEY, III 
   

Walter W. Buckley, III    
Chief Executive Officer, President and Chairman of the Board of 
Directors (Principal Executive Officer)   

  

           
/s/ R. KIRK MORGAN 
   

R. Kirk Morgan    
Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer) 

  
  

           
/s/ DAVID J. BERKMAN 
   

David J. Berkman    
Director  

  
  

           
/s/ THOMAS A. DECKER 
   

Thomas A. Decker    
Director  

  
  

           
/s/ DAVID K. DOWNES 
   

David K. Downes    
Director  

  
  

           
/s/ THOMAS P. GERRITY 
   

Thomas P. Gerrity    
Director  

  
  

           
/s/ ROBERT E. KEITH, JR. 
   

Robert E. Keith, Jr.    
Director  

  
  

           
/s/ WARREN V. MUSSER 
   

Warren V. Musser    
Director  

  
  

           
/s/ PHILIP J. RINGO 
   

Philip J. Ringo    
Director  

  
  

           
/s/ MICHAEL D. ZISMAN 
   

Michael D. Zisman    
Director  

  
  



SECOND AMENDMENT TO LEASE  

THIS SECOND AMENDMENT TO LEASE (the "Amendment") dated as of the 20th day of June, 2006 (the "Effective Date") by and between 
CHESTERBROOK PARTNERS, LP, a Delaware limited partnership (hereinafter referred to as "Landlord") and INTERNET CAPITAL 
GROUP OPERATIONS, INC., a Delaware corporation (hereinafter referred to as "Tenant").  

WITNESSETH THAT:  

WHEREAS, Landlord as successor in interest to FV Office Partners, L.P. is the owner of that certain office building and surrounding 
appurtenant facilities located at 690 Lee Road, Chesterbrook Corporate Center(R), Wayne, PA ("the Building");  

WHEREAS, Landlord leases certain premises at the Building to Tenant pursuant to that certain Lease dated June 30, 2003 as amended by a First 
Amendment to Lease dated as of November 20, 2003 (collectively, the "Lease") whereby Tenant occupies approximately 7,475 rentable square 
feet of office space (the "Existing Premises") being more particularly described therein;  

WHEREAS, Landlord and Tenant desire to further amend the Lease as hereinafter set forth; and  

THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, receipt of which is acknowledged, intending to be legally bound, Landlord and Tenant agree 
as follows:  

1. Effective as of the Construction Completion Date (as hereinafter defined): (i) Landlord shall deliver to Tenant possession of additional 
premises (the "Expansion Premises") containing approximately 3,529 rentable square feet on the second floor of the Building as more 
particularly described on the plan comprising Exhibit "A"; (ii) the Tenant's proportionate share shall be increased to 15.043%; and (iii) for 
calculation and all other purposes of the Lease the Premises (as such term is defined in the Lease) shall consist of the Existing Premises and the 
Expansion Premises in the aggregate and the amount of rentable square feet in the Premises shall be deemed to be approximately 11,004.  

2. Landlord shall, at Landlord's sole cost and expense, cause the Expansion Space to be improved in accordance with Polek-Schwartz Space Plan 
SK-4 dated June 7,2006 a copy of which comprises Exhibit "B" (the "Tenant Construction Plans"). Landlord will make commercially reasonable 
efforts to use materials in connection with the finishes in the Expansion Premises consistent with those utilized in the Existing Premises 
including Alternatives Nos. 1 and 2 on the Tenant Construction Plans. Any additional costs related to the Expansion Premises not depicted on 
the Tenant Construction Plans (e.g. wiring and cabling costs) shall be the responsibility of Tenant. As used in this Amendment the term 
"Construction Completion Date" shall mean and refer to the date upon which Landlord notifies Tenant that Landlord has substantially completed 
all of the tenant improvement work shown on the Tenant Construction Plans. The term "substantially completed" as utilized in this Amendment 
shall mean that the work to be performed by the Landlord in accordance with this Amendment shall have been  



substantially completed notwithstanding that insubstantial details of construction, mechanical adjustment, or decoration remain to be performed, 
the non-completion of which will not materially interfere with Tenant's use of the Expansion Premises.  

3. The term of the Lease shall be extended until July 30, 2012 (the "New Maturity Date").  

4. Until the occurrence of the Construction Completion Date Tenant shall pay Fixed Rent and all other charges due under the Lease as currently 
set forth therein. Effective as of the Construction Completion Date, Fixed Rent shall be payable as follows:  

 

5. Effective as of the Construction Completion Date the term "Base Operating Costs" as utilized in the Lease as the same shall relate to the 
Expansion Premises shall mean the Annual Operating Costs incurred by Landlord during the calendar year 2006. The term "Base Operating 
Costs" as the same shall relate to the Existing Premises shall remain as specified in the Lease.  

6. The Fixed Rent and all other sums payable to Landlord pursuant to or by reason of this Lease from and after the Effective Date shall be 
payable to Landlord at: NW5739, P.O. Box 1450, Minneapolis, MN 55485-5738, or to such other person and at such other place as Landlord 
may from time to time hereinafter designate in writing.  

7. Article 37 (Renewal Option) of the Lease is hereby null and void and of no further force and effect. Exhibit "H" of the Lease (Form of 
Subordination, Non-Disturbance and Attornment Agreement) is hereby replaced by Exhibit "C".  

8. The Landlord notice addresses specified in Article 20 of the Lease are hereby deleted and replaced by the following:  

If intended for Landlord:  

Chesterbrook Partners, LP  
955 Chesterbrook Boulevard  
Suite 120  
Chesterbrook, PA 19087-5615  

2  

      Lease Period        Annual Fixed Rent   Monthly Fixed Rent 
      ------------        -----------------   ------------------ 
Construction Completion 
   Date to 6/30/07           $245,617.00          $20,468.08 
7/1/07 - 6/30/08             $251,119.00          $20,926.58 
7/1/08 - 6/30/09             $256,621.00          $21,385.08 
7/1/09 - 6/30/10             $262,123.00          $21,843.58 
7/1/10 - 6/30/11             $267,625.00          $22,302.08 
7/1/11 - 7/30/12             $273,127.00          $22,760.58 



with a copy to:  

Chesterbrook Partners, LP  
One Pitcairn Plaza  
165 Township Line Road  
Jenkintown, PA 19046  
Attn: Director of Property Management  

with a copy to:  

Spector Gadon & Rosen, P.C.  
1635 Market Street  
7th Floor  
Philadelphia, PA 19103  
Attention: Richard L. Canel, Jr., Esquire  

9. Tenant represents and warrants to Landlord that it has not employed, dealt with or negotiated with any broker or agent other than CB Richard 
Ellis, Inc. in connection with this Amendment. Tenant agrees to indemnify, defend and hold Landlord harmless from and against any and all 
demands, actions, loss, damage or liability, including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys' fees, to which Landlord may now or hereafter 
become subject by reason of any claim for commission, fee or other compensation to any other broker or agent.  

10. The submission by Landlord to Tenant of this Amendment shall have no binding force or effect, shall not constitute an option for the leasing 
of the Expansion Premises nor confer any rights or impose any obligations upon either party until execution thereof by Landlord and the delivery 
of an executed original copy thereof to Tenant.  

11. All capitalized terms in this Amendment not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning set forth in the Lease. This Amendment may be 
signed in counterparts.  

12. All of the terms, conditions, and provisions of the Lease are incorporated herein by reference as fully as though set forth in this Amendment.  

13. All of the recitals set forth above are hereby ratified and confirmed by Landlord and Tenant and incorporated herein by reference.  

14. The individual signing below on behalf of the Tenant represents that s/he has the authority and power to bind the Tenant.  

15. In the event any of the terms of this Amendment are inconsistent with the terms of the Lease, the terms of this Amendment shall take 
precedence.  

16. All exhibits referred to in this Amendment are attached thereto and incorporated herein by reference.  

17. Landlord and Tenant hereby ratify and confirm the Lease, which, except as specifically modified therein, shall remain in full force and effect 
unmodified.  

3  



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Second Amendment to Lease the date set forth above.  

 
4  

LANDLORD:                               TENANT: 
CHESTERBROOK PARTNERS, LP               INTERNET CAPITAL GROUP OPERATIONS, INC., 
a Delaware limited partnership          a DELAWARE CORPORATION 
 
By: Tredyffrin GP, LLC, 
    a Delaware limited liability        By: /s/ R. Kirk Morgan 
    company, its general partner            ------------------------------------ 
                                        Name: R. Kirk Morgan 
                                        Title: CFO 
By: /s/ Joseph S. Grubb, Jr. 
    --------------------------------- 
    Joseph S. Grubb, Jr. 
    Vice President 



.  

.  

.  

Exhibit 21.1  

Subsidiaries of Internet Capital Group, Inc.  

 

Unless otherwise provided, each of the subsidiaries named above do business under the same name.  

                                                            Jurisdiction 
                                                                 of 
Name                                                        Incorporation 
----                                                       -------------- 
Internet Capital Group Operations, Inc.                       Delaware 
ICG Holdings, Inc.                                            Delaware 
Anthem Ventures Fund, L.P.                                    Delaware 
Blackboard, Inc.                                              Delaware 
Captive Capital Corporation (fka eMarket Capital, Inc.)       Delaware 
Channel Intelligence, Inc.                                    Delaware 
Creditex Group Inc.                                           Delaware 
Emptoris, Inc.                                                Delaware 
Entegrity Solutions Corporation                              California 
Freeborders, Inc.                                             Delaware 
GoIndustry plc                                                 Germany 
ICG Commerce Holdings, Inc.                                   Delaware 
   ICG Commerce, Inc.                                       Pennsylvania 
   ICG Commerce Investments, LLC                              Delaware 
   ICG Commerce International, LLC                            Delaware 
   ICG Commerce Mexico I, LLC                                 Delaware 
   ICG Commerce Mexico II, LLC                                Delaware 
   ICG Commerce UK Limited                                 United Kingdom 
   ICG Commerce Singapore Pte Ltd.                            Singapore 
   ICG Commerce Germany GmbH                                   Germany 
   ICG Commerce Latin America, S. de. R.L., de C.V.            Mexico 
   ICG Commerce Services, S. de. R.L. de C.V.                  Mexico 
   epValue.com, Inc.                                          Delaware 
ICG Patent, Inc.                                              Delaware 
Investor Force Holdings, Inc.                                 Delaware 
   Investor Force, Inc.                                       Delaware 
   Investor Force Securities, Inc.                            Delaware 
Jamcracker, Inc.                                              Delaware 
LGO Corporation (fka Logistics.com, Inc.)                     Delaware 
Marketron International, Inc. (fka Buymedia, Inc.)            Delaware 
Metastorm Inc.                                                Maryland 
OneCoast Network Holdings, Inc. (fka USgift Corporation)       Georgia 
Qcorps Residential, Inc. (dba WhiteFence)                     Delaware 
StarCite, Inc.                                                Delaware 
Tibersoft Corporation                                       Massachusetts 
Vcommerce Corporation                                         Delaware 



Exhibit 23.1  

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING  FIRM  

The Board of Directors  
Internet Capital Group, Inc.:  

We consent to incorporation by reference in the registration statements (Nos. 333-34736, 333-76870, 333-76872 and 333-12808) on Form S-8 
and the registration statement (no. 333-115702) on Form S-3 of Internet Capital Group, Inc. and subsidiaries of our reports dated March 16, 
2007, with respect to the consolidated balance sheets of Internet Capital Group, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the 
related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders' equity (deficit), comprehensive income (loss) and cash flows for each of the years in 
the three-year period ended December 31, 2006, and related financial statement schedule, management's assessment of the effectiveness of 
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006 and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of 
December 31, 2006, which reports appear in the December 31, 2006 annual report on Form 10-K of Internet Capital Group, Inc.  

Our report dated March 16, 2007 with respect to the consolidated balance sheets of Internet Capital Group, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 
31, 2006 and 2005, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders' equity (deficit), comprehensive income (loss) and cash 
flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2006 refers to Internet Capital Group, Inc.'s adoption of the fair value 
method of accounting for stock-based compensation as required by Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123(R), Share-Based 
Payment, effective January 1, 2006.  

 

/s/ KPMG LLP 
 
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 
March 16, 2007 



Exhibit 31.1  

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER  

I, Walter W. Buckley, III, certify that:  

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Internet Capital Group, Inc.;  

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary 
to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period 
covered by this report;  

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects 
the financial condition, results of operations, and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;  

4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined 
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 
15d-15(f)) for the registrant, and have:  

a. designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to 
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those 
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;  

b. designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our 
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for 
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;  

c. evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this annual report our conclusions about the 
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and  

d. disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent 
fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to 
materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and  

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial 
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent 
functions):  

a. all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably 
likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize, and report financial information; and  

b. any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control 
over financial reporting.  

 

Date: March 16, 2007 
 
 
                                        /s/ Walter W. Buckley, III 
                                        ---------------------------------------- 
                                        Walter W. Buckley, III 
                                        Chief Executive Officer and President 



Exhibit 31.2  

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER  

I, R. Kirk Morgan, certify that:  

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Internet Capital Group, Inc.;  

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary 
to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period 
covered by this report;  

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects 
the financial condition, results of operations, and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;  

4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined 
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 
15d-15(f)) for the registrant, and have:  

a. designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to 
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those 
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;  

b. designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our 
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for 
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;  

c. evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the 
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and  

d. disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent 
fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to 
materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and  

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial 
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent 
functions):  

a. all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably 
likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize, and report financial information; and  

b. any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control 
over financial reporting.  

 

Date: March 16, 2007 
 
 
                                        /s/ R. Kirk Morgan 
                                        ---------------------------------------- 
                                        R. Kirk Morgan 
                                        Chief Financial Officer 



Exhibit 32.1  

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350  
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF  

THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002, AS AMENDED  

In connection with the Annual Report of Internet Capital Group, Inc. (the "Company") on Form 10-K for the period ending December 31, 2006 
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), I, Walter W. Buckley, III, Chief Executive Officer of 
the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, as amended, 
that:  

(1) the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and  

(2) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the 
Company.  

 

/s/ Walter W. Buckley, III 
------------------------------------- 
Walter W. Buckley, III 
Chief Executive Officer and President 
March 16, 2007 



Exhibit 32.2  

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350  
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF  

THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002, AS AMENDED  

In connection with the Annual Report of Internet Capital Group, Inc. (the "Company") on Form 10-K for the period ending December 31, 2006 
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), I, R. Kirk Morgan, Chief Financial Officer of the 
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, as amended, that:  

(1) the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and  

(2) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the 
Company.  

 

/s/ R. Kirk Morgan 
------------------------------------- 
R. Kirk Morgan 
Chief Financial Officer 
March 16, 2007 


